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40 Years of Service Excellence
A0 5F = il Al 7%

1970s — THE BEGINNINGS 4/ 5f

ASL was founded in Hong Kong in 1973

BEBRANI973FEERBEX Y

An innovative systems integrator with foresight to introduce data entry systems and became the
first and only distributor of Digital Equipment Corporation (DEC) minicomputers in Hong Kong
market in 1975

ER—BEEFEEAERNARERE  BHRSXRES ARBEBARLS - M1975F K &
HEMS FEEEE - —E@EZEM QA DEC) XREMKIER

1980s — THE CHANGES ## & HY

ASL was appointed as the first sole distributor to launch Sun workstations
BHESGXAEESI ARG ER (Sun) TEBHERIER
A pioneer to introduce third parties’ hardware maintenance service
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1990s — THE EXPANSION 75 & &Y

7994 * ELM Computer Technologies Ltd. (ELM) became ASL's subsidiary in Hong Kong
RMMEBERARAAREBEEXNSEDRRHNE LA

1995 e ASL was awarded PC Bulk contract totaled HK$315 million
B RRESEEEE-E— THAEETLZIHWEEHRATEL

1997 < ASLwas listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

2000s — TODAY Xt

1999 e ELM won HKSAR Government Midrange Computer System Term Contract (namely
UNIX Bulk)
MMBRB R ARARZETERRPUERARTEHE L
(BI UNIX KR&4))

Thailand subsidiary (ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.) were established and ASL had
presence in Taiwan

Z= B Bt B A 7] (ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd. ) S R BB Z SN S ERR X515

ASL was awarded HKSAR Government RDBMS/ADT Software Contract (namely
Database Bulk)

B RGESESRNBREBEEERR RREAGEETIAESHHA O (A
BEXRE L)

ASL won Information Technology Professional Services Arrangement (ITPSA) Contract

BB RAmMEMBRBEZRS (TPSA) & 49

ASL was awarded each and every Standing Offer Agreements for quality professional
services (SOA-QPS) that it bade for under four separate service categories to provide
Information Technology Professional Services for HKSAR Government departments
BEHEGARENMNERBHCESELEEANBREEREEEARBE B
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Guangzhou office (Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited) was established

BMEER(BEMNREXEBESMREGR AR )KL

Taiwan subsidiary (Taiwan Automated Systems Limited) was established
REMBLAR(RERBEXEEMMKRBRAR)KIL

Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (Teamsun) (SHSE Stock Code: 600410) acquired
CSC's entire holding of ASL's shares to become the ultimate controlling stakeholder of
ASL
AREBRRHMIBENDERIB(EREXK) (LEESFR S M BHRR:
600410) NECSCR BB ZGFAF AN HRG - KA BB RARKKRITERRK

ASL opened five Customer Service Centers (Beijing, Hangzhou, Shanghai, Shenyang
and Zhuhai) in Mainland China
BEREGETEAMARTEBRTRE T OGEER MM - BF - FEBRIKE)

ASL acquired i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
B &) Z 4t W B8 i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd

ASL opened Security Operation Center

BEOEGHARLTEEFD

ASL opened Shanghai Office of Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited
BHRGRIBMNREEXZEEEMRERAAZ LERFR

ASL launched Hong Kong's first SOC-based data centre service
BHRGHELETAEENLR2EETORERNBED LRE
ASL was awarded PC Bulk which ASL has continually won it since 1995
BB RGEERGEEI1INFERRIMESRHRARE L

ASL’s 40th Anniversary

EEIES v ks

ASL was awarded the Network Products (Category A) and Server Systems (Category
B) Bulk Contract (Network Products and Server Systems Bulk Contract was previously
known as 2 Bulks separately, namely Network Bulk and Server Bulk. ASL won both
Bulk tenders since 2003)

BE}RSRESHBEED(ERA) RAREF 4 (FA5IB) KR & A (H48 E m & [ AR
BERATERNNAAMND PRANARELH  BRABBRRE K KARSEKRE
R - BEBRFE2003FEEESZMDATE L)

ELM was awarded the Network Products (Category A) and Server Systems (Category B)
Bulk Contract (ELM has long been selling products and services on midrange computer
system and its solutions to various HKSAR government departments since 1999)
MMBERERAERAREFSHEGEMERAA) KRR Z5(FAHB) AR AL
(MMERBMRAERAABI99FRHEPAERARER LR - REBAT
BT ZETEBMEF)

ASL is one of the key IT suppliers for HKSAR Government as ASL got the highest total
contract amount of Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 2
(SOA-QPS2)

BEOEGEREARNIZENEAMRHER 2 —  HEBEAMKEZRS
EREEARHR2TPESESNGHNEE



Customer Service Excellence with
Corporate Responsibility
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YOUR TRUSTED"
ITSERVICES PROVIDER
IN THE REGION

ASL supports customers to create
Greener IT Environment




Quality Policy of ASL
BERGNEE A

We are committed to be the excellent IT services partner by providing customers innovative,
quality, and integrated one-stop IT services and solutions. We aim at satisfying our customer’s
business needs through forging strategic alliance with our business partners and the shared
value of the Group — “TAPS":

“T" - Taking part in “Teamwork”

“A"- Being “Accountable” on each one’s area of responsibilities towards the Group’s goal
“P" - "Problem solving” for customers by leveraging the Group’s strength and synergy
“S" - "Strive for excellence” to achieve continual improvements

BRRERESREFSNTRFEEH  BEFRERE—WAEH BELREAGNEARELTR
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Automated Systems (HK) Limited BEIZ 4 (F8) GR 27

Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
Version 1.3 — Maturity Level 3 Rating

K Capability Maturity Model® Integration (CMMI)
13— F=RFTHR
1SO 9001 : 2008 1SO 9001 : 2008 1SO 9001 : 2008
Certificate No.: CC 1505 Certificate No.: CC 5337 Certificate No.: CC 5484
s Solutions & e Els QUG e CMMI® is registered in the U.S. Patent an_d Trademark Office by
Services Division Department Excellence Centre Camegie Mellon University ’
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ISO/IEC 20000

1SO 20000-1 : 2011
Certificate No.: CC 5406
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ELM Computer Technologies Limited 1k ZE f&#H

1SO 9001 : 2008
Certificate No.: CC 3268
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ASL at a Glance
SEIESSE X T

Corporate Overview EE &7

Information Technology (IT) services provider since 1973

Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”) (SHSE Stock Code: 600410)
becomes the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder in September 2009,
supporting the Company’s further business expansion in the Asia Pacific region

Dedicated to delivering one-stop IT solutions and services to customers across the
region with business operations in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Taiwan, Macau,
Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia, etc.
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Financial Highlights Bf I E
For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HIFE
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é Orders newly secured
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2012 Operational Highlights 21§ HE
For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HIFE

Opened Security Operation Center and launched SOC-based data center services to
seize the rising security and data center service demand in the region

Opened Shanghai office and established i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd's Mainland
China operation headquarters in Beijing to gear up business expansion in the
Mainland China

Earned ISO 9001 certification (Zhuhai Outsourcing Delivery Excellence Center) and
ISO 27001 IT Security Management System (ISMS) Certification to further enhance
service level

Customised various kinds of innovative applications to cater the diverse demand from
both public and commercial sector

Supported its regional clients in building data centers and adopting related services
such as IT infrastructure and managed services

Scored significant wins from the IT infrastructure business continually

FRZ2EEPLREHUAZZEERLAERAE
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BECEAMREREBDSEARE

2013 Outlooks R

Focus on private cloud and continue to capitalise regional cloud computing trends,
e.g. “Cloud Valley” in Taiwan

Focus on providing a wide spectrum of innovative solutions and explore niche
solution which can enhance user experience

Leverage domain knowledge in different industries to strengthen and create a pool
of intellectual property (IP) products

Strengthen ASL'’s capabilities through mergers and acquisition at the opportune time
Further invest in its data center business in Greater China

Focus on Hong Kong market while overseas subsidiaries will continue to develop their
business independently to further ASL’s business expansion in Southeast Asia

Focus our business into several major areas, such as hardware delivery service,
software delivery service and self-owned IP products

Continue to further human resource integration, implement cost-effective measures,
enhance service quality, forge close ties with regional suppliers and create greater
synergies with Teamsun
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Corporate Information
NCIE-¥ =

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LAl Yam Ting, Ready (Vice Chairman)

HUI Wing Choy, Henry (Chief Executive Officer)

LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon

LAU Ming Chi, Edward (resigned on 1st February 2013)
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HU Liankui (Chairman)
WANG Weihang
CHEN Zhaohui (resigned on 20th June 2012)
Z0U Zhiying (appointed on 20th June 2012 and
resigned on 30th November 2012)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YOUNG Meng Ying
LU Jiaqi
XU Peng

COMPANY SECRETARY

LAU Ming Chi, Edward (resigned on 1st February 2013)
CHAN Chung Lei, Joan (appointed on 1st February 2013)

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The HongKong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

SOLICITORS

Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
Appleby

AUDITORS

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited

HITESE

BEE(FEE)

FEOK B (7T A )

BIgE (R -FE—=4#_H— HEF)

FHITESE

il EIE YD)

THM

MREAME (W = FE— N H =+ HE(F)

BERR-—FE—=—FNA-FHEZIR
RZFE—ZF+—H=+HEFF)

BYFHITESE

15 R B

[ 32 B

"

NAEIWE

B (R —F—=4#—H— HFF)
BRAR(R-—E—=ZF_-F—HEZT)

FERART
EBLBERRTARAR
A

AR BRI
BIOEEEG A

7% 4]
HA(EH) BB EBHERAR



PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Management (Bermuda) Ltd
Argyle House, 41a Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 771

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS

15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Annual Report 2012 4 % | Automated Systems Holdings Limited & #) & 4t & @ & R A 7]

Corporate Information
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Financial Calendar
1% B

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT ¥& 1 &

04, 2012 08,2012 03,2013

FIRST QUARTER INTERIM ANNUAL

(for the three months ended (for the six months ended (for the year ended

31st March 2012) 30th June 2012) 31st December 2012)
26th April 2012 22nd August 2012 20th March 2013
E—ZFE R HA FE

(BE—%——F (BzE_%F——F (BE—%F——_%F+_A

i S i

DIVIDEND f& E

06, 2013

Proposed final dividend payment (5.0 HK cents per share)
11th June 2013

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS E{Z 138 iR 1938 5 &2

05, 2013 05,2013

10th May 2013 to 15th May 2013 23rd May 2013 to 28th May 2013

T =5RA+BHE-_T—=FRA+HAH T =FRAA-+t=HE-_Z—=FRA=-F\H

D

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING REBAFKE

05, 2013

15th May 2013
—ET—=%RA+HAH

—
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Financial Summary
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RESULTS
E
For the
For the For the nine months
year ended year ended ended
EYEDIICIETE  31st December  31st December For the year ended
2012 2011 2010 31st March
it Sl HZ-T——F HE-T-TF HE=A=T—HIEFE
Rl +-F-+-8 t+-A=t-H 2010 2009
fl:3: 4 IHFE IENEA ZT-%F ZZTNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT T FEL FHL FAT
(restated)
E21))
Continuing operations BESEEY
Revenue WA 1,673,279 1,537,328 994,509 1,329,982 1,360,988
Profit before income tax BB AR 47,701 45,110 44,181 53,617 43,262
Income tax expense FERRAY (6,507) (294) (9,648) (9,857) (9,423)
Profit from continuing operations REBBERLER R 41,19 44,816 34,533 43,760 33,839
Discontinued operations BRLEREER
Profit from discontinued operations REDRIEEEER 2GR - - - 72,598 8,812
Profit for the year/period attributable to A2 RIRAE B ARE(L
equity holders of the Company & /N a7 41,194 44,816 34,533 116,358 42,651
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
P =
EERAERE
At 31st December At 31st March
R+=A=1+-A R=A=1+-H
2012 2011 2010 2010 2009
—2-cf “E——F —Z-TF —2-%F —ZTNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT FHT FEL THL FHT
(restated)
(E731)
Total assets BEE 1,044,218 909,247 820,799 830,861 883,562
Total liabilities 2afk 470,216 401,620 363,558 424,79 352,066
574,002 507,627 457,241 406,065 531,496
Equity attributable to RRAREFHEA
equity holders of the Company JEEHE S

Total equity i 574,002 507,627 457,241 406,065 531,496
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Chairman’s Statement
FRERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present to the shareholders the annual report of Automated Systems
Holdings Limited (“ASL"” or the “Company"”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2012.

For the year ended 31st December 2012, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$1,673.3 million, an increase of 8.8% when compared with the
corresponding period in 2011. For the year ended 31st December 2012,
profit before income tax was HK$47.7 million, an increase of 5.7% when
compared with the corresponding period in 2011. The Group maintained
a healthy financial position and its cash balance as at 31st December
2012 was approximately HK$116.7 million.

During the year, the Group experienced a steady business and persisted
to fulfil its commitment to service excellence. To offer customers with
more professional and value-added services, the Group has invested
additional resources to build a talent pool with a view to nurturing
high calibre workforce through talent training. Meanwhile, the Group
was awarded a number of certifications in different IT areas, fully
demonstrating the Group’s competence in offering IT solutions. Such IT
certifications further strengthened the Group’s leading position as the
outstanding one-stop IT services provider.

Combining Teamsun's strengths in cloud
computing and experts of the Group, the
Group expects to provide customers in the
region with the leading cloud solutions.

BAEEBARNRERAE T EMNE S EAK
SENERAT EEASRATFIEM
BENTBWHAR o

HU Liankui Chairman

ABE T /%

RAANZEREREZS MANBREEREDREAE
BERRAR([BEBREA/IKARA]) REHBEA
AlA&EEEEzE-_T——F+-_A=+—A81
FEMNEFER -

HE-_ZT——F+-_A=Z+—HLFE £X&£H
#1540 A 1,673,300,000/8 70 + =T — — F A H
HN8.8% - BME_E——F+_A=+—HILF
& 5 % BT 15 8 510% %1 547,700,000 70 * 8= F
——FEBEN5T% c REBH M BRI LR
R —F+-A=+—HNRESEHY
/116,700,00078 JT °

RERN AEEEBRE —WREETELR
Bk - RAEPREHEEFXERABERY K
SEBBRERBIATE - HEFEBAAFINIA
BEBAAS - BEREE  AEBEXEEMR
REZ LIRS ZEIABZER  RORELEE
REEAMKBATRNES £ FPEELE
BEAERE N WA EMNRRBHEERS
EEHAL o
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The Group has always been striving to enhance its service quality.
Following the accreditation of the ISO 9001 Certification in procurement,
export management, inventory and logistics management and the

ISO 20000 IT Service Management Certification in 2011, the Zhuhai
Outsourcing Delivery Excellence Center (ODEC) of the Group was also
awarded the ISO 9001:2008 Certification in July 2012 for its management
of software development services. This certification was a testament to
the well-managed operations of ODEC in maintaining the effectiveness
of software development process, manifesting our ability to consistently
provide high-quality services that meet local and multi-national
companies’ demands on project deployment in Greater China. Moreover,
in April 2012, the Group was awarded the ISO 27001 IT Security
Management System (ISMS) Certification, which are essential standards
for managing the change and control in the process of IT services delivery
for the Security Operation Center of the Group. These international
standard accreditations can fully demonstrate the capabilities of ASL in
the provision of all-round and advanced IT services and solutions, so as to
satisfy the business needs of customers.

During the year, the Group continued to partner with world-wide
renowned IT vendors in promoting various solutions and services. To
establish closer connection with the industry and explore business
opportunities, the Group also participated in many large-scale IT
conferences and events in the Asia Pacific region. Besides, the Group
became the first Oracle partner with specialisation of Exadata in Hong
Kong and was authorised to resell and promote Oracle Exadata in order

to optimise the professional services of Oracle.

It is noteworthy that the Group has dedicated great efforts in the
development of cloud computing solutions. In September 2012, the
Group attended “The 5th CIO Executive Summit” to grasp the business
opportunities arising from cloud computing. The Summit gathered IT
leaders from various industries, facilitating communications for the Group
with the industry. During the Summit, ASL showcased its comprehensive
and one-stop services to target customers from banking and finance,
public utilities, retail and hospitality sectors, and shared with customers
our views on IT solutions and cloud computing deployment.

Chairman’s Statement

EFE®|E

AEE—BERNIRARGER T ——FH&
FEISO 9001 BEHE  HAERE EFEEVMRE
7 IS0 200008 A IR E B 2 MIBRER -

BT BR8 S #) 22 5 H D (ODEC) - /R EE H ¥t
FRERBEERENKYE R-E-—_FLtANKE

ISO 9001 : 20082 ° A REZF 7 ODEC M2
E%i”%’]ﬁ@%@#ﬁﬂ SRS BRESE

BN ERERERRE  WREAPERR
Zlitm&i’élm%%’ﬁéia HEOFRK Lo =F
—Z—FMA - AEBINEREISO 27001 BB E
2ERRHISMS)RFE AR EBALEB LR
BEPORBEMMEREBE R EERE M
FINEZRE ZFEZEARZENRBRIR
MEBRFIERE2 ML EEAR BRSNS
RWOEEN  RERFPHEBEX -

RAFE AEBEEEGRZELRELZNE
AR BEHETAIE HESERRIRRR
% RE2EGAEANZSEEMBHRITENRE
CTEREY  HERBUENBEENEE - UH
HhE# o c REB K AE B S B Exadata &
EHERENTFEXSIERNY  VESRESIHR
HEE B X Exadata - ABL R B X FEERY °

ERf—RNRASEEHRNEEEZWHAERR
¥ -RZZT—ZFNA AEEEELHEE
AEBARREFHIEE€(The 5th CIO Executive
Summit) * EEZImETHMTROESE - RS H
EEFTEENEAREERANER  REKXE
EREANIR - SLEABZHAMNRERITNE
BE AHEX TENRBENEEREFS B
BE-—UWANZ2ARYE BEFHSZEAR R
ARARKBEZmAENER °
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®HE

In addition, CSA Automated (Macau) Limited and i-Sprint Innovations Pte
Ltd (“i-Sprint”), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group, presented and
analysed the way of moving forward to cloud computing for enterprises
in the region at the “Express Way of Building Cloud Service” conference
and exhibition held in Macau. The event gathered many leading cloud
service providers, including EMC, F5 Networks, Ruijie Networks, VMware,
Informatica, Imperva, as well as the ultimate holding company of the
Group, Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”) to share

with the Macau enterprises and government departments the latest
developments in cloud computing, the best practice of cloud deployment
as well as cloud security in order to further promote Macau's business on
cloud development.

The Group continued to maintain a close collaboration with Teamsun.

Combining Teamsun'’s strengths in cloud computing and experts of the
Group, the Group expects to provide customers in the region with the
leading cloud solutions.

In view of the importance of IT security for enterprise development
nowadays, the Group strives to capture every favourable opportunity
arising from it. ASL Taiwan was invited to attend the “2012 SafeNet
Data Protection Solution Day” organised by SafeNet in April 2012.

In the event, i-Sprint took this opportunity to introduce its strong
authentication management solution to the attendees and explained
how it helped customers to overcome the increasingly challenging IT
security issues. Besides, i-Sprint also joined “The International Conference
on Cyber Security & Cyber Terrorism” held in Singapore, which
gathered with professionals across Asia. As the premier Credential and
Access Management Solutions provider, i-Sprint shared its insights on
authentication management and cyber security, fully demonstrating the
Group's capabilities in delivering IT security solutions to customers in the

region.

In addition to business expansion, the Group is earnest to perform
corporate social responsibilities. Apart from continuing to be recognised
as a Caring Company, the Group also collaborated with the subordinate
units of Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council to organise a
wide range of community events, including workshop on professional
resume (B EBFER T EH) and “Recruit for Tomorrow” (B H 375 A1)
recruitment fair, to support community development and contribute to
the society.

B AEE2ERELMBAREHERSR
CRF) B A A K& i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
(Mi-Sprint D B BN BPIRITZIBREEE
EREICERERE  BEANDEINER
Tk EBRZELEEmBREEER B
EMC - F5 Networks * Ruijie Networks * VMware *
Informatica * Imperva * LA N 78 & B &% 454 I8 A &)
IEREBERKBERDERAA ([EBRAKL
MURPIR N ERIKFEIIEEESHEENTN
BR HEERHENEEER  BiRREEM
SR8 EHRERFIEBETH I ENER -

AEETHREREBANETSE -BAEBX
BERERAETENENERNEENEEAS
REARBRATPIEHALENERIE

BEREMBRELZ2ABRSEEERNEER
B AKENERLELEERK BBRENE
EYNRERBR2 M- — —4F Y AM SafeNet £
WZRONELXHEREBRANEHATE] - R2RH
& - i-Sprint LK EREGEBRLS BN
REEEFR AR EFPRRERHRENE
R PRE o BESN - i-Sprint TRZ B R HT AN SR 1T
ZIPBEENPERANEIEER S € %E
EmME S EA - i-Sprint {E At R R LK
ARG RMEER - ’ﬁiﬁgmmﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%
ZEMBIRRE AOBRTASERREARTFR
HEMB T2 H R 8

RIEEREBI  AEETALBILEMLEER
T REBERITLAEAEBBEEEN  JTESB
BEASEMNGEBE THEBE TR EITRE
EE BREEXBERIY  [BEHERIFH
X¥EES IBEMRER O HEHFG -
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Chairman’s Statement

FERSE
During the year, Mr. Chen Zhaohui and Ms. Zou Zhiying resigned from RERN - BREABEERPERLTEHERNQTIE
their positions as Non-Executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Lau Ming HTESZ B EEENE T =F_/F—H
Chi, Edward, also resigned from his position as an Executive Director of BETARFNPTESE - AAEAREELAEE
the Company with effect from 1st February 2013. | would like to express FIEBERMERBRBERTIHE °
my thanks to them for their contribution and dedication to the Group.
Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to my fellow B AAZERNEETCRLCHBHRB R R~
directors for their dedicated services. On behalf of the Board, | would also B NTREEZSENE2BEIREEXEBKEEM
like to thank all staff for their whole-hearted contributions to the business MHBOEH  BUARLHE YR PINESL
development of the Group, and our business partners and shareholders BHEEBRERFRNLETFAERR HNZHE -

for their support during the year.

HU Liankui =
Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 20th March 2013 B8 —ET—=F=ZA=+H
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

THEH RS

Financial results

For the year ended 31st December 2012, the revenue of the Group was
HK$1,673.3 million, higher by 8.8% compared to the same period last
year.

For the year ended 31st December 2012, the product sales and service
revenue were HK$905.0 million and HK$768.3 million, increasing by
0.6% and 20.5% respectively compared with the corresponding period
last year. Product sales and service revenue contributed 54.1% and
45.9% to total revenue respectively, compared to 58.5% and 41.5% with
the corresponding period last year.

For the year ended 31st December 2012, commercial and public sector
sales contributed 46.6% and 53.4% to revenue respectively, compared to
39.9% and 60.1% for the corresponding period in 2011.

Gross profit margin and profit after income tax for the full year of 2012
were 12.1% and HK$41.2 million, higher by 1.0% and lower by 8.1%
respectively compared to the corresponding period last year. The increase
in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increased share of the
Group's service business during the year. In addition, other income was
recorded as a result of a supplemental deed entered into during the year
to lower the consideration for the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd (“i-Sprint”) to SGD6.8 million.
Portions of the increase in gross profit margin and other income have
been offset by the increase in operating costs.

KA EEREBRRERS
B ERE M
150 0 38 AT 22 1 08
BEME -

We will continue to work closely with
Teamsun on promoting its IP-based products
and capitalise on the opportunities to
strengthen and create a pool of IP products
for the Group.

1E I H
CERBMETRETERE
BRI EBRABE

HUI Wing Choy, Henry Chief Executive Officer
FF kB 1T EUAE R

B ¥E
BE-_Z——+-_A=+—HILEE &X&E
B2 W A A1,673,300,00058 5T -+ & % 4 [ HI 1240
8.8% °
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For the year ended 31st December 2012, orders newly secured by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$1,826.7 million, representing an
increase of 1.8% as compared with the corresponding period in 2011.
As of 31st December 2012, the order book balance was approximately
HK$829.8 million, an increase of HK$116.1 million compared to the last
year. The Group's net cash stood at approximately HK$116.7 million
with a working capital ratio of 1.65:1. The Group maintained a healthy
balance sheet and outstanding loans amounted to HK$2.7 million as at
31st December 2012.

Business Review

The Group’s business remained stable for the year ended 31st December
2012, and its revenue increased by 8.8% as compared to the same period
in 2011.

During the year, the Group dedicated efforts into customising various
kinds of innovative applications to cater the diverse demand among
organisations from both public and commercial sector to improve their

cost-effectiveness and enhance business performance.

In the public sector, the Group continued to make good progress in
winning and completing numerous orders in relation to applications
and cloud computing to support better public services provided by
the government. Notably, the Group was awarded a sizable project
for the implementation of an electronic recordkeeping system from a
government policy bureau in December 2012. It amplifies the Group’s
leading position in public sector remains strong.

In the private sector, the Group continued to demonstrate its capabilities
and combined its domain knowledge in various industries with the latest
technology to address customers’ needs. Such orders included a turnkey
mobile queuing system completed by Guangzhou Automated Systems
Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) for Maxim’s Caterers Limited's

55 Genki Sushi and Sen-ryo branches in Hong Kong, thus bringing new
dining experience for consumers in the marketplace. The Group recorded
a significant growth in the number of clientele across various industries,
illustrating our strategy of focusing on the development of the aforesaid

expertise is on the right track.

The Group spared no efforts in supporting our regional clients in building
data centers and adopting related services such as IT infrastructure and
managed services. Following the success in the first half in 2012 by
extending our managed services coverage from Hong Kong, Macau, and
Thailand to Mainland China, the Group awarded a new order from a
government authority to provide ITIL-compliant office automation and
help desk services in September 2012.

REEMERRAA

Chief Executive Officer's Statement

THRERRE
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
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During the period, our strategy in capturing regional demand for various
solutions yielded encouraging results. In particular, the Group was

able to seize the opportunities created from the rising security demand
among organisations in public and commercial sector in the region. The
Group was successful in integrating our intellectual property (IP)-based
product (which is AccessMatrix™, the product from i-Sprint) into other
market-ready products together with the Group’s services, so as to offer
a total solution. Such success included the project to support Bank of
China (Hong Kong) Limited to enhance its Internet banking services,

and winning a project from a government related organisation for the
provision of password control management solution in December 2012.
In addition, numerous sizable new orders were gained from certain
leading banks, telecom giants, hospitals and public utility organisations
in the region. The security business related to Security Operation Center
(SOC) which set up in April 2012 also showed satisfactory progress.

In December 2012, the Group further garnered an order from a
telecommunications giant to provide IT monitoring services, making such
services spanned across more industries, from government departments,
financial institutions, transportation, to telecommunications sector. To
strengthen our competitive edge in security, the Group is in extensive
discussion with customers on our bundling services of SOC together with
data center services which officially launched in November 2012.

Furthermore, the infrastructure service’'s performance was also
noteworthy. Armed with regional services capabilities, the Group
completed a cross-countries infrastructure project for an international
apparel company that we won in June 2012. The Group also
demonstrated its capabilities in exploring niche infrastructure market
by implementing a low latency network infrastructure for a financial
institution in Hong Kong.

The Group continued its earlier success in promoting IP-based products
in the second half of the year. Subsequent to customising a system
monitoring solution of Mocha Software (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (“Mocha
Software”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Teamsun Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Teamsun”), our ultimate holding company, for Wonderland
Nurseygoods Co. Ltd in Taiwan, the Group gained traction by offering
infrastructure for data information management system for a public
company focused on optical fiber cable business and assisting it in setting
up a optical fiber network for the Taiwan Government in November
2012. In this project, i-Sprint’s AccessMatrix™, Mocha Software's system
monitoring tools and market-ready products were blended together as a
total offering.

SERBANETNRBATRORAFTR @ 1hF
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Outlook and Prospects

This year marks ASL’s 40th anniversary. We strongly believe that with
our solid foundations in Hong Kong, we are in a well position to further
expand our business within the Asia Pacific region.

In terms of geographical distribution, our business will gradually be
divided into a Mainland China and Hong Kong segment as well as an
overseas segment with the goal of providing tailored services for clients in
respective regions and satisfying their different IT demands. Subsequent
to the opening of Shanghai office in September 2012, the Group’s
subsidiary, i-Sprint, also established i-Sprint (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd.
in Beijing as its Mainland China operation headquarters in November
2012 and commenced operations in January 2013 to further gear up our
business expansion in Mainland China. Therefore, after years of ceaseless
effort, we are glad to see our services locations are expanding across
Asia Pacific, and we expect to provide more premium services to our
customers in the future.

In future, ASL will continue to devote itself to developing the Hong Kong
market riding on its 40-year well-established operation and accumulated
technology throughout the years. Cloud computing has not only brought
about changes in the business mode of IT industry and its servicing model
(for example, payment by demand has enhanced the efficiency, security
and cost-effectiveness of IT resources), but also created greater business
opportunities, which laid a solid foundation for the Group to reach its

next milestone.

Regarding the overseas market, the “Cloud Valley” development plan in
Taiwan, for instance, will complete the construction of its laaS, PaaS, and
Saas three-layered cloud computing system between 2012 and 2014,
thus establishing the largest hub for the cloud computing industry in
Taiwan. Therefore, aside from focusing on its business in Hong Kong,
subsidiaries of the Group located in overseas regions, such as Taiwan

and Thailand, will also continue to leverage the business foundation and
technical reserve of the Group’s Hong Kong headquarters to develop their
businesses independently in their respective regions, which will further
ASL's business expansion in Southeast Asia.

On the other hand, we will focus our business into several major areas,
such as hardware delivery service, software delivery service and self-
owned IP products, and continue to invest respective technological and
management resources with the goal of achieving a greater development.
At the same time, we will continue to work closely with Teamsun on
promoting its IP-based products and capitalise on the opportunities to
strengthen and create a pool of IP products for the Group by leveraging
our domain knowledge in different industries and replicating these
success to other customers with similar needs.

gt M A R A A

Chief Executive Officer's Statement
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With the surge in demand for data center in Greater China, the Group
sees huge opportunities lie ahead. The Group has continuously enhanced
its service capability since last year and will continue to invest more

resources to refine its services and to bring substantial value.

The Group will continue to focus on providing a wide spectrum of
innovative solutions, including security and business intelligence.
Besides, we are actively exploring niche solution which can enhance
user experience with target customers from hospitality, retail and
entertainment in Greater China. By leveraging Hong Kong as a center of
excellence and forging stronger regional vendor alliance, the Group is
endeavored to promote our solution success to more customers in other
regions.

In anticipation of the growing opportunities brought by the cloud
computing trend, the Group has not only set a clear market positioning
with focus on private cloud, but has also achieved track records. Building
on the many accomplishments made in 2012, the Group will further
expand this business by investing more resources; for example, using IP
developed from existing projects and replicating it for other customers,
forging strategic partnership with product suppliers to integrate self-
owned and Teamsun'’s products with market-ready products to provide a
common services.

Moreover, the Group will continue to further its human resource
integration so as to move up the value chain, optimise process with cost-
effective measures for higher operational efficiency, enhance our service
quality and forge close ties with regional suppliers. The Group undertook
an acquisition project in 2012 to acquire the entire issued equity of
MDCL-Frontline Solutions Limited, the parent company of Mocha
Software. Although the acquisition had lapsed and was not completed,
the business of the Company and our co-operation with Mocha Software
was not affected. In order to accommodate the future development

of the Group, it may strengthen its capabilities through mergers and
acquisition at the opportune time. Looking forward, with different
growth initiatives benefitting the Group effectively in progress, the Group
remains positive about the prospects of its businesses.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31st December 2012, the Group's total assets of HK$1,044.2
million were financed by current liabilities of HK$439.0 million,
non-current liabilities of HK$31.2 million and shareholders’ equity
of HK$574.0 million. The Group had a working capital ratio of
approximately 1.65:1.
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As at 31st December 2012, the Group had an aggregate composite
banking facility from banks of approximately HK$137.8 million

(2011: HK$110.9 million). The Group has pledged leasehold land and
buildings and investment properties in an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$226.3 million (2011: HK$178.6 million) and restricted
bank deposits of approximately HK$4.0 million (2011: HK$0.9 million)
for banking facilities and performance bonds granted to the Group
respectively. The performance bonds issued by the Group to customers
as security of contracts were approximately HK$55.0 million as at 31st
December 2012 (2011: HK$32.2 million). The Group’s gearing ratio was
0.5% as at 31st December 2012 (2011: nil).

Treasury Policies

The Group generally financed its operations with internally-generated
resources and credit facilities provided by banks. Bank facilities available
for the Group include trust receipt loans, overdrafts and term loans.
The interest rates of most of them are fixed by reference to the
respective countries’ Interbank Offer Rate. The bank deposits are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States dollars
("USD"). The borrowing is denominated in New Taiwan dollars.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in USD, HKD and
Singapore dollars (“SGD"). Foreign exchange exposure to USD of

the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the policy of the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region to peg the
HKD to the USD remains in effect. There was no material exposure to
fluctuations in exchange rates, and therefore no related hedging financial
instrument was applied during the year ended 31st December 2012
(2011: same).

As at 31st December 2012, if SGD had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against the HKD with all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$358,000 (2011: HK$674,000) higher/
lower, mainly a result of the foreign exchange difference on translation of
SGD denominated assets and liabilities.

To manage the foreign currency risk arising from SGD, the Group had
entered into forward foreign exchange contracts. A gain of HK$254,000
(2011: HK$21,000) was recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December 2012, bank deposits held as security for banking
facilities and performance bonds amounted to approximately HK$4.0

million (2011: HK$0.9 million). At 31st December 2012, performance

bonds of approximately HK$55.0 million (2011: HK$32.2 million) have
been issued by the Group to customers as security of contracts.

Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods supplied to the
Group amounted to approximately HK$44.5 million as at 31st December
2012 (2011: HK$44.6 million). The amount utilised against goods
supplied as at 31st December 2012 which was secured by the corporate
guarantee was approximately HK$0.9 million (2011: HK$1.2 million).

Capital Commitments
As at 31st December 2012, the contracted capital commitments of the
Group were approximately HK$0.4 million (2011: HK$0.4 million).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the five largest customers
and single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately
23.7% and 9.1%, respectively, of the Group’s revenue. The five

largest suppliers and single largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 36.2% and 10.4%, respectively, of the Group's purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2012 did a director, an
associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) has an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers
or suppliers.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31st December 2012, the Group, excluding its associates,
employed 1,779 permanent and contract staff in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Taiwan, Macau, Thailand, Singapore and Malaysia. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, working
experience and the prevailing market conditions. Bonuses are granted
on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory
provident fund, insurance, medical coverage and share options scheme.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 23rd May
2013 to 28th May 2013, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
22nd May 2013. The dividend warrants will be despatched on or before
11th June 2013.

2013 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting

on 15th May 2013, and the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 10th May 2013 to 15th May 2013, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
effected. In order to qualify for the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 9th May 2013.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2012, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the review of
the audited annual results.

By Order of the Board
HUI Wing Choy, Henry

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20th March 2013

Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

THREBE

EENRERODBFER

ARRBR - E—=FRA-_+=HE_T—=
FREAZ+TN\B(EEMBBEEN) LHHEY
EHEREELFE RN HEBINTERERG
BEELFE ATRHARBBERARE ZE
BoMBBEZZBEPXMHEREBBRESLER
T —=FRACFTZHTTUR =T OR®EE
ARRAZBHBFERELEERBEARAR (M
IAFEET2E ABEER285 & HEE T 02618)
PEELFE REEENR T —Z=ZF A +—
Ak 2RI & & FRE -

—E-ZERRBFKRE

ARBENR - E—=FERATAALRTEERE
BERKE UEER-_Z—=ZFRAA+HEZ_F
—=FAAt+HEE(EEMEREEAN) LHHY
ERERRELFE  RUHBETTSHIERG
BEERFE - ATHALREERIBEFAE
EREERE MECEZZBFXHEREH
BEXNER-_ZTE—=FAANBTTERE=+%5
AIZEEARAZRHDBEFETESESRERER
AR(MUABEBEFEFRER22KCEEFR
D26 MBELFE -

BE LEIFEE LTRSS

HE-_Z——H#+-A=+—HItFE A2 7
FETMMEARMERE  LEXNBLEARAA
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FEH(BREHNEEREFERETER -
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Activity Highlights

B

Apr P H 2012

ASL Taiwan participates in the “2012 SafeNet
Data Protection Solution Day” to introduce
methods of secure access, transmission
encryption and how to ensure data security
with multi-transaction channels.

ASLE B2 10120128 %t 5758 7 )0 2% B 53
g MEEESZTNNREFI - FE&HN
ERNMERZETSEEBNEMRZE -

E AR AR | Annual Report 2012 F ¥

Apr P H 2012

ASL opens Security Operation Center in Hong
Kong to provide customers in the region
with around-the-clock and internationally-
recognised managed security protection and
services.
BEERANEEARL2EEYL  RE
NE PR 2 XIERBFRZ AN R 2 RE
MERRE -

=
Security
. Operation

May & A 2012

Staff of ASL's headquarters and regional
offices gather together at AsiaWorld-Expo to
join the company’s annual dinner.
BERMEA R PERNE TER S
NEEE  2EQATNNEAFRE °

Jun ;< H 2012

ASL’s Zhuhai Outsourcing Delivery Excellence
Center is awarded with ISO 20000 IT Service
Management Certification.

B &) R 450 X8 2 850 #) 32 {5 # 4 (ODEC)
FEARISO 200008 AR X IR TS B R RFE -

Jul A 2012

ASL Macau shares the latest cloud computing
technologies and insights on cloud computing
development in China to enterprises at ASL
Macau Solution Day 2012.
BERMERMD DTN E SRR
RARBERENDZHRIGN B HELR
BREERBENTEAMMER -

Aug /\H 2012

ASL kicks off a series of training programmes
by organising a 4-day leadership programme
for its senior executives. Two experienced
human resources tutors at the training pose a
photo together with ASL's senior executives.
BHERFARERITRAERTRHAIR
AR - ERRFEINNFR - EER
RN E R A B IRBRDEASLE &
THRAB—RER -




Aug /\H 2012

i-Sprint joins the “International Conference
on Cyber Security & Cyber Terrorism”

at Singapore to present its strong
AccessMatrix™ authentication solution to
enterprises.

i-Sprint2 INET AN B 1T 2 [ M8 4% 2 2 R A%
B EEERSE]  MEENBEBRD

AccessMatrix™R 78 fif R 5 & o
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Sep LA 2012

ASL brings regional customers to join large-
scale Teamsun IT Service Forum in Beijing.
BYERBERATFPFSEEBFRAKAEILR
RUMERHBRRBEES -

Activity Highlights
EEER

Sep fLA 2012

ASL celebrates the opening of the new office
in Shanghai.
BRRGENLENTNEZRE

Sep LA 2012

ASL joins the 5th CIO Executive Summit as
diamond sponsor and shares its views on
cloud computing deployment and introduces
its cloud services offerings.
EBRGAEOREDENFGHL2EER
EEANREHES MERDEZHEET
HMEBEHENRBENBEEREFTORS -

Nov +— A 2012

ASL enlightens delegates with the latest
virtualisation solutions at VMware Solution
Symposium.

B B RS RVMwarefif R 77 SR & & BL 3 L
BEABESTNERBRLER -

Nov +—AH 2012

ASL Thailand partners with Oracle to
organise workshop themed with “Business
Intelligence” at Mahasarakham University
(MSU).

BERFGHRE D QA E Oracled £+ £
Mahasarakham University (MSU)E i 7 — &
FTERBMEEERRARINHANE -
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RFAMEZERAL

HONG KONG CUSTOMER
BEREF

SCOPE OF WORK
SR

Government B fF

Several government departments

S (8 B AP P

Provision of applications and cloud-enabled platform

REBARALREZHRBEFE

One of the government bureaus

— KU B8PS

Implementation of an electronic recordkeeping system

EREFEERE RS

A government authority

— I B P

Provision of ITIL-compliant office automation and help desk services

REERITILONR A E B B LKA RS

A government related organisation

— & BT 4 B R

Provision of password control management solution
RUTBIEHERRBRTR

The Central Cyber Government Office (CCGO) of
the Office of the Government Chief Information
Officer
BREAMREAERAZTNEBERNTEE

Provision of IT Security Monitoring Services and Information Security Incident
Response Support Services for the Central Cyber Government Office (CCGO)
of the Office of the Government Chief Information Officer

RBEREANREENRAENEBRNAERHEAMBRRRERRE

The Government Logistics Department (GLD)
BB E

IT Security Monitoring Services for the Government Logistics Department (GLD)

RBEMRREEREEARRRRESERS

The Rating and Valuation Department

EMMEMLES

The Security Risk Assessment, Audit and IT Security Monitoring Services for the
Rating and Valuation Department

REMPEHEZSRHRLARIG B REAMBRRZERERSE

A well-known university
—EHKRE

Set up a data network for a new campus

RANRE R BB
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERFEZEEZESHN

HONG KONG CUSTOMER SCOPE OF WORK
BREF B E

Financial Services and Insurance £ &R & R i&

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited Support Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited to enhance its Internet banking

RERIT(EB)ERAA services
MR BERIT(BEAE)BRARIERM LRTIRS

A financial institution Took part in setting up a data center to support the financial institution’s

— RS cross-territories business and development in Mainland
SEBUBBETOULEZEFPRANMNERES LER

A financial institution Implementation of low latency network infrastructure

— SR AR E R A AR BT AR

Telecommunications £

A local communications operator A multi-million dollar project for upgrading the firewall in order to cope with
i — KBS ER the increasing number of 3G service users
BEHABETHNEE - REERD A - AR E B g me36R% A
F#E
A telecommunications giant Provision of IT monitoring services
—EMER RRHEARREERE

General Commerce B%

Maxim’s Caterers Limited Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,

ELRMARAF completed a turnkey mobile queuing system for Maxim’s Caterers Limited’s
55 Genki Sushi and Sen-ryo branches in Hong Kong, thus bringing new dining
experience for consumers in the marketplace
BMREEXEEERMEERATA(ARRZMEBAR)RELEMERA
AR TSR BEEN TREARTAEADETK — AR RBEFETER
BRHEBEERGHOAERR

An international clothing company An infrastructure services project which covered 7 countries in the Asia-Pacific
— A1 B B AR & 2 &) region and 3 cities in Mainland China

—IEBE M ROK T R 78 B 5 A K B R BE 3 ) 5 B B 2 1E A
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERFEZEEZESHN

OVERSEAS CUSTOMERS SCOPE OF WORK
"INE EREE

Mainland China R EI it

A transport operator Took part in setting up a data center

—EREERD LB HBEF O

An entertainment company Set up infrastructure for its Enterprise Resources Planning System
—IREEN T RECEERREBAGREER R

Macau 2P

An information technology company Installation of computer equipments at a Hong Kong data center
—BMERAA REPREBNHEBEFRLLREEMRE

Taiwan &%

An T distributor ranking first in Asia Pacific An Oracle systems integration project in the tens of millions of dollars

and third in the world —EEEHTEIHNTREXRFEEKIER

—RDARHEBRE—  2HHELE=®

BHABROHEE

Wonderland Nurserygoods Co. Ltd. Provision of a system monitoring solution for its operations in Dongguan and
HAFMEXERMNDEBRAA Taipei

RE-—EAREREZELRGAEEBHNRGERBART R

A financial institution which provides credit card  Provision of security solution to enhance its Internet banking services
information services to all banks in Taiwan RHTEEATRARAER EBRITRS
—AAREMERITRHEEARENIBRRE

B & RS

A public company focused on optical fiber cable  Offering infrastructure for data information management system to assist the
—MEEHREXBTEEEHALEZEEE  company to set up an optical fiber network for the Taiwan Government
RHEBBEAMERRAGNERREUARS BRI EL LHME
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Major Contracts Secured in the Year

RERFEZEEZESHN

OVERSEAS CUSTOMERS SCOPE OF WORK
"INEE SREE

Thailand %=El

A member of a Singapore-based brokerage group Provision of i-Sprint's security products to ensure that customers can safely
(The group has business coverage across 13 access their internal systems and are compliant with audit requirements
countries) RE-Sprint T2 ERUBREFALE2EEANLRES  WHAFFTEK
—EKAMEESEEKE (ZEEN T = ERR

BERER)

A leading global shipping company Provision of onsite support services

—fEAZIRE LA EHER R RHUEMIERS

Malaysia 53R =

Malaysia 5th largest banking group Supply of i-Sprint’s AccessMatrix™ products for the end-to-end encryption and

—RERADESRNRITE protection of e-banking channels applications which supports 500,000 users
7% H i B i I 38 R AR 7 B F iR 1T R 4T E A A2 FUAR fHi-Sprint AccessMatrix™
Em 0 R A ER S X #E500,0008 P

A Forbes Global 2000 company Supply of i-Sprint’s AccessMatrix™ products for Enterprise Single Sign-on and
— K48 2 2 $£200038 2 7 protection of application passwords
12 Hi-Sprint AccessMatrix™ME BT EE—EANMREERARANE
5

Singapore 70

A premier multi-modal public transport Provision of ASL's security operation center services
service provider REBHEANZ2EEPOLRE

—REBAAHEGREHES

23



24

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &) Z & £ B AR 2 7 | Annual Report 2012 4 3§

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EZNEREEAEBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{TE=

Mr. LAl Yam Ting, Ready

RBEEELE

Vice Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors

Aged 60

Graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor of Science degree (Honours) in 1976
Director of certain subsidiaries of the Company

Chief Executive Officer of the Company from 2002 to
2011

General Manager of Hong Kong Operations of the

ERRAEEEZEER

WEF RN TR
R—NERFEENBEEPXXKRE  3F
FEE(RE)ELTEN
ARRETHBRARZES
R-TE-_FE_T——FAARAZ
THBE
R—NAN—FE-ZTT_FRAEEZ

Group from 1991 to 2002 BEEEBRKE

. Joined the Group in 1976 and appointed as a Director . R—AERNFNBEREERR—ANLE
of the Company in 1997 FEZAAARBIZES

Mr. HUI Wing Choy, Henry

ATk BT ST A

Chief Executive Officer of the Company AT ZITHAR

. Aged 47 . WEM+ 5%

Graduated from the Oregon State University in the
United States of America with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Electrical and Electronic Engineering in 1991
and a Master of Science Degree in Computer and
Electronic Engineering in 1994

Director of certain subsidiaries of the Company
Former Senior Vice President of Sales, Hong Kong,

EERZEHRHMAMNLIKRE R
— NN FEERERREFIRESE
BETEM RN - AN NFEERREN
REFIRBRLEN
ARAETHEBRAZESE
BRAEARBZMBARIBEB AR (FE)
ERARNEE AP RTPEAMEE

Macau & Mainland China at Automated Systems (H.K.) SEEFE-
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company . R—ANEFNBERAEBRR =T ——
. Joined the Group in 1994 and appointed as a Director FREZETAREARRIZES
of the Company in 2011
Mr. LEUNG Tat Kwong, Simon
SR A==
REN A
. Aged 52 . BERT %

Graduated from the California State University, Long
Beach, the United States of America with a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Business Computer Method and a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration
Appointed as a senior advisor acting on behalf of the
Company with Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Teamsun”), the ultimate holding company of the
Group in 2011

Executive Director of Pansky Technology Corporation
Ltd., a subsidiary of Teamsun

Chairman/Director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, including Chairman of i-Sprint Innovations
Pte Ltd and i-Sprint (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd and
a Director of i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd and i-Sprint
Technologies Sdn Bhd

Director and the co-founder of AsiaSoft Company
Limited

Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

B2ERZBEMMMNIABRESR -
EIBEKEAESTENRIHERE
T2
RZZE——FRZERRREADAIELL
REBREBMBERMHERA A (TEBEX
BB SRER (EBEAKRAEEZ
BREERAR)

EBRK B AR RREEARAA
ZHITEE
ARBETHBEBRBAIZERE EF -
B 4Ei-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd} %2 &l
LR R EEREERAZ ERFEIN
J%i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd &i-Sprint
Technologies Sdn Bhd~ & %

AsiaSoft Company Limited = 3& £t [7] Al
N
R_ETNFEZERRNRRZES
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{TE%=

EEREREEAEHN

Mr. LAU Ming Chi, Edward

BlspE ket

(Resigned on 1st February 2013)
(R=E—=#=F—ARE)

Former Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company

Aged 50

Graduated from Lingnan College (now known as
Lingnan University) with a Honours Diploma in
Accountancy in 1984

Director of certain subsidiaries of the Company
Associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants

BEAQRRAZHMBRERIARE

RER T

R N\mERENER B (RaE
MARE) HEGFBREXE
ARAETHBRARZES
BEGMAGZEER
REBHFARGAMAELERER

R—ANANENBARBERR - Nt

Chairman of Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Co. Ltd.

3 Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified FREZERARFAZES

Accountants in the United Kingdom
. Joined the Group in 1996 and appointed as a Director

of the Company in 1997

)= =
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ¥#{TE=E
Mr. HU Liankui
z=

BA B 2= S A&
Chairman of the Company’s Board of Directors KAREBEEE IE
. Aged 62 . WENT 5%
3 Graduated from Tsinghua University, PRC with a . BENRREEAS  BESETIRE

Master’s Degree in Management Engineering +Ef -
3 Director of a subsidiary of the Company :7_ T 4 ] <
3 Chairman and Director of Teamsun ¢ f&ﬂ \W%A\EJZ%$
. . EBRAULEFTREES

Independent Director of China Distance Education
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
New York Stock Exchange

Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

EREBERMRERIAEER
ERERHE (EROHREBROES
REMETIZBILIES
R_FZNFRZERLIRFZES

Mr. WANG Weihang

ML

Aged 46

Graduated from Tsinghua University, PRC and from the
Information and Electronic Engineering Department

of Zhejiang University, PRC with an Executive

Master’s Degree in Business Administration and a
Master’s Degree in Semi-Conductor Materials and
Microelectronic Technology respectively

Vice Chairman and President and Director of Teamsun
Sole Director of Teamsun Technology (HK) Limited, the
immediate holding company of the Group

Awarded as B E {4 E 24 H D 2K (China Software
Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur Laureate*) and
ARSI E 2 Th B A YD (China Software Industry
Prestige Award Laureate*) by China Software Industry
Association in 2009

Awarded the “Innovation Outstanding Personality of
Chinese Brand Award” in 2011

Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

HEFE M+ IR
EENPRBEABRFEMNIAEE
SEBETIRER SRBERREE
ABTHEBRT BN R GiFaEFa
WEFRMALEM
EBRARZBEERRBERES
AEBERZERAREBREBR(F
BIERRAM—EFESE
RZZZNFEFERGTEBSRE
TEREXAECERRPREAMSE

EIE N
N2 ——FRRE[ B @A
HAME]

R-BBNFEZREIRARBAZES
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EZReREBAEBN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS B #HTESE

Ms.

YOUNG Meng Ying

BHREEL T

Aged 55

Graduated from University of South Australia, Australia
and Monash University, Australia with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Administration Management and a
Master’s Degree in Practising Accounting respectively
Director of Pine Link Business Advisory Limited and Sun

BEA+TAR
8RN R K 2 KR HMonash

University * DRI A TR ERE T2
R EgstE L2
BN E B RAR A R R A E A

BERAFES

& Young Business Advisory Limited . EECHAAE ZHESEHE

D Certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of . RN EERD A G E G ETAD
Certified Public Accountants . ?i.ﬁ??%z&ﬁﬁ/\ EREEE

D Certified practicing accountant of CPA Australia . —ETNFREZEREARRZES

3 Associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators

. Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

Mr. LU Jiaqi

|z:i: A I—J /jE E

D Aged 62 . WEN TR

. Graduated from Huazhong Institute of Technology . EERFREHEFPTIERGABRERR
(currently known as Huazhong University of Science and FRE)MFPBEBEEKRSE  SRFEEL
Technology), PRC and Tsinghua University, PRC with a RRE+280FERTRETSEM
Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering and a Master’s Degree o RN EREHAER AR EFTRFAK
in Management Engineering respectively 3P *

o Chairman and Managing Director of Pearl River D R-TEZENFREERADAIZES
Distribution Limited*

. Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009

Ms. XU Peng

LN S

REX T

D Aged 56 . REFER TR

. PRC lawyer . EP é Eﬁj

. Received education at the Civil, Commercial and . —EZNFEFBRBUERERELE
Economic Law School of the China University of Political fmT BELEELASHERMRTERE
Science and Law and completed £ A S5 T4 . I REEEMEEAEERERA
712 (the postgraduate program of economic law*) in . FRARBAHEERILRMAGRE
2009 T-EZEE®ZE

o Officer and partner of Beijing Hengde Law Firm . IR EES

. Committee member of the 11th National Committee of trmHGEEMGERIER
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, . RERITAESESESE
Chaoyang District of Beijing . TREREXEHEES

. Supervisor of Beijing Municipal Law Association o R-TZENFREERARDAIZES

Vice President of Beijing Chaoyang District Lawyers
Association

Council member of China Behavior Law Association
Supervisor of Beijing Information Industry Association
Appointed as a Director of the Company in 2009
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT S EEAE

EEREREEAEHN

Mr. WANG Yueou
TERBSLA

Chief Financial Officer of the Company

. Aged 38

. Graduated from Jinan University, University of Wales,
United Kingdom and Research Institute of Tsinghua
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in International
Accounting, a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
and an Executive Master’s Degree in Business
Administration respectively

3 Chief Financial Officer and Director of Carnation
Software Ltd and Board Secretary of Guangzhou
Headway Technology Co., Ltd. All of the above
companies are subsidiaries of Teamsun

. Former Financial Controller of the Group

. Joined the Company in 2011 and appointed as the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company in 2013

Ms. CHAN Chung Lei, Joan
[R & 4 2 £

Company Secretary of the Company

. Aged 34

3 Obtained a Bachelor Degree of Business Studies

. Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

3 Certified Internal Auditor of the Institute of Internal
Auditors

. Joined the Company in 2012 and is primarily responsible
for the oversight of the internal audit matters of the
Group

3 Appointed as the Company Secretary in 2013

RAR M BRE

. RE=1TN\B

. EENEMAR  KERBAAZRE
FEREBMAER - AR AEREAEL
2 IHERBEIBURSRERA
ETHERELT SN

. 2 B R K RO BT B X B BE N B 1T AT E X
HERABDZHBEEREEREMNE
BRRERARZEFENE

. BRAEBEMBHELE

. R-BE——FMEARRARR_F—=
FRZERARARAFHEE

B/E =5
BEIREEEL 2460
EAGHMAGrEE
A R 28 5T Al 17 & $h 2 R B ETAD
BT —FNEARQR  xEBHEE
EASEZABEZER

. R =FEZTAEAANE

KARZARAWE

Notes:

Mr. Chen Zhaohui has resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company

with effect from 20th June 2012. 2.
Ms. Zou Zhiying was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company

on 20th June 2012. She has resigned as a Non-Executive Director with effect

from 30th November 2012. #
For identification purpose only *
The Chinese name of Pearl River Distribution Limited has been corrected

from RYIT A LEREGR AT to RIITTALRFEERAT.

REABELECHIANARIERITESE  R2F
——FEXNAZTBEERK-
BERLEIRZT—ZFNA-THEZEAEX
RAIFRTESR - HEHITHFNTEST N =T
——F+—A=t+BABEK-

EHEEA
FITBLEERRRANRXEBYIEE BT
N HLEHEBERAR -
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orporate Governance Report

E e =

>

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the needs of its business.

The Company's corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (formerly set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (“the Listing Rules”)) and the
Corporate Governance Code (the new edition of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices, which has taken effect from 1st April 2012) (the
“Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the year
ended 31st December 2012, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions, save and except for code provisions A.4.1, A.6.7, D.1.4 and
E.1.2, details of which are explained below. The Company consistently
monitors and reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure these
continue to meet the increasing stringent regulatory requirements and to
improve its practices.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of
Directors (the “Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of the
Company and transparency and accountability of all operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and plans
with a view to enhancing shareholder interests while the day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval of long term objectives and strategies, changes
to capital and overall corporate structure, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those which
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of

Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

$“—ﬂﬁEHZﬁ¥amﬁ$ AERER
S WNEEESH  UWERLHENAHE
%%%EZm%am%ﬁ°

RRRZEEBERBRNRBREBHERSMA
NEI([BRDES EmRA(T EmRA])
Biex 14805 2K EE R R TR (ATHRC LT
RANDKH 814) RCEEBBRTINDKREERE
HTFAHFR R ——Fm0MA—BEER)
(T=FRIDFr#E 2 RA RFAMEXXMEIE - &#HE=
T——F+-A=+—RB ARRBETHET
BT MR BE ST B & X EA41A6.7 D.1.4
REN2E2BE BAFBEHERNTXEE - AR
RAIEHBRNECEERTH URREERET

HiRE W RBLEERRBEERREREERE
ay -

ARRRAEEES((EEC D) HEEEEA
B RADEREERELERES  XHRHAE
EBEERBERERMEN -

ARAzEEZLEERRAEERBMMBMOT

Exg

BE

ARFBERHERFNE BB D 2 BER
BE  IREFROTRERETEEROMA -

EEREASACREREBEE RS B
SiRBREER  ERARXAZHATEE Alf
EEEAE -

%%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁZ%ﬁ%’ﬁ
HOMAEREABREER BEANEBEROERE
”*Bi NEEEREBERGE  EARS (Fh
EESRMNaBRZRS) HHEHN EF

E &ﬁ@i HHEREEER -
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Responsibilities (Continued)

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any

significant transactions entered into by the above mentioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of three
Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The number of Independent Non-Executive
Directors represents one-third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules.

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready
(Vice Chairman of the Board, Member of Management Committee
and Investment Committee)

Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry
(Chief Executive Officer, Member of Management Committee and
Investment Committee)

Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon
(Member of Management Committee and Investment Committee)
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Liankui
(Chairman of the Board, Member of Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee)’

Mr. Wang Weihang
(Chairman of Management Committee and Investment Committee)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Young Meng Ying
(Chairman of Audit Committee, Member of Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee)?

Mr. Lu Jiaqi
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee, Member of Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee)*

Ms. Xu Peng
(Chairman of Nomination Committee and Member of
Audit Committee)*

1. Mr. Hu Liankui has ceased to be the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, but remains as a member of the Remuneration Committee. He
has also been appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee, all with
effect from 1st April 2012.

2. Ms. Young Meng Ying has been appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 1st April 2012.

3. Mr. Lu Jiagi has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1st April 2012 and a member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 7th November 2012.

4. Ms. Xu Peng has been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 1st April 2012.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 24 to 27
of this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant to
the Listing Rules and is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Composition (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-Executive Director of his/her independence pursuant

to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors
bring a wide range of business and financial expertise, experiences and
independent judgement to the Board. Through active participation in
Board meetings and affairs of the Company, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-
Executive Directors make various contributions to the effective direction

of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment of Directors.

The Company has adopted the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director of the Company. These procedures are
available and accessible on the Company’s website at http://www.asl.
com.hk.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Board established
a Nomination Committee on 1st April 2012 to review the structure,

size and composition of the Board, identify suitable candidates to the
Board, and to make recommendations on any matters in relation to the
appointment and re-appointment of members of the Board. Appointment

of new Directors is reserved for the Board's approval.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board comprises members
with a diverse range of skills and experience with the appropriate
knowledge necessary to oversee the Group's business development,
strategies, operations, challenges and opportunities. The Nomination
Committee takes into account of that person’s skills, qualifications

and expected contributions to the Company before making any
recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment or
re-appointment of members of the Board.

REEMERRAA
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)
Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process, with the advice provided by the Nomination Committee, by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out

the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general
meeting ("AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being, or,

if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation

at least once every three years and any new Director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy or as additional Director shall be subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors shall

be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Although all
Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive Directors)
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term, they are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that issuers should have formal letters of
appointment for Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointment. Although the Company did not have formal letters of
appointment for all Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the terms of references have set out the work scope
of the Board’s committees and delegation were made by the Board in
respect of the responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors (including

Independent Non-Executive Directors) in such Board’s committees.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready,
Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon and Ms. Young Meng Ying shall retire
by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of these Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

The Company’s circular regarding the notice of the forthcoming AGM

contains detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Training for Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company

and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as
to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant

regulatory requirements.

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training
for its Directors. All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities. The Company has provided timely
technical updates, including the briefing on the amendments on the
Listing Rules to the Directors. Continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors are arranged where necessary.

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Company has organised
a training session in August 2012 on corporate governance, update on
Listing Rule amendments and other relevant topics. The training session
was conducted by a lawyer with presentation and briefing materials. All
the Directors, except Mr. Chen Zhaohui who resigned as a Non-Executive

Director on 20th June 2012, have attended the above training session.

Besides, Mr. Hu Liankui and Mr. Wang Weihang attended training
sessions on corporate governance arranged by China Securities
Regulatory Commission Beijing Bureau.

Insurance Cover for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its Directors to comply with the requirement of the
Code.

Board and Committee Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board has at least four regular meetings a year and holds additional
meetings on other occasions as needed.

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Board held six meetings.
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THE BOARD (Continued) EES

Board and Committee Meetings (Continued) EEEgREERER(H)

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued) BEANEREFELEAS(E)
EEERNBE_T——_F+A=+—-RHLEE
BITNARAEFTERESTZEGTERE  UEK
RARGZ @R HEREHRNOT :

The individual attendance record of each Director at the Board and the
Board committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31st December 2012 is set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings held during the tenure of directorship

RESERALRE CETEERR

Special
Remuneration Audit  Nomination 2012 AGM General
Full Board Committee Committee Committee —E--F Meeting
Name of Director EEpA Ex® ¥HZEe® ENZE® REEEE RRBEFAE BIRFEAE
Executive Directors HITES
Lai Yam Ting, Ready EEE 5/6 N/A N/A N/A 17 ”n
T TEA T A
Hui Wing Choy, Henry ok Bt 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 1n mn
THER TEmA TEA
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon ZE N 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 0N on
i TEH TEA
Lau Ming Chi, Edward S 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 17 1
TERA TER TER
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Hu Liankui A 6/6 3/3 N/A 212 7 0/1
TER
Wang Weihang T#Mm 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 17 0/1
T TEA T A
Chen Zhaohu? IR 3 2 212 N/A 4/4 N/A 01 N/A
TEA TEA TEA
Zou Zhiying? PEH 33 N/A 33 N/A N/A N/A
i TEA TEH AEA
Independent Non-Executive BYFHITEE
Directors
Young Meng Ying 15 B 6/6 3/3 717 2/2 7 01
Lu Jiaqi EEE 6/6 3/3 n 17 il 0/1
Xu Peng R 6/6 N/A n 212 7 0/1

TEH
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Board and Committee Meetings (Continued)

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (Continued)

1. Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward has resigned as an Executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company, all with effect
from 1st February 2013. He also ceased to be a member of the Management
Committee on the same date.

2. Mr. Chen Zhaohui has resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee and the Management
Committee, all with effect from 20th June 2012.

3. Ms. Zou Zhiying was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Management Committee
on 20th June 2012 in replacement of Mr. Chen Zhaohui. Ms. Zou has
resigned as a Non-Executive Director and ceased to be a member of the
Audit Committee and the Management Committee, all with effect from 30th
November 2012.

None of the meetings set out above was attended by any alternate
Director.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board held a
meeting with the Non-Executive Directors (including Independent Non-
Executive Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors during
the year ended 31st December 2012.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum
attendance of the Directors. Notices of regular Board meetings are served
to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and

committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days (or such other
period as agreed) before each Board meeting or committee meeting

to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each Director also have separate and independent access
to the senior management whenever necessary.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings (Continued)

The management has provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or a Director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring
Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr.
Hu Liankui and Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry respectively. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice. With the support of the senior management, the Chairman

is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge

of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations. The Chief
Executive Officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board's approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established five committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management
Committee and Investment Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website and/or are available to shareholders

upon request.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Hu Liankui and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Ms. Young Meng
Ying and Mr. Lu Jiagi. Mr. Lu Jiagi is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

In light of the amendments of the Listing Rules which became effective
on 1st April 2012, the Board adopted a revised terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee accordingly. The revised terms of reference

of the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of all Directors and the senior
management and share options matters. The Remuneration Committee

is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his/her associates will participate in deciding his’/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and

conditions.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and determination

of the annual remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The Remuneration Committee
shall consult the Chairman of the Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)
The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31st December 2012. The works performed included the following:

(@  To review Executive Directors’ remuneration package.
(b)  To review Executive Directors’ service agreements.
(c)  To review matters concerning share options.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms.
Xu Peng, among them one Independent Non-Executive Director possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Ms. Young Meng Ying is the chairman
of the Audit Committee. None of the members of the Audit Committee is
a former partner of the Company's existing external auditors.

In light of the amendments of the Listing Rules which became effective
on 1st April 2012, the Board adopted a revised terms of reference of the
Audit Committee accordingly. The revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@  To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the management, internal
auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their independence,
fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.

(¢)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)
The Audit Committee held seven meetings during the year ended 31st

December 2012. The works performed included the following:

(@  To review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures.

(b)  To review the reports from the external auditors, management

letters and management response.
() To review corporate governance matters.

(d)  To review the matters in relation to the internal control and risk

management systems and internal audit.

(e)  To review the scope of work and appointment of the external
auditors.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st December 2012
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 1st April
2012 with written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
currently comprises Mr. Hu Liankui and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Young Meng Ying, Mr. Lu Jiagi and Ms. Xu Peng.

Ms. Xu Peng is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

(@  To review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

(b)  To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships.

(©)  To access the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors.

(d)  To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31st December 2012 to review the structure, size and composition of the

Board and consider the changes of directorship.

A set of nomination procedures for selection of candidates for
directorship of the Company has been adopted by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of such individuals, the Company’s needs and other

relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Management Committee

The Management Committee currently comprises Mr. Wang Weihang and
three Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready, Mr. Hui Wing
Choy, Henry and Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon. Mr. Wang Weihang is the
chairman of the Management Committee.

The Management Committee is primarily responsible for managing and

reviewing the Company’s day-to-day operations and financial reporting,
and making recommendations in respect of the objectives and strategies
of the Group. The Management Committee meets as appropriate and

when required to discuss the related issues.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee currently comprises Mr. Wang Weihang and
three Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready, Mr. Hui Wing
Choy, Henry and Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon. Mr. Wang Weihang is the

chairman of the Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee is primarily responsible for identifying and
evaluating existing and potential investment opportunities for the
Company, and making recommendations to the Board. The Investment

Committee meets as and when required to discuss the related issues.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31st December 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
the employees was noted by the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In light of the amendments of Listing Rules which became effective on
1st April 2012, the Board has delegated the duties and responsibilities in
performing its corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is responsible for corporate governance functions
with the following duties:

(@  To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board.

(b)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management.

(c)  To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

(d)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees.

(e)  To review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Corporate Governance Report
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EXERBE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2012.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable
accounting standards are complied with.

The Board has received from the management explanation and relevant
information which enable the Board to make an informed assessment for
approving the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 61 to 62 of this annual report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as external auditors of the Company on
13th July 2012 and Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was appointed by
the Board on 13th July 2012 as external auditors of the Company to fill
the casual vacancy following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers
until the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s former external auditors of
the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services

for the period from 1st January 2012 to 12th July 2012 amounted to
HK$205,000 and no other services charge, whereas the remuneration
paid to the Company’s current external auditors of the Company, Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited, in respect of audit services and audit-
related services for the period from 13th July 2012 to 31st December
2012 amounted to HK$1,122,000 and HK$576,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The management is primarily responsible for designing, implementing
and maintaining internal controls, while the Board and Audit Committee
review the effectiveness of the controls. The internal control system
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority
designed to achieve business objectives, safequard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information

for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
rules and regulations. The system is designated to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Company’s objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of internal control system of the Group. The review covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. The Board is in particular
considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through AGMs and other general meetings. The Chairman of
the Board, all Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent
Non-Executive Directors, and the Chairmen of all Board committees (or
their delegates) will make themselves available at the AGMs to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the Company'’s procedures in providing the shareholders with clear
communication and easy access to information about the Company.

The 2012 AGM was held on 26th April 2012. The notice of 2012 AGM
was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the 2012
AGM.

The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Management
Committee and Investment Committee, and the Company's external
auditors have attended the 2012 AGM to answer questions.

Code provision A.6.7 of the Code stipulates that Independent Non-
Executive Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

Code provision E.1.2 of the Code stipulates that the chairman of the
Independent Board Committee (if any) should be available to answer
questions at any general meeting to approve a connected transaction or
any other transaction that requires independent shareholders’ approval.

One Non-Executive Director did not attend the AGM of the Company
held on 26th April 2012 due to other commitments.

Corporate Governance Report
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS (Continued)

Three Independent Non-Executive Directors (including the chairman of the
Independent Board Committee of the Company) and two Non-Executive
Directors did not attend the special general meeting of the Company held
on 21st December 2012 due to other commitments.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at http://www.asl.com.hk, where extensive information and updates

on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are

posted.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationships
with its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular
dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of
the Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in
an informative and timely manner.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to
its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws. An updated version of the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’ meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. Save as provided under
the Listing Rules, resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the
Company (other than procedural matters) are taken by poll and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after the shareholders’ meetings.

Convening of Special General Meetings on
Requisition by Shareholders

Under Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”),
shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company may convene a special general
meeting (“SGM") by written requisition.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Convening of Special General Meetings on
Requisition by Shareholders (Continued)

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with
the requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act once a valid
requisition is received.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an SGM, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an SGM, but
any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

An SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be
convened by the Directors.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings
by Shareholders

The Companies Act allows certain shareholders to requisition the
Company to give notice to the shareholders in respect of any resolution
which is intended to be moved at an AGM of the Company or circulate
a statement in respect of any proposed resolution or business to be

considered at a general meeting of the Company.

The number of shareholders necessary to put forward such proposal for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company shall be:

(@) either any number of members representing not less than one-
twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting; or

(b)  not less than 100 shareholders.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company. The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements, and unless the Company
otherwise resolves, the shareholders concerned would be responsible

for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid

documents are received.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company Secretary who
will direct the enquiries to the Board for handling. The contact details of
the Company Secretary are as follows:

Contact Details

The Company Secretary

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
15th Floor, Topsail Plaza,

11 On Sum Street, Shatin,

New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936

Email: asl_info@asl.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send

the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman of the Board on governance matters and also facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors. The Company

Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board. All Directors have access

to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that Board

procedures, all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed.
Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward resigned as the Company Secretary on 1st
February 2013. Ms. Chan Chung Lei, Joan has been appointed as the

Company Secretary in place of Mr. Lau with effect from 1st February
2013.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Wing Choy, Henry
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20th March 2013
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31st December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The principal activities of its major
subsidiaries and associates are set out in Note 50 and 22, respectively, to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2012 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 63.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 5.0 HK cents
per share. The proposed dividend will be paid to the shareholders on the
register of members on 28th May 2013, amounting to approximately
HK$15,570,000, and the remaining profit be retained for the year ended
31st December 2012.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 23rd May
2013 to 28th May 2013, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
22nd May 2013. The dividend warrants will be despatched on or before
11th June 2013.

2013 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will convene the forthcoming annual general meeting

on 15th May 2013, and the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 10th May 2013 to 15th May 2013, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
effected. In order to qualify for the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 9th May 2013.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31st
December 2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 68 to 69 of the consolidated financial statements.

At 31st December 2012, the Group's special reserve and accumulated
profits totaled approximately HK$310,823,000 (2011: HK$286,597,000).

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the shareholders
at 31st December 2012 included special reserve and accumulated loss
totaling approximately HK$93,286,000 (2011: special reserve and
retained earnings HK$109,907,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Group spent
approximately HK$9,205,000 (2011: HK$8,187,000) on property, plant
and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year ended 31st
December 2012 in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set
out in Note 19(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and sales attributable to major

suppliers and customers are as follows:

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the five largest customers
and single largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately
23.7% and 9.1%, respectively, of the Group’s revenue. The five

largest suppliers and single largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 36.2% and 10.4%, respectively, of the Group’s purchases.

At no time during the year ended 31st December 2012 did a Director, an
associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the

knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers

or suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements during the year ended 31st December 2012 in share capital
of the Company are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31st December
2012 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Lai Yam Ting, Ready

Hui Wing Choy, Henry

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon

Lau Ming Chi, Edward (resigned on 1st February 2013)

Non-Executive Directors

Hu Liankui

Wang Weihang

Chen Zhaohui (resigned on 20th June 2012)

Zou Zhiying (appointed on 20th June 2012 and resigned
on 30th November 2012)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Young Meng Ying

Lu Jiaqgi

Xu Peng

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 99, Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready,
Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon and Ms. Young Meng Ying shall be retiring
by rotation. All retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The term of office of each of the Non-Executive Directors is the period up

to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

SEEERRAT
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in

information of Directors of the Company are set out below:

Detail of changes

Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry has been appointed as a director of ASL
Holdings Limited and ELM Technologies Holdings Limited (“ELMT") with
effect from 30th October 2012. All the above companies are wholly-

owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready and the Company have newly entered into a
service contract for a term of 15 months from 1st January 2013 (the
“Service Period”). His directorship is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws. In accordance with the abovementioned
service contract, Mr. Lai will be entitled to a basic salary of HK$1,575,000
and performance related bonus payments for the Service Period. Mr.

Lai's remuneration was determined by reference to his duties and
responsibilities, experience, performance and market conditions.

Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon has been appointed as the Chairman of
i-Sprint (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd with effect from 22nd November
2012. The above company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward has been appointed as a director of ASL
Holdings Limited and ELMT with effect from 30th October 2012.
Following his resignation as an Executive Director, the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Company, all with effect from 1st
February 2013, Mr. Lau has resigned as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company including ASL Holdings Limited and ELMT.

Ms. Zou Zhiying has resigned as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 30th November 2012.

Ms. Young Meng Ying has been appointed as a director of Pine Link
Business Advisory Limited. She also resigned as a Committee member of
the Public Practice Committee with CPA Australia — Hong Kong China
Division during the year.

Ms. Xu Peng has been appointed as a council member of China Behavior
Law Association and a supervisor of Beijing Information Industry
Association.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Group engaged AsiaSoft
Services Limited, a subsidiary of AsiaSoft Company Limited (“AsiaSoft"”),
for the provision of certain services (including software engineering
outsourcing services, other IT related services and rental services), and

an approximate total fee of HK$6,582,000 was paid or payable by the
Group for such services. Mr. Leung Tat Kwong, Simon, a Director of the
Company, was considered interested in such transactions by virtue of his
directorship and his disclosed shareholding in AsiaSoft.

Other than as disclosed in the above and the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31st
December 2012 or at any time during the year ended 31st December
2012.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”), during the year ended 31st December 2012, the
following Directors were considered to have interests in the businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group, particulars of which are set out below:

Name of the entities which were
considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses

compete or likely to compete with

Directors’ Report

EEg®RE

EECEHNER

REBEE-_Z——#+-_A=+—BLEER XK
& B Z B8 AsiaSoft Company Limited ([ AsiaSoft])
2 ff /B A B AsiaSoft Services LimitediZ it & F AR 7§
(BB IRINIRE - HbE AR AR RS
LEERY) MASERBEBRED TS ER
& #£496,582,000 B8 T2 BN c ERNAAFEEFR
EHFEERAsiaSoft ESHB REKE 2 R#E -
BHRARBARSTHAER -

WRE-F——4+- A=+ RLTELER
SEABER % EnR T BER SR E
5 EEMMRAQT  REARRAD R
T PR P L e N ES
ERBERZANTREEAEREAMEZEX

B -

EENHFER 2ER

REEEHERSMERAR (BRI EHFL
MRA(TEMAEFESI10EBTE  RBEE-Z
——F+-—A=+-—BHLEFER UTEEHER
AEEIEERERNEEEKBRHF TR
AEBEBERBRF2EB PR ER  HFB
H;ymr

Description of businesses of the
entities which were considered to

Nature of Director's

of the Group the businesses of the Group interest in the entities
Name of Director ~ HRREXKBERERATHERHT BRRELEEEKBRATHEBIERT ESNZEEEL
EEpE ZBEEH ZBREBHT EEME
Hu Liankui Teamsun Information technology product service, Chairman and Director
application software development,
value-added distribution and system
integration
iliEs EBRK BARRERRE  ERREARMHE - E=RFES
BESHERERES
Beijing Huasun Mingtian Technology Co. Ltd. Information technology related Chairman
EREBEBAMRERDF HEEARR EER
Subsidiaries of Teamsun (excluding Teamsun Information technology related Director
Technology (HK) Limited
("Hong Kong Teamsun"))
EBRKMBRR(TERBEBARMRE  BEEANEK =

(BR)VERRAEREBRK])
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (Continued)

Name of Director

]

Name of the entities which were considered
to compete or likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group
BRAREAEEERBRATEBRHRT
ZERAR

EENBRER2ER®

Description of businesses of the entities
which were considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses of the Group
BRARELEEER BRI THEBRRT
ZBREBHET

Nature of Director's
interest in the entities
EERZEERL
BEME

Wang Weihang

T#m

Leung Tat Kwong,
Simon

RiEN

As the Board is independent from the board of directors of the aforesaid
companies, and as none of the above Directors controls the Board, the
Group is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at

Teamsun

EBRK

Hong Kong Teamsun

BREBRK

Subsidiaries of Teamsun
(excluding Hong Kong Teamsun)

EBRRZHBLR (TREFBEBAK)

Pansky Technology Corporation Ltd.
(a wholly owned subsidiary of Teamsun)
RAMBERRAA (EBRAZEEES
MEAR)

AsiaSoft and its subsidiaries

AsiaSoft & £ fff B 2 7]

arm’s length from, the businesses of the aforesaid companies.

Information technology product service,
application software development, value-added
distribution and system integration

BAMRERRE EREAZMHHE
BESHERERES

Window company of Teamsun in Hong Kong and
mainly provides administrative support to the
clients of Teamsun in the PRC and Hong Kong

EBRREEBEARA  FERMEBRK
ZEPRPEREBRETHIE

Information technology related

HEEARR

Information technology related

HEERARE

Information technology related

HEERRK

Vice Chairman and
President, Director, and
substantial shareholder

BESRFER -
EERFERR

Sole Director

W-EE

Director

e

Director

3

Director and/or substantial

shareholder

ESER/RETERR

HREFEBYUNLAARZEETERNLES
BERVNESS AEEAUBYNEARAZE
BUAFEAEARREIER -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2012, the interests and short positions of the

Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

("SFO™)) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed

to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant

to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to

therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange (“Directors’ Interests in

Shares and Underlying Shares”), were as follows:

Directors’ Report
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ESZRORMEERD 2 EDS

RZE—ZF+ZR=+—H EFRAQAE
ETBAERAARRAEFEMEHRER(EER
BEHERBEGROIEXVE) 2RH - HERG RE
HHhEBM@IREESKBEROIEXVEET RS
DHBEMNERRAA Rz ER AR (BIE
BREZFFRBAERIZEBGRXEEFRERA
WAz E@RAR)  SbIRIEZZF KBS KR
EIBBEERRNZBGE Xz ER Mo Eas &
KB ROBRB LT HITAESHITESLSRIN
EAESPA([EESFA ) EAMERNR R KRB 2
Bakie(EE2RMHERBERG 2#Ez=]) W
™~

(a) Shares () R#HB
Approximate
Personal Family  Corporate % of
Name of company Director interests interests interests Other Total shareholding
NEEW Ex EAERE  RHEEE  ARER Hit @t EEil
Automated Systems Holdings Limited ~ Lai Yam Ting, Ready 3,949,621 — - — 3,949,621 1.27%
BHEAGEEARAA BEE
Hui Wing Choy, Henry 974,000 — — — 974,000 0.31%
oK Bt
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Lai Yam Ting, Ready 1,070,000 ! — — — 1,070,000 N/A?2
BRER(BR)ERAA BER TER?
Teamsun Hu Liankui 30,430,477 — — — 30,430,477 4.69%
EBRK fil S
Wang Weihang 64,587,446 — — — 64,587,446 9.96%

T#f
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EEZRORBEERSG 2EE
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)
(b) Underlying shares (Z)HEERH%
Personal Family Corporate
Name of company Director interests  interests  interests Other Total
T S BAEE ZKEEE DAER Hity st
Automated Systems Holdings Limited Hui Wing Choy, Henry 2,609,000? — — — 2,609,000
SEIESES] oK B
BRAA
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon 1,020,000° — — — 1,020,000
REKX
Lau Ming Chi Edward* 1,926,000° — — — 1,926,000
Bgh e
Notes: st -
1. These shares were non-voting deferred shares. 1. ERODAERERELER -

2. The issued shares of Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited comprised
55,350,000 non-voting deferred shares and 2 ordinary shares. The 2
ordinary shares were beneficially owned by the Company.

3. Options to acquire ordinary shares of the Company, further details of
which are set out in section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

4. Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward has resigned as a director of the Company
with effect from 1st February 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2012, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company had any
Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares.

2. BEBER(BR)ERADVZICETREE
55,350,000 A% & 1% 3R 1 IR ST R R 2 R i
B Z2BERMBAARRAAELESR

3. ARBALREER BHZE—FFE
BRT X RERt & —& -

4. BMEELECBEARAESE KR8
—ZHE-A-HEREXK -

BEXFRMEN  R-_FBE——F+_-H4
=+—H BMEEERARFETEZITEHA
EMETMES ZBM MEERGD 2 #EXE -



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 8th
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August 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to

any employee and/or Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The Scheme expired on 7th August 2012. As a result, the Company can

no longer grant any further share options under the Scheme. However,

all share options granted prior to 7th August 2012 will remain in full
force and effect. Details of the Scheme are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

Directors’ Report
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ARBR-_ZZE-FNANARABERESS
([Z&t8))  EERRARIEMEMBLRZ
EAEE R RERRHERRER - ZHER
“E-—FN\ALBER Bt RRABTTEH
BREZAEE-—STREEMBRE - AW - R
T-——FN\ALHAMEREZMEBRERDA

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of share options

EETRBMAOEMA -
& B 15 R M EE40 ©

ZatEl M EH BN &

ARBZBERENFEANZEEHMT

RITEBRERFBTZRER
At 31st
At 1st Granted Exercised Lapsed Canceled December
January during during during during 2012  Date
2012 the year the year the year theyear R=ZE—ZF  of grant Exercise
Participants R-Z-=f REE REE REE REE t=h REBRE Exercise period price
280% -A—H AR AT AP B =t-B BH fTERH 168
HK$
B
Directors
s
Hui Wing Choy, Henry — 690,000 - e o 690,000  19.3.2012  19.3.2013 toZ 18.3.2022 1.09
KB — 1,919,000 — — — 1,919,000  2.5.2012 252013 toE 1.5.2022 1.12
— 2,609,000 — — — 2,609,000
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon = 510,000 — — — 510,000  19.3.2012  19.3.2013 toX 18.3.2022 1.09
RiEN o 510,000 o o o 510,000  2.5.2012 2.5.2013 toX 1.5.2022 1.12
— 1,020,000 — - - 1,020,000
Lau Ming Chi, Edward? — 270,000 — — — 270,000  19.3.2012  19.3.2013 toZE 18.3.2022 1.09
B3k 52 — 1,656,000 — — — 1,656,000 252012 252013 t0oZ 1.5.2022 1.12
— 1,926,000 — — — 1,926,000
Other employees — 5,430,000 — (420,000) 5,010,000 19.3.2012  19.3.2013 toZ% 18.3.2022 1.09
HiES — 2,670,000 — — — 2670000 252012  2.5.2013t0Z 1.5.2022 1.12
— 8,100,000 — (420,000) — 7,680,000
Total — 13,655,000 — (420,000) — 13,235,000
A%
[SIVAN
Notes: B &
1. All of the above options will be vested equally on each of the first, second 1. FRFTEERESRELBHNE - E_RE
and third anniversaries of the date of grant, except for the options granted ZHEFEMNFENEE R _ZT——FRA=
on 2nd May 2012 which will also be vested immediately in full in the event AREAERERRINE MHREFRRE - B
of a special dividend of the Company being declared. G EE -
2. Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward has resigned as a director of the Company with 2. AR ELEERALRRRESE RT—=F=

effect from 1st February 2013.

A—BHREER-
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme” above, at no
time during the year ended 31st December 2012 was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Group entered into the
following transactions with its fellow subsidiaries, holding company and

ultimate holding company which constituted connected transactions (the
“Connected Transactions”) under the Listing Rules:

Set out below are the Connected Transactions which occurred during the
year ended 31st December 2012 pursuant to the Supply Agreement and

Distributor Agreement entered into between Teamsun and the Company
on 6th October 2010.

EEREROUESF ZER

%tﬁﬁ%%Z%ﬁ&ﬁ@%ﬁZ%éHﬂ%%%
FHEIPREES - ARE - HEMEZERAEF - F
EHBAREMBARRBE_Z——-F+=A
=+ —BLEFENEMEEEEELTMLEHE -
BEARRZEFARBEREARRREAEMX
ABEEBZBRNDKESFMER -

BEXS
e s

SEEHRRNMER £ ENSIDNES S Al /N
ﬂLﬁHﬁﬁimﬁW%W% o ([HER
52X HWT

TRHEIIBRBEBAKEARAR-_ZE—F
ARBAZZHEBRERDHEBHERBE
—ZF+ A=t -RULFERETZEERS -

¢+

Name of company Description of the Connected Transactions Amount
AR BEXRS 2 Ht X}
HK$'000
TET
Teamsun Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Service Contract 69
R AEERBRBEAZN 225
Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contract 185
RAEERBBEOMN 25
Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 7,224
AEERERENINZEH8
Hong Kong Teamsun Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 441
BBEEBRK AEERERAENINz&8
Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contract 265
REERBRBEEHKDMZ &8
AsiaSoft Securities Ltd Amount charged by the Group in respect of the Service Contract 1,218
I FOKERLREERRAA REERBBE KMz 28
Amount charged to the Group in respect of the License Fees 16
AEERFAREINZEHE
Mocha Software (Tianjin) Co., Ltd Amount charged to the Group in respect of the Product Contract 674
BEREM4(RE)BRAQA AEBERERENIN 2R
The above Connected Transactions are subject to various annual cap LB ERSGABETARABHRA-T—TF+

amounts disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 8th October 2010.

ANBZBRBEEZZE2F LR -BREAEH

Capitalised terms used in the section headed “Connected Transactions” EZH 0 EXBERSS Rz A=EHFlE

above shall have the same meanings as those defined in the above
circular unless specified otherwise.

BMFFEHEBBRERE -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000, “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740, “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group above in accordance
with Listing Rule 14A.38.

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirmed that the above Connected Transactions have

been entered into:
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, where there are no
sufficient comparables, on terms no less favorable to the Group

than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

On 12th November 2012, ELMT entered into a conditional agreement
with Hong Kong Teamsun, the immediate holding company of the
Company, to acquire the entire issued share capital of MDCL—Frontline
Solutions Limited (“MDCL") (the “Acquisition Agreement”), at a
consideration of HK$220,000,000 which would be settled by cash of
HK$150,000,000, all or part of which would be used by Hong Kong
Teamsun to procure the repayment in full of the Shareholder’s Loan,
and by an issuance of interest bearing promissory notes of an aggregate
principal amount of HK$70,000,000. On 21st December 2012, the
ordinary resolution proposed at the Special General Meeting to approve
the Acquisition Agreement was not duly passed by the Independent
Shareholders by way of poll. The lapse of Acquisition Agreement shall
have no material adverse effect on the Company’s business operations
and its financial position.

Under the Listing Rules, the acquisition of MDCL constituted a major
and connected transaction of the Company. Details of which were
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 12th November 2012,
23rd November 2012 and 21st December 2012 respectively and the
Company’s circular dated 5th December 2012.

REEMERRAA
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EEE®RE

SUPPLEMENTAL DEED IN RELATION TO THE
ACQUISITION OF i-SPRINT INNOVATIONS PTE
LTD (“i-SPRINT")

On 30th October 2012, ASL Security Solutions Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a supplemental deed with Mr.
Ching Wai Keung (the “Vendor”) to amend certain terms of the sale

and purchase agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the
Vendor on 28th March 2011 in relation to the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in i-Sprint (the “Supplemental Deed"”). Pursuant to the
Supplemental Deed, the consideration of this transaction was accordingly
adjusted to SGD6,800,000.

Details of the above were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 28th March 2011, 31st March 2011 and 8th November 2012

respectively.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2012, so far as is known to the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests and short positions of every
person, other than Directors or chief executives of the Company in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

A B W EBi-SPRINT
INNOVATIONS PTE LTD
(Fi-SPRINT) @ Z R &
WZ=ZZT—=%F+A=+H8 - ASL Security Solutions
Limited (7422 & & & % A Mt B 2 /1) B2Ching Wai
Keungst £ ([ E 77 J) Bt Uk B8 i-Sprint & AR AN #E 5T
N RERERE  BIRE——F=A=F+AN

REIU v EEmES THRA(THIERZE] - BiE
RT3 5 89 (B HE FE 4 §9 % 26,800,000
FngoT e

WBERZHBESNERARAR T ——F
ZAZtNH ZE-——F=ZA=t—HEZ
—ZHET-ANBBERZAETIAWRE -

FERR

RIE——F+-_A=+—H HEERALQF
TETBRABRA  TIHAL(RARERERET
ETRAEBRINKAR R Z DA S
BERBEES KRBT GRIEXVEBE2R3D HAM
RARWBEZEDZIXE ¢

Percentage of

Number of ordinary shares issued share
of the Company held capital
AAFEZEERRAEE %
Name of shareholder Direct interest Deemed interest MBITREAZ
BRREB HiZER WRAER Aok
Hong Kong Teamsun 208,792,996 — 67.05
BABEBERK
Teamsun — 208,792,996’ 67.05
=R
Note: ffsE -
1. Teamsun was interested in the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong 1. EBPRAREBSEBRAREZHBERTRAPE

Teamsun and was therefore deemed to be interested in the 208,792,996
shares in which Hong Kong Teamsun was interested.

Save as mentioned above, as at 31st December 2012, there was no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Bl BERERBEBEBRANERERZ
208,792,996 R iR 17 R HE A HE % o

U S ——fFt+ZA=1t—
H vIﬁﬁfifﬂﬁﬁmAi(ﬂiﬁﬂé%ﬂIEﬁﬁ
ABBRINRARR 2RO KBREBROD P EAR
BES LB ROEXVEE2R3ID B Z EXER
RARWBEZEDHAR -
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2012, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (formerly set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules) and the
Corporate Governance Code (the new edition of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices, which has taken effect from 1st April 2012) (the
“Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31st December 2012, except as noted below:

(@  with respect to Code provision A.4.1, all Non-Executive Directors of
the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company'’s Bye-laws;

(b)  with respect to Code provision D.1.4, the Company did not have
formal letters of appointment for all Non-Executive Directors.
However, the terms of references have set out the work scope of
the Board’s committees and delegation were made by the Board in
respect of the responsibilities of the Non-Executive Directors in such
Board’'s committees; and

(c) with respect to Code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2, one Non-
Executive Director did not attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 26th April 2012, and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors (including the chairman of the
Independent Board Committee of the Company) and two Non-
Executive Directors did not attend the special general meeting
of the Company held on 21st December 2012 due to other

commitments.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31st December 2012.

Directors’ Report
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant

to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31st December 2012.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met seven times in the year ended 31st December
2012. During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the
management the connected transactions, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group including the review of the annual
results, interim and quarterly results (if applicable), and discussed various
auditing, financial reporting and internal control matters.

DONATION

During the year ended 31st December 2012, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to HK$7,700.

AUDITORS

In July 2012, the Company'’s former auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers
resigned as auditors of the Company, and Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited was appointed as auditors of the Company. Apart from this,
there has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the three
preceding years. A resolution will be tabled in the annual general meeting
to re-appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Wing Choy, Henry
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20th March 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

° GrantThornton
&

To the members of Automated Systems Holdings Limited
BBRREEERAR

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Automated
Systems Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 63 to 168, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st December 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,

and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981

of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards

on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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B2 BEN RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
December 2012 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

20th Floor, Sunning Plaza

10 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

20th March 2013

Shaw Chi Kit
Practising Certificate No.: P04834
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Consolidated Income Statement
e EmER

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HEZE-ZT——F+-_A=+—RHILFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FaE FHET FHERT
(Restated)
(E31)
Revenue A 7 1,673,279 1,537,328
Cost of goods sold SHERAR (811,551) (808,780)
Cost of services rendered TRALARTS 2 B AN (659,417) (557,525)
Other income EAA 2,496 3,573
Other gain/(loss), net HiFlas, (E518) 2,809 (3,861)
Fair value gain on revaluation of BHEREVME 2 AR BEEM
investment properties 20 7,700 4,000
Selling expenses HEER (94,064) (69,079)
Administrative expenses THER (75,300) (62,728)
Finance income AN 10 1,545 1,269
Finance costs BTSN (282) S
Share of results of associates FEAL G & N B4R 22 486 913
Profit before income tax KRET BB AR R 11 47,701 45,110
Income tax expense FriSBifx 15 (6,507) (294)
Profit for the year attributable to equity 2<% B R A EH A FEL &E AT
holders of the Company 41,194 44,816
Dividends B’E 16
Interim dividend FRHARR B — —
Final dividend REARR B 17,127 12,456
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Earnings per share attributable to EATRAEFEABETRER
equity holders of the Company
Earnings per share BREF 18
Basic and diluted ERREE 13.23 14.39
The notes on pages 71 to 168 are an integral part of these consolidated HR71EE168H 2 B K B mE 2T

financial statements.

AEERER D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

fre EHEWE R

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——F

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

ks THET FHET

Profit for the year FREF 41,194 44,816

Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hit2mEkzE (FE)

Revaluation surplus of leasehold land and HE T RIEFEG RS

buildings 19 44,223 24,143
Deferred taxation arising from revaluation HELTIREFEGRS

surplus of leasehold land and buildings EEZIRIERIA 39 (7,297) (3,984)
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEG 2 ERER

overseas operations 3,307 (2,178)

Total comprehensive income for the year ERATRAKIZTEABEER

attributable to equity holders of ZHERRLEEE
the Company 81,427 62,797
The notes on pages 71 to 168 are an integral part of these consolidated HRTMEF1BE W ERESMBRER 2T

financial statements. AT E D -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

A

SeBEEREXRK

As at 31st December 2012 R=ZE—=F+=HA=+—H

2011
—T——F
Note HK$'000
s FHE T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB &K 19(a) 211,754 176,912
Investment properties BREME 20 36,400 28,700
Intangible assets mRAE 21(a) 11,817 10,593
Goodwill [GES 21(a) 36,247 34,213
Interests in associates /NG o 22 804 1,287
Trade receivables JEWE 5 3RIE 27 — 1,729
Finance lease receivables FEY A & TR E K IE 28 21,487 16,013
Long-term bank deposit RERITER 31 — 155
Restricted bank deposits SIRHIRITFER 31 — 498
Deferred income tax assets RIEFISTHERE 39 1,441 1,001
319,950 271,101
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 26 102,756 100,658
Trade receivables FEWE 55118 27 237,471 206,953
Finance lease receivables e R E R EFRIE 28 18,802 6,724
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — Hfb U RIE - %% RFAN ZIE 29 19,476 23,645
Amounts due from customers for B R TIREWE P RIE
contract work 30 224,856 190,615
Tax recoverable ALY B B IR 243 785
Restricted bank deposits R BIRITER 31 3,987 362
Cash and cash equivalents ReRB2EED 31 116,677 108,404
724,268 638,146
Total assets BEE 1,044,218 909,247
Equity attributable to equity holders ARARREFE ABGER
of the Company
Share capital %N 32 31,140 31,140
Share premium A& 174 1B BR 104,947 104,947
Reserves 1 33(a) 437,915 371,540
Total equity R 574,002 507,627

The notes on pages 71 to 168 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

HRTNEF1BAZMEABREEUBRR LT
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As at 31st December 2012 R=ZE—=F+=A=+—H

2011
—T——fF
Note HK$'000
st FAT
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Other financial liabilities EtheraE 37 = 9,211
Trade payables FEE B 508 34 854 —
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFSHAs 39 30,324 23,385
31,178 32,596
Current liabilities REIEE
Trade payables JERHE 53008 34 230,924 200,432
Other payables and accruals Hib B RIBERESER 35 66,046 44,212
Receipts in advance TR M= 36 130,252 114,462
Current income tax liabilities e S afE 908 5,644
Other financial liabilities EterafE 37 8,239 4,274
Borrowing = 38 2,669 —
439,038 369,024
Total liabilities was 470,216 401,620
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 1,044,218 909,247
Net current assets REBEERE 285,230 269,122
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 605,180 540,223
HU Liankui HUI Wing Choy, Henry
= = K BF
Director Director
EFE EFE
The notes on pages 71 to 168 are an integral part of these consolidated HR7T1EF 1688 2 WFEEAK MBmEk 2T

financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEARR

BEBMER

As at 31st December 2012 R=ZE—=F+=HA=+—H

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FER FHE T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB &R 19(b) 558 1,146
Intangible assets EEE 21(b) 500 500
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR ZIRE 24 134,623 134,623
Deferred income tax assets RIEFSHEE 39 736 294
136,417 136,563
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments — Efth JEUFKIE « %4 KT8 708 29 524 609
Amounts due from subsidiaries M8 A AR K 25 97,208 111,791
Tax recoverable ALY B R IR = 640
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkBeEED 31 2,301 1,453
100,033 114,493
Total assets HEE 236,450 251,056
Equity attributable to equity holders AABRREFEAELER
of the Company
Share capital & A 32 31,140 31,140
Share premium abayinti=ti 104,947 104,947
Reserves % 33(b) 95,202 109,907
Total equity R 231,289 245,994
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAb e 5RIE R ERHE R 35 5,063 4,845
Amount due to a subsidiary R —FEME A FFRIE 25 98 217
5,161 5,062
Total liabilities waE 5,161 5,062
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 236,450 251,056
Net current assets REBEEFHE 94,872 109,431
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAS 231,289 245,994
HU Liankui HUI Wing Choy, Henry
g E B oK B
Director Director
2 -
The notes on pages 71 to 168 are an integral part of these consolidated BRTEF18E 2 WAEREEMBREZT

financial statements.

FIEERER D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A RS EHE

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

Special Property Share
Share reserve  revaluation  Translation options
Share premium (Note (i) reserve reserve reserve Retained
capital R HRIEE  DEER EE HBARE earnings Total
B HER () f#E fE #E RERA BE

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TRT TAT THT TAT TAT TAT TET

At 1st January 2011 R-Z——§5-f-H 31,140 104,947 34,350 63,685 3,277 — 219,842 457,241
Comprehensive income ZEKE
Profit for the year FREF — — — — — — 44,816 44,816

Other comprehensive income/(loss):  Hft2E Wi/ (KE)
Revaluation surplus of leasehold land & Tt MIEFEHRE

and buildings — = = 24,143 - = = 24,143
Deferred taxation arising from HELHREFERRS

revaluation surplus of leasehold land ~ E4 7 IEIEFHIE

and buildings — — — (3,984) = = = (3.984)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ EENEHK 2 EHLEZE

overseas operations — — — — (2,178) — — (2,178)

Total comprehensive income for FR2ARSHE

the year — — — 20,159 (2,178) — 44816 62,797
Transactions with owners HBEBAZRS
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends B ERRS — — — — — — 45 45
Final dividend for the nine months EEEE-_T-T
ended 31st December 2010 +-A=+—-H8It
JEARSRE - - - . — — (12,456) (12,456)
Total transactions with owners BREAZRZLE — — — — — = (12,411) (12,411)
At 31st December 2011 R=FB-—%+=A
=+-H 31,140 104,947 34,350 83,844 1,099 — 252,247 507,627
The notes on pages 71 to 168 are an integral part of these consolidated HRVTIEFE18BE 2T EREAMBHREZT

financial statements. AT EREB S o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HEZE-ZT——F+-_A=+—RHILFE

Special Property Share

Share reserve revaluation Translation options
(Note (i) reserve reserve reserve
KEFEE WEER Ea HBRE
(BYE()) @ wHE e REER BE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET

Share  premium Retained

capital (37}
B A& nER

earnings Total

At 1st January 2012 R-F-—f¥-F—-H 31,140 104,947 34,350 83,844 1,099 — 252,247 507,627
Comprehensive income ZEKE
Profit for the year FREM = = — — — — 41,194 41,194
Other comprehensive income/(loss):  Eft2E Wi/ (KE) -
Revaluation surplus of leasehold land ~ ME i RIEFEHBH

and buildings — — - 44,223 — - — 44,223
Deferred taxation arising from REHHREFER

revaluation surplus of leasehold land ~ REaE 4 2 EEFIA

and buildings — — — (7,297) — — — (7,297)
Exchange differences on translation of ~ #EENEHK 2 EHLEZE

overseas operations — — — — 3,307 — — 3,307
Total comprehensive income for FR2ARSHE

the year — — — 36,926 3,307 — 41,194 81,427
Transactions with owners BREAZRS
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends BRARER S — — — — — — 159 159
Final dividend for the year ended EEEE-T——%

31st December 2011 +-A=+—-HLFE

ZREBE — — - - - - (17.127)  (17.127)

Recognition of equity-settled ERUBRN BERS

share-based payments ZR% — = = = — 1,916 — 1,916
Total transactions with owners BREAZRZAE — - - - — 1,916 (16,968)  (15,052)
At 31st December 2012 R=B-=%

+=-A=+-H 31,140 104,947 34,350 120,770 4,406 1,916 276,473 574,002

Note ()  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the Ml AREZHERFEREERN -ANAEFEARFRN

nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of
the Group reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares in

1997.

The notes on pages 71 to 168 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

EWAETEBEMAR  REBZMBARE
BOARDZEE  BRZEBEMEITORAF
B zmE MEZHMZER -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SFERERER

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
B —T——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt e FTEx FHET
Operating activities REER
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BEEBZRSWA () 42 46,818 (29,131)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBNER (11,647) (8,918)
Overseas taxation paid EAEHNGIE (730) (529)
Tax refund REITIE 775 302
Net cash generated from/(used in) REERZBESWA (XH)
operating activities FE 35,216 (38,276)
Investing activities REEH
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of WEEMEB LR (HRAYERS)
cash acquired (2,122) (24,271)
Transaction cost paid for acquisition of WEEM B A F 2 BRI SR
subsidiaries (832) (3,464)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB - BE MR HE 19 (9,205) (8,187)
Additions to intangible assets RERFEEE (2,444) o
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BRERZBASHIE
plant and equipment 42(a) 209 437
Interest received BEHFE 8 155 265
Dividends received from associates BB D AIBER Z AR E 22 973 1,457
Other investing inflow/(outflow) Ha&ERA () 70 (1,998)
Net cash used in investing activities RETHZHESIHER (13,196) (35,761)
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from borrowings FEBEMSNKIE 3,470 —
Repayment of borrowings BEBEE (801) -
Interest paid BEARFLE (282) =
Dividends paid BRI E (17,127) (12,459)
Net cash used in financing activities BMETHZREIHER (14,740) (12,459)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Re RBReEBM LM
cash equivalents O ) #%E 7,280 (86,496)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ~ F£#2R & RREHEY

of the year 108,404 195,552
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SN FE R &) 993 (652)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FrzRe RASEEY

of the year 116,677 108,404
The notes on pages 71 to 168 are an integral part of these consolidated BRTEF1BE 2 WAERGEEMBEREZT

financial statements. AT R EB D o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B SRR MY RE

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HEZE-ZT——F+-_A=+—RHILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). At
31st December 2012, its immediate holding company is Teamsun
Technology (HK) Limited (“Hong Kong Teamsun”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. Its ultimate holding company is
Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Limited (“Teamsun”), a company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its
shares are listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange in the PRC. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM12, Bermuda, and 15th Floor, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company is principally an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
principal activities of its major subsidiaries and associates are set
out in Note 50 and 22, respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated,
which is also the functional currency of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 20th March 2013.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, leasehold land and buildings, investment properties and
contingent consideration payable.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(@) Amended standard mandatory for the first time for the
financial year beginning 1st January 2012, but not currently

relevant to the Group:

J HKFRS 7 (Amendments), “Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets” is effective
for annual period beginning on or after 1st July
2011. The amendments enhance existing disclosure
requirements for transferred financial assets that are
still, at least partially recognised by the Group because
they do not qualify for derecognition under HKAS
39 and require additional disclosures on the Group's
continue involvement in derecognised assets.

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning
1st January 2012 and have not been early adopted:

° HKFRS 7 (Amendments), “Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities”. The amendments introduce new disclosures
for all recognised financial instruments that are set
off under HKAS 32 and those that are subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether they are set off
under HKAS 32. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS
7 (Amendments)’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) no later than the accounting

period beginning on or after 1st January 2013.

(b)
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REPBHRRME

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HEZE-ZT——F+-_A=+—RHILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st

January 2012 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

J HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. HKFRS 9
was issued in November 2009 and October 2010.

It replaces the parts of HKAS 39 that relate to

the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. HKFRS 9 requires financial assets to be
classified into two measurement categories: those
measured as at fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determination is made at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument. For financial liabilities, the standard
retains most of the HKAS 39 requirements. The main
change is that, in cases where the fair value option is
taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value
change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded
in other comprehensive income rather than the
income statement, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9's

full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 9 upon its
effective date, which is for the accounting period
beginning on or after 1st January 2015.

o HKFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements” builds
on existing principles by identifying the concept of
control as the determining factor in whether an
entity should be included within the consolidated
financial statements of the parent company. The
standard provides additional guidance to assist in
the determination of control where this is difficult
to assess. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 10's
full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 10 no later
than the accounting period beginning on or after 1st
January 2013.
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For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st

January 2012 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

o HKFRS 11, “Joint arrangements”, focuses on the
rights and obligations of the arrangement rather
than its legal form. There are two types of joint
arrangement: joint operations and joint ventures. Joint
operations arise where a joint operator has rights to
the assets and obligations relating to the arrangement
and hence accounts for its interest in assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses. Joint ventures arise where
the joint operator has rights to the net assets of
the arrangement and hence equity accounts for its
interest. Proportional consolidation of joint ventures is
no longer allowed. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS
11's full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 11 no
later than the accounting period beginning on or after
1st January 2013.

o HKFRS 12, “Disclosure of interests in other entities”
includes the disclosure requirements for all forms
of interests in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles
and other off balance sheet vehicles. The Group is
yet to assess HKFRS 12’s full impact and intends to
adopt HKFRS 12 no later than the accounting period

beginning on or after 1st January 2013.
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REPBHRRME

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HEZE-ZT——F+-_A=+—RHILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. mEEE@
(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations have been (b) #izT#R B RZER-_T——&

—HA—BRB M RFESBMBED
REM  BIOARBRERA : (B)

issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st

January 2012 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

o HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement” aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
precise definition of fair value and a single source of
fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The requirements do not
extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its use
is already required or permitted by other standards
within HKFRSs. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 13's
full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 13 no later
than the accounting period beginning on or after 1st
January 2013.

o HKAS 1 (Amendments), “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income” retain the option
to present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate
but consecutive statements. However, HKAS 1
(Amendments) require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section
such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax
on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis. The Group is yet to
assess HKAS 1 (Amendments)’s full impact and intends
to adopt HKAS 1 (Amendments) no later than the
accounting period beginning on or after 1st July 2012.
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For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st

January 2012 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

o HKAS 19 (Amendments), “Employee benefits”,
improves the accounting for defined benefit plans.
Under the revised standard, all changes in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets will be recognised in the financial
statements immediately in the period they occur. In
addition, the revised standard requires the changes in
the net defined benefit liability (assets) to be split and
presented in the statement of comprehensive income
as follows:

—  service cost (including past service cost and
settlements) in profits or loss;

— net interest on the net defined benefit liability

(asset) in profit or loss; and

—  re-measurement of the defined benefit liability
(assets) in other comprehensive income.

The revised standard also includes more minor
changes to definition of short-term employee benefits
(in respect of the distinction between short-term and
long-term), the definition of return on plan assets,
the timing of recognition of termination benefits and
various disclosure requirements. The Group is yet

to assess HKAS 19 (Amendments)’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKAS 19 (Amendments) no later
than the accounting period beginning on or after 1st
January 2013.
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REPBHRRME

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HEZE-ZT——F+-_A=+—RHILFE

2. BAS'S OF PREPARAT'ON (Continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st

January 2012 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

o HKAS 28 (2011), “Investments in associates and joint
ventures” is substantially the same as HKAS 28 (2008)
except for the following:

— includes expanded guidance on how to apply
HKFRS 5, “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations”, to an investment or
a portion of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture meets the criteria to be classified
as held for sale; and

— modifies the accounting required when there
are changes in interest which result in a
change in the nature of the investment but
equity method continues to be applied (i.e.
an associate becomes a joint venture, or vice
versa). In such cases, under HKAS 28 (2011),
there is no re-measurement of the retained

interest to fair value.

The Group is yet to assess HKAS 28 (2011)’s full
impact and intends to adopt HKAS 28 (2011) no later
than the accounting period beginning on or after 1st

January 2013.
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For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1st

January 2012 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

o HKAS 32 (Amendments), “Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities”. The amendments clarify
the offsetting requirements by adding application
guidance to HKAS 32 to address the inconsistencies in
applying the criteria for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Group is yet to assess HKAS
32 (Amendments)’s full impact and intends to adopt
HKAS 32 (Amendments) no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1st January 2014.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations
that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a

material impact on the Group.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where it does not
have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-
facto control. De-facto control may arise from circumstances
such as enhanced minority rights or contractual terms
between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit

or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the

difference is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b)

Interests in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group's investment in associates includes
goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate

share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with

a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of results of
an associate” in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

(b)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESEEER
(Continued)
(c) Segment reporting () PHWME
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent BENEHzHREFANBEFELER
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating RERRMB ZAL #BiiZ)’iﬁ 2 o
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, EHARRZEESREEKERSE
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing H HAEH @Eéﬁjrﬂ Iz ED
performance of the operating segments, has been identified Bz KRR -
as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.
(d) Foreign currency translation (d IEFE
(i) Functional and presentation currency () EERZIE
Items included in the financial statements of each of AEBEETSEEZYHHRE
the Group's entities are measured using the currency o TEE X EBEETE
of the primary economic environment in which the FELKERB 2BOTEE(D
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The BEEEDIE KB RE
consolidated financial statements are presented LETEY B 7T BARNEZ
in Hong Kong dollars (HKD or HK$), which is the MEEEBE R AEBZ 25 &K -
Company's functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.
(i) Transactions and balances (i) XBREZE

Foreign currency transactions are translated into

the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange

gains and losses resulting from the settlement of

such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash
and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
income statement. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income
statement presented are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

(e) Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land and buildings are stated at fair value.
Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold
land and buildings, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated in the balance sheet
at their revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the balance

sheet date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
assets previously recognised as an expense, in which case the
increase is credited to the consolidated income statement to
the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease

in net carrying amount arising on revaluation of an asset

is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it exceeds

the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost or revalued amounts to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the remaining term of the
lease or 50 years, whichever
is shorter

10%-33"5%

Motor vehicles 20%

Furniture and fixtures

Computer and office equipment  16%5%-50%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated income statement. When revalued
assets are sold, the amounts included in other reserves are
transferred to retained earnings.

(e)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

(9)

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the Group, is classified as investment properties.
Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition at cost, investment properties

are carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices

on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated
income statement.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Intangible assets

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value
of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill

is monitored for internal management purposes.

Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes

in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value

in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense

and is not subsequently reversed.

Research and development expenditure

Costs associated with research activities are expensed
in the consolidated income statement as incurred.
Costs that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets provided
they meet the following recognition requirements:

(a) demonstration of technical feasibility of the

prospective product for internal use or sale;

(b)  there is intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

(c)  the Group's ability to use or sell the intangible
asset is demonstrated,;

(d)  the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or sale;

(e)  sufficient technical, financial and other

resources are available for completion; and

(f)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset can be reliably measured.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the direct
costs incurred from the date when the intangible
asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where

no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Direct
costs include employee costs incurred on development
activities along with an appropriate portion of relevant
overheads.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i) Research and development expenditure (Continued)
Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of 4
years.

(i) Customer relationships, software technology and
customer contracts
The acquired customer relationships, software
technology and customer contracts in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the assets, as

follows:

Customer relationships 5 years
Software technology 5 years
Customer contracts 3 months

(iv)  Club memberships
Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are
stated at cost less any identified impairment loss and
are tested for impairment annually by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that

they may be impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

0]

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes

in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet
date.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group classifies its financial assets into “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” and “loans and
receivables”. The classification depends on the purpose for

which the financial assets were acquired.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified as “financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” and
“borrowing”. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that have
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group's loans and receivables

"o

comprise “trade receivables”, “other receivables and
deposits”, “amounts due from customers for contract
work”, “finance lease receivables”, “restricted bank
deposits”, “cash and cash equivalents” and “long-

term bank deposit” in the consolidated balance sheet.

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value. At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised directly in the consolidated income

statement in the period in which they arise.

(iv)  Borrowing
Borrowing is recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowing is subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowing using the effective interest method.

Borrowing is classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

0]

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instruments. A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled

or expires. All interest related charges are recognised

in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for
borrowing costs.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition

of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“other gain” or “other loss” in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the Group's
right to receive payments is established.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(@

()

Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss

is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and goods
pending customers’ acceptance and are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out (“FIFO") method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks with original maturities of three months or less, and

bank overdrafts.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they

are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income

statement, except to the extent that it relates to items

recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income

or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised

in consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised

if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwiill,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability

in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b)  Deferred income tax (Continued)
Qutside basis differences
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

© Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement

is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax that reflects current market assessments

of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of

time is recognised as interest expense.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred
to buyers (generally on delivery, satisfactory installation and
customer acceptance) and the amount of revenue and the

costs incurred for the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, other than installation
services and maintenance services, is recognised as revenue
by reference to the stage of completion, provided that

the revenue, the costs incurred and the estimated costs to
completion can be measured reliably. Stage of completion
is established by reference to the costs incurred to date

as compared to the total costs to be incurred under the
transaction. Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon

as they are anticipated by the management.

Where recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts due from
customers for contract work. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the consolidated
balance sheet, as a liability, as receipts in advance. The
balances will be recognised as revenue when earned.

Installation services are generally provided incidentally to the
sale of a product, in which case they are recognised upon
satisfactory installation and customer acceptance.

Maintenance service income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the maintenance service contract.

Rental income, including office rentals, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the relevant leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Finance income implicit in finance lease is recognised as
interest income over the period of the lease so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of return of the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting
period.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are

recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) and other defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing
benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at

each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses which
exceed 10 per cent of the greater of the present value of
the Group's retirement benefit obligations and the fair value
of plan assets are amortised over the expected average
remaining working lives of the participating employees.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that
the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the average period until the
benefits vest.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet represents the present value of
the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised
actuarial gains/losses and unrecognised past service cost,
and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset
resulting from this calculation is limited to unrecognised
actuarial losses and past service cost, plus the present value
of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to
the plan.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income
earned on the temporary investment of the specific
borrowings, for the acquisition, construction or production
of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period

of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed
when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are

complete.

Share-based payment

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant

date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each balance sheet date, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry dates, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(v)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over

the period of the lease.

(i) The Group as lessee
The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant

rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of
the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

(i) The Group as lessor
When assets are leased out under an operating lease,
the asset is included in the balance sheet based on the
nature of the asset.

Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease

on a straight-line basis.

When assets are leased out under finance lease,

the risk and rewards of ownership are transferred

to customers. When assets are leased out under a
finance lease, the present value of the lease payments

is recognised as a receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the year in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

(x) Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others);

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member);

(3)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or

(7) A person identified in (a)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(a) Revenue recognition
According to the accounting policy as stated in Note
3(r), the Group uses the percentage of completion (the
“POC") method to determine the appropriate revenues
to be recognised from rendering of services (other than
maintenance services). The stage of completion is measured
by reference to the actual costs incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated costs of
completion. When the outcome of a POC contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it will be probably
recoverable.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables

The provisioning policy for trade and other receivables of
the Group is based on the evaluation of the collectability

of those receivables and on management’s judgement. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer and the realisation of any repayment pattern
promised. If the financial conditions of these customers were
to deteriorate, additional provision may be required.

Valuation of investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for similar leases and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, the Group determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair values estimated. In
making its estimates, the Group considers the information
from the valuations of investment properties, leasehold
land and buildings performed by external professional
valuers by using the open market value approach. Had the
Group used different valuation techniques, the fair value
of the investment properties, leasehold land and buildings
would be different and thus may have an impact to the

consolidated income statement.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which
the Group operates. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Estimated impairment of goodwill and other
intangible assets

In accordance with HKFRS, an impairment charge is required
for both goodwill and other intangible assets when the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, defined
as the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
Our approach in determining the recoverable amount utilises
a discounted cash flow methodology, which necessarily
involves making numerous estimates and assumptions
regarding revenue growth, operating margins, tax rates,
appropriate discount rates and working capital requirements.

Valuation of contingent consideration
payable

For acquisitions accounted for under HKFRS 3, future
anticipated payments to vendors in respect of earnouts

are based on the management'’s best estimates of future
obligations, which are dependent on future performance of
the interests acquired and assume the operating companies
improve profits in line with management'’s estimates and
are included in liabilities greater or less than one year as
appropriate. These estimates will likely differ from future
actual results of operations and cash flows, and it is possible
that these differences could be material. Changes to

earnouts are recorded in the consolidated income statement.

Capitalisation of development expenditure
Development expenditure are capitalised in accordance

with the accounting policy for research and development
expenditure in Note 3(g)(ii) to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to apply careful judgement when deciding
whether the recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. Judgements are based on the best
information available at each balance sheet date. In addition,
all internal activities related to the research and development
of new software, products or knowhow are continuously
monitored by the Company’s management.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves
and retained earnings as disclosed in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
prepare the annual budget taking into account of the provision of
funding. Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management of the Group, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues, short-term borrowings and share buy-backs as well as the

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

As at 31st December 2012, the Group’s total debt-to-total
equity ratio was 0.5% (2011: nil), which is within the range of
management’s expectation.

There are no changes on the Group’s approach to capital risk

management during the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in
United States dollars (“USD"), HKD and Singapore
dollars (“SGD"). Foreign exchange exposure to USD of
the Group will continue to be minimal as long as the
policy of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region to peg the HKD to the USD
remains in effect. There was no material exposure
to fluctuations in exchange rates, and therefore no
related hedging financial instrument was applied
during the year ended 31st December 2012 (2011:

same).

As at 31st December 2012, if SGD had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HKD with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$358,000 (2011:
HK$674,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange difference on translation of SGD
denominated assets and liabilities.

To manage the foreign currency risk arising from
SGD, the Group had entered into forward foreign
exchange contracts. A gain of approximately
HK$254,000 (2011: HK$21,000) was recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to variable interest rate risk in
respect of short-term borrowing, the bank balances
and deposits of the Group. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy. The
Group's interest rate risk is mainly concentrated

on the fluctuation of HKD variable interest rate on
bank deposits, bank balances and short-term bank

borrowing denominated in New Taiwan Dollars.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments including bank balances, at the
balance sheet date and the stipulated change taking
place at the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the reporting period in the case
of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment

of the reasonably possible change in interest rate.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year ended 31st December
2012 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$451,000 (2011: HK$321,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate short-term borrowing, bank

deposits and balances.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk was managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises

from cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits,

long-term bank deposit as well as credit exposures to

customers, including outstanding receivables and committed

transactions. The Group only places deposits in reputable

banks and financial institutions and manages its credit risk

associated with trade receivable through the application of

credit approvals, credit rating and monitoring procedures.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue trade receivables. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade receivables, bank balances and deposits,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset (Note 23) in the
consolidated balance sheet after deducting any impairment

provision.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the Board of Directors, which has built a liquidity

risk management framework for the management of the
Group's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Group relies on operating cash flows

as a significant source of liquidity.
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HKEAKRER®

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) "BEMRAR®
The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s TERIMAEBRAARREERE
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based ARF A ZH T HMEE @R A
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the AElpzemBE RPMBRECS
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the BHAKNKMBELSRE - HRMIBR
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances FEWVFTEKN R+ Z@ARNDNH
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the ZESEERERDE RS -

impact of discounting is not significant.

On demand or
within 1 year Over 1 year Total

RERR

R—FR BR-fF st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TET TET TET

At 31st December 2012 — Group R=ZZE—-F+=-A=1+-—-H

— X&H
Trade payables ENE 5508 230,924 854 231,778
Other payables H i fERARIE 13,996 — 13,996
Other financial liabilities HthemB Rk 8,239 — 8,239
Short-term bank loan REIRITER 2,669 — 2,669

255,828 854 256,682

On demand or

within 1 year Over 1 year Total
JRIRE R,

R—FA Bil—F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET

At 31st December 2011 — Group R=-Z——F+=-A=+—H

— 58

Trade payables ERE SHIE 200,432 = 200,432
Other payables H A fERERIE 9,677 == 9,677
Other financial liabilities HihemaRE 4,274 393 4,667

214,383 393 214,776
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MEERERE®

() RBMHEMRE

On demand or
within 1 year
R—FR
HK$'000
FTHET

At 31st December 2012

R-B--f+-A=1-H

Over 1 year Total

HBE—F B3t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

— Company — AAT
Other payables Hh e ARIE 22 — 22
Amount due to a subsidiary R—FEIF B A B FRIE 98 — 98
120 - 120
On demand or
within 1 year Over 1 year Total
AR E R
R—FR HBim—F “aEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
At 31st December 2011 R-B——F+=-A=1+—-AH
— Company — KQF
Other payables HihfERARIE 179 — 179
Amount due to a subsidiary R—FEK B R RIA 217 — 217
396 — 396

The Group relies on its surplus cash as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31st December 2012, the Group maintains
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$116,677,000

(2011: HK$108,404,000).

AEEKBERSABRBTRDES
2EERBE - R-_E——F+_-A1
“t+—HB AEEZBEeRBESE

BYWH 5116,677,0008 T (=T ——
£ 108,404,000 7T ) °
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, amounts due from customers for
contract work, finance lease receivables, restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other
payables, borrowing, approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities. The fair value of non-current portion
of trade receivables, finance lease receivables, long-term
bank deposit, restricted bank deposits, trade payables, and
contingent consideration payable are disclosed in Note 27,
28, 31, 34 and 37.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

6.

B35 B b BB ()

i}

D RBEEME

BHRNEEBED - SUBWE SR
HEERER RS AHTRRER
EPRE BMEBERWKTIE AR
HRITER ReRRLEEY &
NESHE KRN REAREE
FEEREAAEERE - EBRES
RIRZIERB AL - BB R E EAK
BZERBEN  RHMROTENR X
BHRITER BNEZFEZIER
BEO RENIRRED BN T
27 2831 34K%37IKE -

TEREINAEEUGBETEHARA
BEINKZEBIAZON - TRAE
REFEMT :

e HRAEEXABRERTS
TRARERCRERAE)(F —
&) o

s

s BRE-MMEBEZBEN X
EEXEBEZER(AER) XK
ME(BREER)TBRREZ2
B(E=A) -

s UHERABEMBBUEMNE
EdaE2BEAATEHERS
BO(E=R) -
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6 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

As at 31st December 2012, the Group did not have any
financial liabilities measured at fair value. The following table
presents the Group's financial liabilities that are measured at
fair value at 31st December 2011.

B 75 B b B B ()

A REEMT (&)
R-BE——&F+_-_A=+—1H  &&
BrSEEARBENEZHEE
B TR#IWR=ZZE——F+= A
=t+—BASERAREAEFEZH
BRE-

Other financial liabilities HitomaE
Contingent consideration payable FERTSARE

Level 2 Level 3 Total
E=R B=R st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET
— 8,818 8,818

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group

is the current bid price. These instruments are included in
level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is

included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

RERBTHSANEEZEB T AR
BEAZMEREFEAAEBE &
AZREERRZZH K58 &
oTEER  EERBREERR
MEHRE MZEERRRBEBRLE
HELEZEATFRAIETZTHR
5 QMBI RERTS - AEH
HEZHBEEMMZTSHRERE
FIZBEAEB - ZEILAFAEF K-

YHREEMSRNEEZEBMTA
(A IMTE T R) AR ERMEE 2
REBE ZEHERMEATEERT
BIEmBSEE YRERIKBEER
ZEEMEF - BTRAZAREBEMNT
ZHREERBBEHRVEREE A
BMZTRAGFASE R -

E—ENSEEABBEL FATHRE
ZTMEBEBEAEE Bz TAB
ANEZH -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

(d) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial

instruments include:

3 The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts

is determined using forward exchange rates at

the balance sheet date, with the resulting value

discounted back to present value.

. Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow

analysis, are used to determine fair value for the

remaining financial instruments.

The following table presents the changes in contingent

consideration payable which are classified as level 3

instruments for the years ended 31st December 2012 and

31st December 2011.

B E kT B )

(d)

AREEMGE (@)
ARG T B E2 5T i E R
BIE

o EHNNEANZOARBEDNE
ARNEERZERINEREXE
E o MABEELRRERE -

o WMMRBERAOMEHMTTE
TTRAREE#RTERIAZA
AfEE -

TEHINEEZE T ——F+=HA
=+—BR=ZZE—F+ZA=+—
ALFEZENGIARERINAE=
HITERZZH -

2012 2011
—E-—=fF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
At 1st January n—HA—H 8,818 —
Contingent consideration payable for FULEBHT B A ) 2 PR A
acquisition of subsidiaries RE = 8,461
Fair value losses recognised in the REFEIBmRERZ
consolidated income statement AREEBRE 1,748 357
Derecognised and included in other RIEERARBIEE
financial liabilities Hit 2 mas (10,566) -
At 31st December Wt+-—A=+—H — 8,818
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for
goods sold by the Group to outside customers, less returns and

allowances, and revenue from service contracts, and is analysed as

WA K 7 &8 & #
WA T 37K S B R 5N SR 5 A O R (3

BRERITM) RRERBEHDBAZER
NEWZFER BoWWET :

follows:
2012 2011
—E2——F —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Sales of goods HEEM 905,002 899,490
Revenue from service contracts RERBE L2 WA 768,277 637,838
1,673,279 1,537,328

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
Board of Directors (the “Board”). The Board reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess the performance and allocate
resources. The Board has determined the operating segments
based on the Group’s internal reporting.

The Group is currently organised into two (2011: two) operating
divisions — Information Technology Products (“IT Products”) and
Information Technology Services (“IT Services”). These divisions
are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information to the chief operating decision maker. The business
nature of each segment is disclosed as follows:

IT Products
Being the business of information technology in supplying of
information technology and associated products.

IT Services

Being the business of information technology in providing systems
integration, software and consulting services, engineering support
for products and solutions and managed services.

EXZQCHBRARIBELERRE -EF
SENAEENRNMERUBRTEEER
DERER -BESREBEAEE 2 A BEDE R

EEEZENEL -

AgEEBECE——F : ME)ELH
PR — M RER(TERAMHES )
RAMB BB (T B RRSE]) - b
HPIRARESRETEHHEHNTEE
EEAREZERE SESBLEHILH
EENT -

AMBEER
BN AR B R RARFIE @ 2 B AR
RER -

B AR B AR 3

BRHRAAES RHERBARE  ES
RERARZIBIBEREBREZEM
BT -
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

WARDIER
ZEEE Y SBEREHMT

Segment information about these businesses is presented below:

Year ended 31st December 2012

BE-_Z——Ff+-A=+—HLEE

IT Products IT Services Total Group

EAREER EAR RS HIHAES

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FHET FET FExT

Revenue from external customers REINIESE Z WA 905,002 768,277 1,673,279

Intersegment revenue e LON 16,252 32,822 49,074

Segment revenue A EBUA 921,254 801,099 1,722,353

Reportable segment profit ARG D EBEF 38,368 71,460 109,828

Reportable segment assets AIRE D EEE 294,450 379,590 674,040

Reportable segment liabilities AIRE DI A E 210,656 167,623 378,279

Segment depreciation DEHTE 1,623 10,834 12,457

Segment amortisation pan=is: s — 2,559 2,559
Additions to property, plant and RNEWHE  BER

equipment B 359 5,592 5,951

Additions to intangible assets NEBEEE — 3,245 3,245

Year ended 31st December 2011 HE-_T——F+-A=+—HILFE

IT Products IT Services Total Group

BEHRER BRI RS BEAEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FA&T F&T

Revenue from external customers REINEEE P 2 A 899,490 637,838 1,537,328

Intersegment revenue REHELON 23,655 39,782 63,437

Segment revenue A EBUA 923,145 677,620 1,600,765

Reportable segment profit A& 5 EB AT 47,884 54,236 102,120

Reportable segment assets AIREDEEE 287,972 306,393 594,365

Reportable segment liabilities AHREDEAE 182,163 144,721 326,884

Segment depreciation DETE 2,627 8,819 11,446

Segment amortisation 73 B 5 — 2,071 2,071
Additions to property, plant and REVE BER

equipment B 957 5,272 6,229

Additions to intangible assets RERVEE — 12,035 12,035

Additions to goodwill NEEE — 35,274 35,274
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(a)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as the Group'’s accounting policies described in
Note 3. Performance is measured based on segment profit
that is used by the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance. Income tax expense is not allocated to

reportable segments.

The revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group
are allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before income tax,
excluding unallocated other income, other gain or loss, net,
share of results of associates, gain or loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment, unallocated depreciation
for property, plant and equipment that are used for all
segments, fair value gain on revaluation of investment
properties, finance costs and other corporate expenses
(mainly include staff costs and other general administrative

expenses) of the head office.

Reportable segment assets exclude interests in associates,
deferred income tax assets, restricted bank deposits,

cash and cash equivalents, long-term bank deposit and
unallocated corporate assets (mainly include property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and part of intangible
assets that are used by all segments, prepayments and
deposits).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities and unallocated
corporate liabilities (mainly include accrued charges of the
head office).

Additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and goodwill include additions resulting from

acquisition through business combinations.

7. WARDHER @

(a)

AR o0 /R P ER R B0 & AT IR AR T BB
A3 AEEO G ERERR o X
AORBIZEERKERROELE
BRRFHEDARBND EEFFHE -

MERAXTEsREA®MEDM -

AEEMBA BMNHEE BEK
BENROHBNEBREESR -

Al s o BE B B 2 BR BT S B AT R
oA ERRDEEMEA - EtF

W sFEE  BEBERRESA
HENE BERIKBZRAXE

BRAESHERZYE BEK
REZARPENE ERKREMEZ
NRBEEM WBRARERER
ZHBRARHAX(EZ|/EETKA
R E AR —RITEAA) °

%ﬁ%ﬁmﬁFT EE A WNCIL
CEERTSREE - ZRHIRTE
fﬂ%&fﬁi\#{ﬁ% REJIRITE
ﬁwA&ﬂi NRIBEE(XEBEH
ﬁ"*ﬁfiﬁzf@% PR ek - 18
BYMENRIBHEREE - FBARE
Rig&) -

£|

Fi

” E‘\

AHRENHMHBENRREINMME
MeE BREMEHEBERADEDR
FAB(Z2EHRANERZEE
) -

ME BEEKZH BEREERTE
ZAEBREASBERAFETUE
MEELEZARE °
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
Reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities are reconciled to results and total assets and total

liabilities of the Group as follows:

WARDEHER @

(b) AHREZDEHBA ~ BFHE

B -BEREENHIER
AHEZHBPA  EFREE B
ERAERFEEEERBEER
RAEHENT

Revenue A 2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Reportable segment revenue AJHRE 2 FRUA 1,722,353 1,600,765
Elimination of intersegment revenue HigE > EBEUA (49,074) (63,437)
Revenue per consolidated income statement RA4R4& B2RBEFIHRA U A 1,673,279 1,537,328

Intersegment revenue is charged at cost plus a percentage of

profit mark-up.

5 BB P W A R B AR 0 AR R UGB

Profit or loss EFIREE 2012 2011
—E——F —E——f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
(Restated)
(&51)
Reportable segment profit A RS 5 2 F 109,828 102,120
Unallocated amounts: ROBEFIE :
Unallocated other income R B EAKA 2,404 CHelE)
Unallocated other gain/(loss), net KOMEMFWRE (EER) 2,843 (2,505)
Fair value gain on revaluation of BHIEEWMEZ
investment properties AR EEEM 7,700 4,000
Unallocated gain/(loss) on disposal of ROBEEME - BEK
property, plant and equipment Bz e (Ei8) 22 (263)
Unallocated depreciation ROBCITE (5,794) (5,638)
Share of results of associates i daNCIE S 486 913
Finance costs IR ID¥N (282) —
Unallocated corporate expenses RO AFRZ (69,506) (57,090)
Profit before income tax per RERE BRI
consolidated income statement B P45 BE AR 47,701 45,110
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(Continued)

WARDEER @

(b) THEZDIBBA ~ BFRE
B EEREENHEKR®E

Assets BE 2012 2011
—E——& T ——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Reportable segment assets AIRE D EEE 674,040 594,365
Unallocated assets: ROBEE :
Interests in associates ik N e 804 1,287
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSTIEE 1,441 1,001
Unallocated restricted bank deposits AOBEZRBRHEITFER 3,987 860
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents RO RE RREEEY 116,677 108,404
Unallocated long-term bank deposit KA RBIRITER — 155
Unallocated corporate assets RO REIEE 247,269 203,175
Total assets per consolidated e AERBRYIERN
balance sheet BEMRE 1,044,218 909,247
Liabilities =R 2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Reportable segment liabilities AIRE D E A A 378,279 326,884
Unallocated liabilities: KOMLBEE
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRS T A& 908 5,644
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFTSTBE 30,324 23,385
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROLARAE 60,705 45,707
Total liabilities per consolidated RirE BEBBRYRN
balance sheet BERR 470,216 401,620
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

The Group's businesses and segment assets are all located
in the respective place of domicile of the relevant Group
entities which include Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Macau,
Singapore, Taiwan and Thailand.

7. WAKRDEHBER @

(b)

Place of domicile FriE it Revenue from external customers

REIMBEF ZBWA

2012
—E—_F
HK$°000

2011

—FT—F

HK$'000

AHEZDBEA - BERHE
B -EEREENHEKR®E

AEE RS BAED B
BMEEERE G2 HE B eE
B M ORI FANE AR
RE -

Non-current assets
FRBEE
2012 2011
—E——& T ——F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET TERT FET

Hong Kong BE 1,410,798 1,355,671 246,646 214,192
Guangzhou = 30,876 17,914 864 229
Macau JRFT 53,210 54,299 905 1,475
Singapore EIIIEd 55,418 17,685 47,852 34,518
Taiwan =) 83,139 41,711 172 579
Thailand R 36,412 48,543 583 712
Others Efth 3,426 1,505 — —
1,673,279 1,537,328 297,022 251,705
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OTHER INCOME 8. HfzxA
2012 2011
—E——fF T ——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FA&T
(Restated)
(&%)
Interest on bank deposits SRITIFRCF B 155 265
Rental income from investment properties REREMEZHE WA
(Note 20) (F#E20) 1,862 1,496
Referral income received from group companies KB EBEQTHNBEWA — 859
Others Hitb 479 953
2,496 3,573
OTHER GAIN/(LOSS), NET 9. HitFhz (HA)
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
(Restated)
(&%)
Deferred consideration payable EHEERE
— Fair value gain/(loss) — RAhEEK (Bi8) 3,124 (1,226)
Exchange loss, net I 5 18 E (380) (1,596)
Fair value gain on RESNES K 2
forward foreign exchange contract AR EERE 254 21
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment EHEWE « BE MRE 2 EIE (189) (1,060)
2,809 (3,861)
FINANCE INCOME 10. B WA
Finance income represents accretion of discount recognised upon FBBRAEVTREAARBEERERR

initial recognition of loans and receivables to their fair values

(2011: same).

FEUGR IR R RERMBIRIE M (T — —F -
R
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11.

12.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

11.

Profit before income tax is arrived after charging/(crediting):

BR Fft 15 % Al & A

BRETEBATENDEMER (G A) T35

FIA

2012
—E—_—F

HK$’000
FERT

Employee benefit expenses (excluding
directors’ remuneration) (Note 12)

Depreciation and amortisation:
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets (included in cost of

services rendered)

Directors’ remuneration (Note 13)

Auditor’s remuneration:
Current year
Underprovision in respect of prior year

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (Note 42(a))

Interest on short-term bank loans wholly
repayable within one year

Operating lease rentals in respect of:
Office premises
Computer equipment

Bad debt expenses

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(Note 27)

Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables (Note 27)

RERAAX (TREZESEHE)

(Mf3E12)
PrEE R
mE - BEREE
EREE (BEERERS
Z B
EEWHE (F3E13)
ZEEMBN S
REEZ
BEFERETR
HEWE  BEREE2EER
(KiFE42(@a))
BR—FNEEEE 2 BB
RITERF B
KERERS
Mo=YE
B
AR
FEURE 5 3B E RS
(Hf3%27)
FEUREE 5 FRIB 2 B B s s
(B&E27)

536,266

18,251

2,559
18,078

1,618
216

189
20
7,984
12

69

793

(179)

2011
—ZT——%F
HK$'000
FHT
440,044

17,084

2,071
8,457

2,847
30

1,060

8,099
13

758

(554)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(EXCLUDING DIRECTORS'

12.

37

E%E%U%i(?\@ﬁ%%@ﬂ

REMUNERATION)
2012 2011
—B——F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fax FAT
Salaries and other benefits e REAER 486,200 418,426
Performance related incentive bonus FRIBA 2 SBE)EAL 39,313 12,619
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIGT B 9,649 8,999
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses — LABR(D A ERE S 2 FIsL 1,104 —
536,266 440,044
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 13. EEH
2012 2011
—E——F —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Fees we 718 530
Other emoluments: HuEe -
Salaries and other benefits e MEAMEF 8,423 6,527
Performance related incentive bonus FRINBE 2 BEEIELL 8,029 1,336
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFFT B4R 96 64
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses LA AERE S 2 FIx2 812 —
18,078 8,457
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven (2011: ten) ARBENKENT —N(ZE——F : ) E
directors were as follows: EZBeWT

Year ended 31st December 2012
BE-2-——Ft+t-A=+-HLEFE
Performance Equity-
related settled
incentive Retirement share-based

Salaries bonus benefit payment

and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits #EEM contributions AR AD 2
Fees HFek ZEBA BINER HEfE Total

Name of director EEng e  HthER (BizEa) FHEMER ZBX k)

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET THET THEx THERT TR

Lai Yam Ting, Ready BEE — 935 1,941 (546) — 2,330

Hui Wing Choy, Henry 5Bt — 3,541 3,762 306 381 7,990

Leung Tat Kwong, Simon 3£ — 2,328 1,521 190 148 4,187
Lau Ming Chi, Edward ~ 2I$43% (Fit3tb)

(Note b) — 1,619 805 146 283 2,853
Hu Liankui il 70 — — — — 70
Wang Weihang F#EM 50 — — — — 50
Chen Zhaohui (Note ¢)  BRBAEE (FfizEc) 24 — — — — 24
Young Meng Ying B @t 212 — — — — 212
Lu Jiaqi BEET 176 — — — — 176
Xu Peng g 164 — — — — 164
Zou Zhiying (Note d) PEE (HEEd) 22 = = — — 22

718 8,423 8,029 96 812 18,078
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

13. EF

2 ()

\

Year ended 31st December 2011
P —FtZASt-BLEE

Performance Equity-
related settled
incentive Retirement  share-based
Salaries bonus benefit payment
and other (Note a) scheme expenses
benefits ®IFAEM  contributions IARAR A
Fees Hek ZREELA RRIEA Ef A Total
Name of director e we o HtEw (BisEa) HEIGEA ZRE 1w
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
THET THET THET TET THET THET
Lai Yam Ting, Ready BEZ = 2,387 298 (287) = 2,398
Hui Wing Choy, Henry ¥k 8f (Hizte)

(Note e) — 303 800 25 — 1,128
Leung Tat Kwong, Simon 3£ o 2,280 126 186 — 2,592
Lau Ming Chi, Edward  2I$%& — 1,557 112 140 — 1,809
Hu Liankui sl 70 — — — — 70
Wang Weihang T#EMm 50 — — — — 50
Chen Zhaohui PREARE 50 — — — — 50
Young Meng Ying @B 134 — — — — 134
Lu Jiaqi FEs 116 = = = = 116
Xu Peng o3 110 — — — = 110

530 6,527 1,336 64 — 8,457

(@)  The performance related incentive bonus are determined as () EREWY BRI RAEEERE
a percentage of profit for the year of the Group. A ZBADLETE -

(b)  Mr. Lau Ming Chi, Edward has resigned as an Executive (b) BlHEEEDBREIADTRITES
Director of the Company with effect from 1st February 2013. BE-E——HE-A—BiE4EW -

() Mr. Chen Zhaohui has resigned as a Non-Executive Director © BHEBLEEBRAAAFIEHTE
of the Company with effect from 20th June 2012. T H-T——FAA-+BRE

-

(d)  Ms. Zou Zhiying was appointed as a Non-Executive Director d) BPEERLLR-_E——&ExA-+H
of the Company in replacement of Mr. Chen Zhaohui on EEEAANTERITE S IESR
20th June 2012 and has resigned with effect from 30th BEE A WEEASHEBE &8
November 2012. T —E+— A=+ HEEN

(e)  Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry was appointed as the Chief () HKMEEREEELEBSELERE

Executive Officer in replacement of Mr. Lai Yam Ting, Ready.
Mr. Hui was appointed as an Executive Director on 1st
December 2011.

During the year ended 31st December 2012, no remuneration
has been paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group and no directors have waived any
remuneration (2011: same).

FTREH N-ZTE——F+-A—
A FAEEZTENTES -

BE_Z-—_H+-_A=+—HLHFE "
AEBTEREEZTMAAERN N Z
e WREEEREEMMES(ZT——
F AR -
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14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 14. hE&xa#FH EE
The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year FREEBEaFZ2REREBE=4(Z2F——
included three (2011: four) directors as at 31st December FoMB)ESE BEZMEFBEERLEX
2012, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 13 MsF 13T FRNEBR -_Z(ZE——F
above. The remuneration of the remaining two (2011: one and —ZRHFKTEERTETBARRBITHREAR
the remuneration of Mr. Hui Wing Choy, Henry prior to his FZEoHEEZMNESHBOT

appointment as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group) highest
paid individuals for the year were as follows:

2011
—E——fF
HK$'000
FET
Salaries and other benefits e REAER 2,323 3,036
Performance related incentive bonus FRINBR 2 ETEA 3,241 2,852
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IR TSI 5R 25 247
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses  MARR3 AEME 2 174 —
5,763 6,135

Their remunerations were within the following bands: BEZHMENFTHEHEE :

Number of individuals
BRAZ

2011
—T——F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7C22,000,000/8 7T — 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 3,000,000/ 7T 2 =
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/ 7.5 4,500,000/ 7T = 1
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15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15. FTSH A X
2012 2011
—E—_F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Current taxation: BENEARR IR -
Hong Kong profits tax BEANEH 6,935 8,788
Overseas taxation G INFRIE 696 680
(Over)/Under-provision in respect BEFE(BEEE)
of prior years: BETR
Hong Kong profits tax BEAFER (223) (7,630)
Overseas taxation N IR (13) 52
7,395 1,890
Deferred taxation (Note 39): EERTE (M 3E39) ¢
Current year KEE (888) (1,596)
Income tax expense Frig®im X 6,507 294

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

EBMNEHCIRBAFEE G ERBEF
ZHE165% (ZF——F :16.5%) EL &
# o BINEF) 2 BB AR B A F E (T E
RAMAFRAEALEEBAEER 2R
IR EFE -
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15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15. TR @

AN 55 B B P15 0 BT ) 2 B R R R R E B
REHBERERN ZMEFHREFHZE
WEBMIERWT :

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

2012 2011
—E—_—F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FA&T
Profit before income tax R PS5 A& A1 47,701 45,110
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% BREANGHNE165%E
(2011: 16.5%) ZHE (ZF——%F : 16.5%) 7,871 7,443
Tax effects of: Miswa
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose R A AR X W 1,916 1,362
Income not taxable for tax purpose RS A ETERE 2 WA (2,077) (1,094)
Effect of different tax rates of overseas REINE BB 2 TR E
operations 2 (24) 111
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 BB EE 1,045 590
Reversal of income tax provision for change RELMMBFEHEEBIELH 2
of accounting year end date FrisRism — (1,267)
Over provision in prior years BAFEBERE (236) (6,311)
Others Efth (1,988) (540)
Income tax expense FRiSHIF X 6,507 294

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 13.6% (2011:

0.7%).

METERREBI13.6% (ZF——F 07%) ¢
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16.

17.

DIVIDENDS 16. R &2
2012 2011
—E—_F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Dividends recognised as distribution RENERBDIRZRE

during the year:

Final dividend in respect of the year ended HE_ZT——F+-_A=t+—Hi

31st December 2011 of 5.5 HK cents FE2REPREERS. 551

per share (2011: nine months ended (ZB——F  HE_T—ZF

31st December 2010 of 4.0 HK cents +=ZA=+—BuENEAZ

per share) REARR B & A4.081L) 17,127 12,456
Dividends proposed: BORARE.
Final dividend in respect of the year ended BE—_T——&%+=-A=+—H

31st December 2012 of 5.0 HK cents LEFE 2 REAR BB AR5.075 1

per share (2011: 5.5 HK cents per share) —T——%F : §R5.58() 15,570 17,127

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profits attributable to equity holders of
the Company, a loss of approximately HK$3,653,000 (2011:
HK$2,617,000) has been dealt with in the Company's financial
statements.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s profit for the

17. XA RAEEAEMLER

AARBAFTEABEEEREFG  BE
493,653,000 L (= ——4%F :2,617,000/%
T)ERAARFHEREANEE -

tREFEARBFARRN 2 HHE

year:
2012 2011
—E-—fF =%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Amount of consolidated loss attributable NZNNCILR 2 S g el
to equity shareholders dealt with in the BEANELGEEESR
Company’s financial statements (3,653) (2,617)
Final dividends from a subsidiary attributable F B R 2R & — M B
to the profits of the previous financial year, AR E— A ERFEREF
approved and paid during the year ZAREARR S 4,000 39,000

Company’s profit for the year (Note 33b) RARFEREF (MHEE33b) 347 36,383
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18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BER AR
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RRABBRABBEABLEESRERNREER
attributable to equity holders of the Company is based on the TR T A 8Bt E -

following data:

Earnings per share for profit attributable to BRABRBRAEABFEAELEREF
equity holders of the Company

2012 2011
—E——F T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FT
Earnings for the purpose of basic and AU ESRERREEERT
diluted earnings per share Z B 41,194 44,816

Number of shares

RHEE
‘000 ‘000
F i TR
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ AT ESREAR#EEE T
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings 2 E3@AZIIRE 158
per share 311,403 311,403
On 19th March 2012 and 2nd May 2012, the Company has RZE—ZF=A+NABEZT—ZFHA
granted share options to certain eligible persons under the share AZR  ARRAFRERBENR-_ZZT_FN\H
option scheme of the Company adopted on 8th August 2002, to NBRAQ 2 BRETE  mMETEEBALT
subscribe for a total of 6,900,000 and 6,755,000 ordinary shares of BB RRE - A5 RIR S #£86,900,000
HK$0.10 each of the Company respectively. 56,755,000 % & AR E 180.10% 7T 2 N2
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st December BHE-_T——F+-RA=+—RHLFE "
2012 is the same as the basic earnings per share as the conversion BREERNEGRERNBFER - BIEE
of potential ordinary shares in relation to the outstanding share ETEBRERBARARAT L HARMEITH
options would have an anti-dilutive effect to the basic earnings per TBERESIBREEYRR - HE-T——
share. There were no dilutive instruments for the year ended 31st F+ZA=+—HLFE VEHETA -

December 2011.
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

19. 9% BERKE—FKEH

GROUP AND COMPANY KA F]
(a) Group (a) =59
Leasehold Computer
land and and office
buildings Furniture Motor  equipment
HELTHE  and fixtures vehicles ERlKR Total
BF HGAREE AE O BRERB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TET TR THT TR
At 1st January 2011 RZB——F
—-A—-H
Cost or valuation AL E 129,300 42,015 3,792 186,869 361,976
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE = (37,280) (2,991) (158,798) (199,069)
Net book amount BEFE 129,300 4,735 801 28,071 162,907
Year ended 31st December 2011 BE-_Z——&
+=A=+-H
LEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 129,300 4,735 801 28,071 162,907
Additions RE - 1,046 — 7,141 8,187
Acquisition of subsidiaries YRR A Al — 28 — 279 307
Disposals HE — (143) = (1,354) (1,497)
Depreciation and amortisation charge  #7% R s % (3,543) (1,869) (407) (11,265) (17,084)
Exchange realignment [ 5 39 % - (6) () (38) (51)
Revaluation adjustment BHPE 24,143 — — — 24,143
Closing net book amount BREEFE 149,900 3,791 387 22,834 176,912
At 31st December 2011 R-Z——F
T=A=t-H
Cost or valuation AR IEE 149,900 28,923 2,434 118,376 299,633
Accumulated depreciation REE — (25,132) (2,047) (95,542) (122,721)
Net book amount REFE 149,900 3,791 387 22,834 176,912
Comprising: '
At cost AR — 28,923 2,434 118,376 149,733
At valuation hE 149,900 — — — 149,900
149,900 28,923 2,434 118,376 299,633
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — 19. ¥ -BEREZE E&E
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued) ) & NVNEIRE )
(a) Group (Continued) (a) =&EBE )
Leasehold Computer
land and and office
buildings Furniture Motor  equipment
HEL#HEK  and fixtures vehicles BEKR Total
B BRAREE RE BAERB @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THx THT FHT
At 1st January 2012 RZB-ZF
—-B—-B
Cost or valuation A EE 149,900 28,923 2,434 118,376 299,633
Accumulated depreciation ZEE — (25,132) (2,047) (95,542) (122,721)
Net book amount EHFE 149,900 3,791 387 22,834 176,912

Year ended 31st December 2012 BE-ZE--F

+=ZA=+-H
HFE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 149,900 3,791 387 22,834 176,912
Additions RE — 2,895 - 6,310 9,205
Disposals & — (213) — (185) (398)
Depreciation and amortisation charge  #7% 5 05% (4,223) (1,784) (248) (11,996) (18,251)
Exchange realignment [ % 5% — " 1 51 63
Revaluation adjustment SR 44,223 — — — 44,223
Closing net book amount BAREEFE 189,900 4,700 140 17,014 211,754
At 31st December 2012 R-B-——F
+=ZA=+-H
Cost or valuation AR E 189,900 29,645 2,146 120,775 342,466
Accumulated depreciation ZEIE — (24,945) (2,006) (103,761) (130,712)
Net book amount REFE 189,900 4,700 140 17,014 211,754
Comprising: af
At cost %N — 29,645 2,146 120,775 152,566
At valuation (e 189,900 — — — 189,900

189,900 29,645 2,146 120,775 342,466
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —
GROUP AND COMPANY (continued)

(@) Group (Continued)

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group's leasehold land and buildings were
stated at valuations made at 31st December

2012. The leasehold land and buildings were last
revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an
independent professional valuer, at 31st December
2012, at market value basis which is determined by
reference to market evidence of recent transactions
for similar properties. The revaluation gave rise to

a revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred
income taxes of approximately HK$36,926,000 (2011:
HK$20,159,000) which has been credited to the
property revaluation reserve.

As at 31st December 2012, if the leasehold land
and buildings had not been revalued, they would
have been included in these consolidated financial
statements at historical cost, less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation, of approximately
HK$50,431,000 (2011: HK$52,497,000).

The Group’s interest in leasehold land represents
finance lease payments held in Hong Kong between
10 to 50 years.

Depreciation and amortisation of the Group's
property, plant and equipment have been charged to
the consolidated income statement as follows:

19. 9% BERREFEE
SENNCIED

(a) &A&E®®)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AEBZHETHREF IR
RZFE—=—F+=-A=+—H
ZEEME AELHRIEF
B XABYEEGBEME
BRTERAANR-ZZE—ZF
+-A=Z+—BRZ2EHTHL
FENMELBRR S 2 ERE -
RREVESROIRSMEREE
BETEM EHENBRERE
AR BEELEEGFREN
36,926,000/ L (=T ——4F :
20,159,000/ 7T) * W E & AR
MESHFHE -

RZE——ZF+_A=+—
B Mg+ REFREE
i HEERELKANRKRRG
P18 K # $5 4950,431,0007% 7T
(==& — — % :52,497,000 &
T AZEREMHHRE -

AEBREE T2 S ER
ERFHBNFI0E50F 2@ E
HERK -

REBZME BERERHBZ
FEERGEBRERP MR D
™

2012 2011

—E——fF —T—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Cost of services rendered R 2 KA 10,492 10,049
Selling expenses HEEM 1,965 1,397
Administrative expenses THER 5,794 5,638
18,251 17,084

As at 31st December 2012, the Group has pledged
leasehold land and buildings with carrying amount of
HK$189,900,000 (2011: HK$149,900,000) to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group as mentioned
in Note 47.

WM sF47 T - R=ZF—ZF
+-A=+—8 AEEDE
# BE ™ £ % 189,900,000 & 7T
— F — — 4 :149,900,0008
T ZHE T REFUESE
FAEBMZBITHRE -
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

2%

T-_F+-_A=T—HILFE

19. 9% BERKE—FKEH

GROUP AND COMPANY (continued) &Z'KZ\ ﬁ_](a’%}
(b) Company (b) &AF
Computer
and office
Furniture Motor equipment
and fixtures vehicles BRR Total
BREEE RE BAERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FHT
At 1st January 2011 R=T——%—A—H
Cost BRAR 1,982 1,750 24 3,756
Accumulated depreciation Rt e (646) (1,225) (7) (1,878)
Net book amount BREFE 1,336 525 17 1,878
Year ended 31st December 2011 H#Z=Z——fF
+ZA=+—HLEEE
Opening net book amount HAFIBREDF{E 1,336 525 17 1,878
Additions NE 8 — — 8
Depreciation charge TEMR (398) (338) (4) (740)
Closing net book amount BARBREFE 946 187 13 1,146
At 31st December 2011 R=Z——%F
+=BA=+—H
Cost BRAR 1,990 1,750 24 3,764
Accumulated depreciation 28 (1,044) (1,563) “n (2,618)
Net book amount AREDFE 946 187 13 1,146
At 1st January 2012 R-B—=-5—-8A—H
Cost BRAR 1,990 1,750 24 3,764
Accumulated depreciation 218 (1,044) (1,563) (11) (2,618)
Net book amount BREFE 946 187 13 1,146
Year ended 31st December 2012 H#EZE - ——f
+ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount ER¥ARE R A 946 187 13 1,146
Depreciation charge EMR (398) (187) (3) (588)
Closing net book amount EARBREDFE 548 — 10 558
At 31st December 2012 R-B——F
+=BA=+—H
Cost BRAR 1,990 1,750 24 3,764
Accumulated depreciation 28 (1,442) (1,750) (14) (3,206)
Net book amount BREFAE 548 — 10 558

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$588,000
(2011: HK$740,000) has been charged to “administrative

expenses”.

T & 1 X £9588,0008 T (=T — —
F :740,0008 7)) ERTTTHRE MR H

kR
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP 20. BEWE — K&
2012 2011
—E-——fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
At valuation 1B

At 1st January KR—HA—H 28,700 24,700
Fair value gain AREEEM 7,700 4,000
At 31st December R+-—_A=+—8H 36,400 28,700

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated NT2HEERGEEERERR

income statement:

2012 2011
—E-—=F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Rental income (Note 8) el A (F:s) 1,862 1,496
Direct operating expense arising from EERSBAZIEEYZE
investment properties that generate FREEZ EREERY
rental income 277 276
(@)  The investment properties of the Group were last revalued (@) FTEBZREMERE-—RBBELE
by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent ¥MEMBERTERAARE
professional valuer at 31st December 2012, on the basis of ——F+ZA=+—RERmEEER
market value (2011: same). ETEMRZE——F - AHR) °
(b)  The Group's interests in investment properties are analysed (b) FEERBREMEZEZINOT :
as follows:

2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT F&ET
In Hong Kong, held on: REBRE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E50F 2 HE 36,400 28,700
The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under non- AR HR S O] H8E A AE 4D B U 2 R R &
cancellable operating leases are set out in Note 45. KE & @FE N EE45 -

() Asat 31st December 2012, the Group has pledged (0 mMF47FEL - RZFE—=ZF+=H
investment properties with carrying amount of =t+—H FAEEZERZREME
HK$36,400,000 (2011: HK$28,700,000) to secure banking BR ™ £ %836,400,0008 (=% — —
facilities granted to the Group as mentioned in Note 47. F :28,700,0007 70 ) AEB R T ARE

B ZRITHE -
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL —

21. B EENEE —KEE K

GROUP AND COMPANY ZAN/NE]
(a) Group (a) *%
Goodwill Intangible assets
BE EVEE
Deferred
development Club Customer Software Customer
cost ~ memberships relationships  technology contracts Total
i1
BRAK Bk EFBR BEBT EFEH @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn Thzr Thzn TEn Tn T Tn
At 1st January 2011 R-%--%-f-8
Cost Bk - - 900 - - = 900
Accumulated amortisation and ~ EEFE#EREE
impairment - - - - - - -
Net book amount FEFE - — 900 — - = 900
Year ended 315t December 2011 BZ=-5--%
TZRZT-HLEE
Opening net book amount BEEFE - - 900 - - - 900
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAF 35,274 = = 4,989 6,767 79 12,035
Amortisation B - - - (758) (1,09 (284) 2,01
Exchange realignment HEELS (1,061) = - (117) (159) 5 (271)
Closing net book amount HREMFE 34213 - 900 4114 5579 - 10,593
At 31t December 2011 R-F--%
+=A=1-A
Cost A 34213 - 900 4839 6,564 210 12,573
Accumulated amortisation and ~ EEFE#RAE
impairment — — — (725) (985) (270) (1,980)
Net book amount FEFE 34213 - 900 4114 5579 — 10,593
At 1t January 2012 R=%-=%-5-B
Cost A 34213 - 900 4,839 6,564 210 12,573
Accumulated amortisation and B E#EREE
impairment - - - (725) (985) (270) (1,980)
Net book amount FEFE 34,213 - 900 4114 5,579 — 10,593
Year ended 31st December 2012 BZ-F-_%
TZRZT-HLEE
Opening net book amount BREFE 34213 - 900 4,114 5,579 - 10,593
Additions HE - 3,45 - - - - 3,45
Amortisation B - (192) - (1,005) (1,362) = (2,559)
Exchange realignment ERERE 2,034 12 - prE} 303 - 538
Closing net book amount BREEFE 36,247 3,065 900 333 4,520 - 11,817
At 31st December 2012 W-8--§
TZB=1-H
Cost A 36,247 3,260 900 5127 6,954 - 16,241
Accumulated amortisation and  EEfE#RHE
impairment — (195) - (1,795) (2,434) - (4,420)
Net book amount FEFE 36,247 3,065 900 3332 4,520 — 11,817

During the year ended 31st December 2012, amortisation
of approximately HK$2,559,000 (2011: HK$2,071,000)
has been charged to “cost of services rendered” in the
consolidated income statement.

HE-Z—=-F+=-A=+—HBLF
g - #$5492,559,00008 T (ZF ——
F :2,071,0008 ) ERERABER
ZIREBRG 2 ARk -
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL —
GROUP AND COMPANY (Continued)

21.

mpAERER — ARER
ZN/NCIIC-S

(b) Company (b) &AAF
Club
memberships
g
HK$'000
FHET
At 1st January 2011, 31st December 2011 and RZE——F—HA—H ZF—%F
31st December 2012 +_A=+—BR=-_Z——F
+=—A=+—H
Cost B 500
Accumulated amortisation and impairment REHEIEORE —
Net book amount BREFE 500
Impairment tests for goodwill 2R E R A
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) MEBEIEERBELESTEREZAEE
identified according to operating segment. As at 31st December CESELABN(ReELEMN) RZT
2012, goodwill of approximately HK$36,247,000 is allocated to the —ZH+ZA=+—8 ' ®#%36,247,000
IT Services operating segment. BTESEZEAMBRBEE S -
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on ReEESBU 2T KBESENREALE
the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use BEREEXKAEFREEAEEIMNEZR
calculation. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projects based BEBET WEHEERAUNEREMILE
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five year MERFH MBBERAELEEL ZKRE
period. No growth is assumed for cash flows beyond the five year AEeREN HERIKESAFH R
period. EnEAEMER -
The key assumptions used for calculation are as follows: ARETEZEZ/EBLOT
2012
—E——fF
Average revenue growth rate FHRA R R 14%
Discount rate FIEIES 15%

The annual revenue growth rate used is consistent with the
forecasts of the market. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the segment.

PrE Mz F IR FETIZER — 3 - e
RZFrRAERBRAMRE  HAfRRED
MEBZEERR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP

REPBHRRME

EoF-—Ft-AST-ALFE

22. BE NTRERE — A58

2012 2011

—E--F —ZT——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT T

At 1st January Rn—H—H 1,287 1,865
Share of results of associates e /N 486 913
Dividends received BUARE (973) (1,457)
Exchange realignment M 5 R 4 (34)
At 31st December R+-—A=+—8H 804 1,287

Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associates at 31st December
2012 and 31st December 2011 are as follows:

R-_FE——F+-_A=+—8K=_ZF——
F+—A=+—HB AEEZFLETHE
NEFBERAT -

Percentage

of nominal value
of issued ordinary
share capital

held indirectly

by the Company

Country/place of QB EESEE

Name of associate incorporation ERITEERE Principal activities
BE QR AR ML ZEXR it B ERAML FEHEH
iN Systems (Macao) Limited Macau 33.3%  Provision of engineering and
BEZZEE CRF) BRQA JBLPT software services
RAE TR R4 IRTE

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Thailand 49%  Provision of engineering and
Limited ZE software services

TR TR R IR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP 22. BMERNTAESE —F&EEH®
(Continued)
The Group'’s share of results of iN Systems (Macao) Limited, and its AEBELMRERZSHRFCRM)BR AR
assets and liabilities, are as below: CEBUNEBEERBEWNOT
2011
—E——%F
HK$'000
FH&T
Total assets BEE 3,943 5,076
Total liabilities FEN=NE (1,531) (1,213)
Net assets FAE 2,412 3,863
Group's share of net assets of an associate REBELBENRIFEE 804 1,287
Total revenue FEUL PN 6,297 7,801
Total profit for the year FrERF 1,458 2,740
Group's share of results of an associate REEF ARG
for the year kNS X 486 913
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses NE&E BB K IR EG ASL Automated
of ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Limited. The amounts of Services (Thailand) Limited 518 o F& 1k 3% 5
unrecognised share of results of this associate, extracted from the ERAIZERARRFAZABREESE(H
relevant management accounts of the associate, both for the year HEMEARZHEAEREERE)NT :
and cumulatively, are as follows:
2011
—E——F
HK$'000
F&T
Unrecognised share of (loss)/profit of FAREREGEE QA
an associate for the year (E18) w7 (6) 43
Accumulated unrecognised share of losses RETARERELEE R F)EIE

of an associate 532 526
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23. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 23. RERHE P 2EMI A — &K
— GROUP AND COMPANY EERADT

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied

to the line items below:

2011
=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Group REE
Loans and receivables B R EWGRIE
Trade receivables EUWE 5508 237,471 208,682
Other receivables and deposits H bl sm Rige 9,770 9,209
Amounts due from customers for AR TRREWE P RIE
contract work 224,856 190,615
Finance lease receivables FEU Ry E T EFRIE 40,289 22,737
Long-term bank deposit RERITER = 155
Restricted bank deposits SIRFVRITER 3,987 860
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEEY 116,677 108,404
633,050 540,662
Group rEH
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEK AR SRIBE
Trade payables ENE S8 231,778 200,432
Other payables HAb R FKIE 13,996 9,677
Borrowing BE 2,669 —
Other financial liabilities EtherafE 8,239 4,667
256,682 214,776
Financial liabilities at fair value through BArBEFABZZ
profit or loss SRBE
Other financial liabilities HEtemasE = 8,818
Company KA
Loans and receivables B R EWGRIE
Other receivables and deposits HEURERIES 48 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries M8 A RIR K 97,208 111,791
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEFEEY 2,301 1,453
99,557 113,244
Company P YN
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEK AR 2 RL B E
Other payables HAb e 3R 22 179
Amount due to a subsidiary R —FEE A FFRIE 98 217
120 396




136

Automated Systems Holdings Limited & &

22 & | Annual Report 2012 &

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PBRERME

For the year ended 31st December 2012 HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

25.

26.

24. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES — 2. RMB AR ZRE — X1 F
COMPANY
2012 2011
—E—_—F —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FH&T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE MR - HRAA 134,623 134,623
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Group are set out in Note AEEBZEFEWBRARFBRAREETIE
50 to the consolidated financial statements. WK FES0 -
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 25. B (ER)MB D RARE
SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY — KA F
As at 31st December 2012, the amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries R-T——F+-_A=+—8 EBWK (&
are denominated in HKD and are unsecured and repayable MIMBRARREAEERRARERE
on demand except for an amount due from a subsidiary of B WEBLUBITEHE - BT —ERKKHE
approximately HK$9,667,000 (2011: HK$14,486,000) which A RFRIBH £9,667,0008 L (=T ——F ¢
is interest-bearing at 4% (2011: 4%) per annum. The carrying 14,486,000 % 7o) WELF B 4% (= F — —
amounts approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. F:4%) HEABEHAMYE HEZE@E
EEEQARBEMRS -
INVENTORIES — GROUP 26. B8 — k&
2012 2011
—E-—=fF —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Goods held for resale RHEEEZEY 39,021 37,346
Goods pending customers’ acceptance BREPENZEY 63,735 63,312
102,756 100,658

Goods held for resale and goods pending customers’ acceptance

mainly represent computer equipment and software products.

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in

“cost of goods sold” amounted to approximately HK$811,551,000
during the year ended 31st December 2012 (2011:

HK$808,780,000).

FEBEZENRERERPEMZENE
BREMIBLYEMHER -

BE-_2——Ff+_A=+—BLHFE
BRAEAIWHAIEERERIZFERK
A #) /811,551,000 (=T — — F :
808,780,000 7T) ©
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27. EREBEHE —K&EH

2012 2011
—E——fF T ——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH&T
Trade receivables FEWE 55k 1E 238,264 209,197
Less: provision for impairment of receivables W EUGRIE 2 BB (793) (515)
Trade receivables — net JEWE 5)5k1E — 5 237,471 208,682
Less: non-current portion of trade receivables & : JEIE Z K8 2 FERE — (1,729)
Current portion of trade receivables FEWLE 55/ I8 2 B E 237,471 206,953
All non-current receivables are due within five years from the FBERDEEFBBHREERERLFRA
balance sheet date. FER o
The Group has granted credit to substantially all of its customers AEBZAAERFEARA LY EHI0AEE
for 30 days and has credit control procedures to minimise B AEEEREEERESRBRUKEER
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior BRERE SATEEHSHZFEH
management. HEMEFHEHRES -
An ageing analysis of the gross trade receivables as at the balance EWE ZRIELERNEE BIREMN R A
sheet date, based on ageing from payment due date is as follows: Az T :
2012 2011
—E—=fF —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH&T
Current BN ER 138,026 143,950
Within 30 days 30 KA 53,119 28,702
31-60 days 31E60K 25,820 15,567
61-90 days 61£E90K 7,483 7,493
Over 90 days HBHEIOKR 13,816 13,485

238,264 209,197
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continued)

As at 31st December 2012, trade receivables of approximately
HK$98,205,000 (2011: HK$64,732,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of
these trade receivables is as follows:

27.

EREZHRE —XEH®

R-_TE——"FE+-_fF=+—H8B EKE
5 T IA #998,205,0008 T (= ZT — — F ¢
64,732,000 T) B E @ AIER TR E © &%
ZEINE 5 R IE BB % 7 I & T B R4S B
ZBUNEFAR %ERKESHIEZER
oMM -

2011
—T——fF
HK$'000
FET

Past due less than 90 days BET290H
Past due over 90 days B ERFEA90 A

85,443 51,762
12,762 12,970

98,205 64,732

As at 31st December 2012, trade receivables of approximately
HK$793,000 (2011: HK$515,000) of the Group were past due
and impaired. The ageing of these receivables are individually
determined to be impaired, and full provision has been made on
these receivables. The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to several customers, which are experiencing financial
difficulties.

The gross trade receivables are denominated in the following

RN-ZT——F+-A=+—8 AEEZE
W Z 55K IE #9793,00008 T (T — — 4 ¢
515,000 L) ERMERE THEHE - BH#E
WREZEREENTPETRE LB
HEERBFRIBEL 28EE - BRRE
ERRBETZHEBEEREEREZRF
B -

W E 5 IBMBAT I ERGE :

currencies:
2012 2011
—EB-—fF —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
HKD s 181,590 152,978
usb e 13,281 13,157
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR 10,388 11,856
Thailand Baht (“THB") eSS 875 4,037
SGD Frhngoc 7,134 2,256
Macau Pataca ("MOP") SEPEE 8,482 10,100
New Taiwan Dollar (“NTD") Ak 15,206 12,441
Others Eh 1,308 2,372

238,264 209,197
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES — GROUP (Continued) 27. EREZRE —FEEH
As at 31st December 2012 and 31st December 2011, the carrying R-_E——F+_-_fA=+—BRK_ZT——
amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values. The fair F+-_A=Z+—H BRESHREZE@
value of the non-current portion of trade receivables are based on CHEAAREERAE BREBESREZ
cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rate of FERBBH AN BEDBEEERTRITR
7%. ZHEEMEE -

Movements of the Group’s provision for impairment of trade AEBZEWKEZSRABAZ REREZSH W
receivables are as follows: T

2012 2011
—E--F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FA&T
At 1st January Rn—H—H 515 312
Provision for impairment of receivables FEMGRIE 2R B 8 793 758
Reversal of provision for impairment ol FE MR IE R E 2 B e
of receivables (179) (554)
Receivables written off during the year FRiEAEEKRB 2
as uncollectible FEW A (336) o
Exchange realignment (R CE S — (1)
At 31st December R+-—A=+—8 793 515
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have EWFBE REBB 2 RILEBREF A
been included as part of selling expenses and other cost of services GFEBERREABEBRREMBRB 2K
in the consolidated income statement (Note 11). R—EH (MEE11) ©
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written BRERNRzEE BN EHTEKRE
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. EHONR S RS o

The Group does not hold any collateral as security. AEBUEFEEMNERRERER -
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28. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES — GROUP 28. EWMEHERE — KX5H

The total minimum lease receivables under finance leases and their ULTAREREHERERLEH Z &K
present values at the balance sheet date are as follows: ERHELERERE
2012 2011
—E——F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Non-current receivables IE 7 B FE WL TR 1B
Gross finance lease receivables el R ST E R IEA 22,119 16,901
Unearned finance income RERE 2 g E A (632) (888)
21,487 16,013
Current receivables TEFE R IE
Gross finance lease receivables Rl R ST ERIHAE 19,828 7,472
Unearned finance income RERE 2 g E U A (1,026) (748)
18,802 6,724
Gross receivables from finance leases: REBMERE 2 EWGRIBELE
Not later than 1 year —FR 19,828 7,472
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FEBRAFH 22,119 16,901
Gross finance lease receivables WA ERIBRE 41,947 24,373
Unearned finance income RERE 2 Bh & WA (1,658) (1,636)
Net finance lease receivables EWREHEREFE 40,289 22,737
The net finance lease receivables are EW R A ERIBFE
analysed as follows: AR TEEDT -
— Not later than 1 year — —FR 18,802 6,724
— Later than 1 year and not later than — —FERERAFA
5 years 21,487 16,013

40,289 22,737
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29. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 29. HtEWRIE - e KT
AND PREPAYMENTS — GROUP AND RE —AXXEBERAEARQT
COMPANY

Group Company
REE AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
b belel T ——F Bmbtgmbl —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FHET FHERT
Other receivables Ho el R IE 2,254 2,614 48 —
Deposits A 6,295 5,649 — —
Prepayments TERTHRIE 9,706 14,436 476 609
Amount due from the ultimate BEER A TR
holding company — 946 — _
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary G ES T =INGIVE 1,214 — — —
Amount due from an associate — & A RIR R 7 - = =
19,476 23,645 524 609
The amounts due from the ultimate holding company, a fellow SEERAT  RRWEAF

subsidiary and an associate are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

R BRI

Group
AEEH

2012
—E—_F
HK$°000
FAR

2011

—T——F

HK$'000
THAT

&R /N]
&

CRERARBERER -

EHRTDAT I G EHE -

Company
AN F]
2012 2011
el T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

HKD BT 10,125 13,073 524 609
THB S 1,948 4,076 — =
RMB AR 2,252 2,240 — =
NTD e 2,093 1,152 — =
SGD N 866 904 = —
usD EV 1,733 1,080 — =
Others Efth 459 1,120 — =

19,476 23,645 524 609

As at 31st December 2012 and 31st December 2011, the
carrying amounts of other receivables, deposits and prepayments
approximate their fair values.

RZE——F+=-_A=+—HBER=F——
F+ZA=+—H HMBEKRE - Ee Rk
EMNREEOASEEELARBEMRES -
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30. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR

31.

CONTRACT WORK — GROUP

As at 31st December 2012 and 31st December 2011, the balance
represented contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less
recognised losses and progress billings.

LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSIT, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY

30 SN IREREFFE — X
EE
®

T+ -_A=F+-—HE_ZT——
FH+-A=+—H  &BEMEEZEHOK
OB FER R TR REIBAEE IR -

31. REIBITHER > ZRHBRIT

ERRASRESZEY —
FEBEREQT

Group Company

EE N

2012 2011 2012 2011
—z——x IR -5 Il
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
757 kicad 57 AR

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERS 113,566 100,244 2,301 1,453
Short-term bank deposits REHEIRITER 3,111 8,160 — =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRB2EED 116,677 108,404 2,301 1,453
Restricted bank deposits ZIRHRITFER 3,987 860 — =
Less: Non-current portion A IEMENE S — (498) — —
Current portion of restricted ZRHRITFRZ

bank deposits BN 3,987 362 — =
Long-term bank deposit RHIRITER — 155 — =

Restricted bank deposits represented fixed term deposits placed in
commercial banks that were pledged against banking facilities and
performance bonds granted to the Group.

Long-term bank deposit represented fixed term deposit placed in
commercial banks whose maturity date is over 1 year.

Bank balances, short-term, long-term bank deposits and restricted
bank deposits carry interest at market rates with average interest
rate of 0.13%, n/a, n/a and 0.83% (2011: 0.10%, 0.45%,0.70%
and 0.50%) per annum.

ERHRITEFREFRABERITZES
TR ZEERCERESRNEEERR
TREREORENER RS

EHRTEREFRNBERTZESA
BE—FZEMER -

BITHS EH RHPRTERRZR
BIRITFEREMS ARG - X
BEF013% - THEA - TE A K0.83%
(ZZF— —4F :010% ~0.45% - 0.70% &%
0.50%) °
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31. LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSIT, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

31. RBITER - ZREIEB 1T
FRRESRBEEEY —
AEBERAKRRQ T @

ReELREFEYNU T EBE -

currencies:
Group Company
AEE RAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
e T T et — T F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
HKD BT 66,065 50,221 2,151 1,447
RMB AR 8,095 6,532 8 3
NTD A 7,861 18,173 — =
usb EV 20,355 22,880 142 3
SGD #rhndg T 1,353 4,129 — =
Others i) 12,948 6,469 = -
116,677 108,404 2,301 1,453

Restricted bank deposits are denominated in the following

currencies:

NTD e
MOP JRPIE
THB B3

EBREBRITERATIEREE

Group Company
EE ANFE
2012 2011 2012 2011
b St — T bl — T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET TET

2,153 = — o
968 — = =
866 860 = =

3,987 860 = .
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31. LONG-TERM BANK DEPOSIT, RESTRICTED

BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS — GROUP AND COMPANY

(Continued)

Long-term bank deposit is denominated in the following currency:

31. RHABTHER - ZRHIRIT
ERERRERESEEY —
AEBRARDT @
REIRITIFRU TS EHEETE -

Group Company
AEE RAT]
2012 2011 2012 2011
b Lol —T——F EEbigmbay — T ——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SGD AN T

32. SHARE CAPITAL

FHET FHET FHET FHET
— 155 — —
32. R A
Number of shares Amount
RHEE S8

2012 2011
gl T ——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BRREE0.104E T

2 EEk
Authorised: TEERA -
At 1st January 2011, 31st December R-T—F
2011 and 31st December 2012 —A—B"
—F—%TZA
=t+—AK
—T——F
+=-A=+—H 600,000 600,000 60,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAR
At beginning and end of the year REPRFL 311,403 311,403 31,140 31,140

There was no ordinary share issued for the year ended 31st
December 2012 (2011: same).

HE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—BHLFEHE
BOLTBER(ZZE——F : HRE)
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33. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY

33. R —AXEBRADQTF

(a) Group () %M
2012 2011
—E—_F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Special reserve BRI 34,350 34,350
Property revaluation reserves MEE G EE 120,770 83,844
Translation reserve fEs G 4,406 1,099
Share options reserve FEARE R 1,916 =
Retained earnings REB EF 276,473 252,247
437,915 371,540
Movements of each component of the reserves are set out in RESBO 2 BBHARGERERE D
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. xK o
(b) Company (b) &2RAF
(Accumulated
Share losses)/
Special options Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
(RitE®B)/
KEGE BRERE REER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THT THER
At 1st January 2011 RZE——F—f—H 95,513 o (9,578) 85,935
Profit for the year FEREF — — 36,383 36,383
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividend BURERE — — 45 45
Final dividend for the nine months ended HZ_-Z—Z&+_A
31st December 2010 =T—HItERZ REKS - = (12,456) (12,456)
At 31st December 2011 R=—F——F+-A=+—H 95,513 — 14,394 109,907
At 1st January 2012 W-E——%—f—H 95,513 - 14,394 109,907
Profit for the year EREF — — 347 347
Forfeiture of unclaimed dividend BURERE. — — 159 159
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ~ BERIAR D BEBL {2
payments FxX — 1,916 — 1,916
Final dividend for the year ended BE2-_F——%+-AH
31st December 2011 =T—HIFEZRARE = = (17,127) (17,127)
At 31st December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H 95,513 1,916 (2,227) 95,202
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33. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY 33. i —XEBRAEXAQ T

(Continued)

(b) Company (Continued) (b) &RATE)

(i) The special reserve of the Company represents the
difference between the par value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries and the net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus
shall not be distributable if there are reasonable
grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due;
or

(2)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

(i) As at 31st December 2012, in the opinion of
the directors, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the
Company was approximately HK$93,286,000 (2011:
HK$109,907,000).

()

(i)

RRABZHHNREEEARA R
BERMBARNEEITRAM
9T 2 B fn T (B 22 AT W BB Y
BRAIEEFEZEZRE - BIE
BRE-AN-F2ADEE
E:]) WMABEARBEERAMEE
THEE - RIBA R A
DIk

(1) ARFREFSKAEH
BEENHABBIHEY
e’ sk

2 ARREEZNEBREE
HEmMINREBERAE
BT RRAN A R B 47 )4 (B BR
ZHA o

RZE—=ZF+=ZRA=+—
B Z2FRA A#HIEFA
AAIREABEAZEEBREY
493,286,000 %8 (=& — —
£ :109,907,000/8 7T ) °

34. TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP 3. EREZRE — KK
2012 2011
—E—=fF —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Trade payables FERTE S5k IA 231,778 200,432
Less: non-current portion of trade payables B B SHRIB 2 IEREE D (854) =
Current portion of trade payables FERTE 53R I8 2 BN ER 5 230,924 200,432
As at 31st December 2012, all non-current trade payables are due RZZE—ZF+ZA=+—H FBE#FEnR

within five years from the balance sheet date (2011: nil).

PENEZFIFEOARGEERRTFAEHY

—E——fF )
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34. TRADE PAYABLES — GROUP (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet BNEBESREREEBIREMNRIEBERZ

date, based on payment due date, is as follows:

3. ENEZRE —XEBH ()

REITWAT

2012 2011

—E——fF —E——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current BNER 142,399 114,313
Within 30 days 30KAA 50,287 54,988
31-60 days 31E260K 21,025 21,491
61-90 days 61290k 10,004 2,206
Over 90 days #BiBI0K 8,063 7,434
231,778 200,432

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

EHRTDAT I G EHE -

2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaxT FHET
HKD BT 153,494 149,273
RMB AR 3,486 2,254
usD =T 48,606 30,559
THB ZREk 3,667 4,176
NTD e 22,028 12,069
Others HAh 497 2,101
231,778 200,432

At the balance sheet date, the carrying values of trade payables REER ENBESFEBEZREERAR

approximate their fair values.

=
|

EEMHE -
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FH-A=Z+—RLFE

35. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS —

GROUP AND COMPANY

Company
AR F]

2011
S e =~
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FExT FET
Other payables H A JE K1 9,409 8,217 22 179
Accruals EETER 52,050 34,535 5,041 4,666
Amounts due to the ultimate holding RG] A RIFIE
company 3,019 — — —
Amounts due to the immediate holding /R B A RIFIE
company 441 — _ _
Amount due to an associate Gl NS EGE] 1,127 1,460 — =
66,046 44,212 5,063 4,845

The balances are denominated in the following currencies:

BT T EEFHE -

Group
A

Company
RAFH

2011 2012 2011
TR iy —T——4F
HK$'000 SERGLEHUS  HK$'000

FHET TERT FET

HKD BT 45,432 30,148 5,063 4,845
RMB AR 3,698 452 — —
SGD N T 11,613 6,923 — ==
NTD Haw 2,051 1,433 — —
Others Efth 3,252 5,256 — —

66,046 44,212 5,063 4,845
At the balance sheet date, the carrying values of other payables REER  HMENREREAEBRAZE
and accruals approximate their fair values. HESREAAEERSE
The amounts due to the ultimate holding company, immediate REHLERLDA - EBEERAR R —HE
holding company, and an associate are unsecured, interest free and ERAIZHREREER REREAREX
are repayable on demand. BE -
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36. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE — GROUP 36.

37.

Receipts in advance represent advance payments received prior to:

(i) delivery of goods which is recognised in the consolidated

income statement upon the delivery of goods; and

REPBHRRME

F+-A=+—AILFE

AWRRE —F&EH

B UCERIE B T A 15 R A AR 2 2R

i) XTERENERINEESAR
HmEHR) &

(i) provision of service which is recognised in the consolidated (ii) ?Eﬁiﬁﬁff&(ﬁ A %:)5 ABHETER
income statement over the service period stipulated in the PR 75 B A 7 47 mARTER) o
respective customer contract.

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 37. Htt e M A &

2012 2011
—E—_F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FA&T
Contingent consideration payable FERTSARIE = 8,818
Balance of consideration payable FERTRERREE 8,239 4,667
— 13,485
Amount due within one year included under AARBEER—FRIIEZR
current liabilities (8,239) (4,274)
Amount due after one year included under SFAFEREBER —FREH
non-current liabilities Z A — 9,211

In 2011, the Group acquired the entire issued capital of i-Sprint

Innovations Pte Limited (“i-Sprint”) and its subsidiaries, depending

on the upcoming financial performance of these subsidiaries,

the cash consideration for this acquisition may range from
SGD6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,000,000) to
SGD7,900,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$47,400,000).
The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that

the Group could be required to make under this arrangement is
between SGD850,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,085,000)
and SGD2,750,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,451,000).
The amount payable of SGD 1,474,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$8,818,000) was recognised as contingent consideration

payable and measured at fair value as at 31st December 2011.

Further to the supplemental deed entered between the Group and
the vendor on 30th October 2012, the total cash consideration
for acquisition has been adjusted to SGD6,800,000 (equivalent

to approximately HK$42,162,000). The contingent consideration

payable was derecognised during the year.

RNRZZT ——F - KEE WKE i-Sprint
Innovations Pte Limited ([i-Sprint]) & X f
BRAZHFEBEITRA RTULEZEMBEAR
AR BERENE  REKENSR
% X 8 /1 F6,000,000 57 40 3 7T (A8 & R4
36,000,000 7T ) & 7,900,000 3 40 3% 7t (48
H R 4947,400,0008 7T) - IR EHZ HE -
AEBEBINZHBRRGRZBER
B IR & %8 /) F-850,000 % 113 T (FEE R 4
5,085,000 T ) & 2,750,000 %7 i3 ot (A8 &
A #916,451,00078 7T ) ° 1,474,000 A1 % 7T
(88 M 498,818,000/ L) 2 EF £ EER
ZE——F+ A=+t —HAERBENK
RREREAREEMNE -

RAEFRESTR_E——F+A=+H
RIMZHARBE S BEKREZ
RIS REE W FHE 56,800,000 N T
(HEEMNH42,162,0008TT) - B ARE
TR F RN IETER -
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37. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued) 37.

Other financial liabilities as at 31st December 2012 represent the
balance payable for the acquisition costs SGD6,800,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$42,162,000) less progress payment
SGD5,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$33,923,000).

38. BORROWING 38.

BEHemadE s

RZE—=—F+=-A=+—H Hiham
B & Th #5 W BE A 76,800,000 %7 M3 T (A E
MR #42,162,0007% 7T ) & #E [€ 51 785,500,000
sk T (A E M 4933,923,000% 7T ) 2 FEL
BREE o

BE&
2012 2011
—E——& T ——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET

Short-term bank loan

5 BRIRIT B R

2,669 .

At 31st December 2012, the Group'’s short-term bank loan is
interest bearing at 3.26% per annum, secured by a standby letter
of credit issued by Group, which in return secured by the assets as
detailed in Note 47 and is wholly repayable within one year.

39 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP AND 39.

COMPANY

The movements in the deferred income tax are as follows:

R-ZTE—=—F+-_A=+—H K&EEZ
RHRITERARENE326%:TE - @A
SEEHEEFEERNEREAENIKE
(FI3E47) R BR —EREBEREE -

Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ$§§&$ﬁ

EEFRBHRIBHNAT

Group Company
AEE ANFE
2011 2011
—T——F —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET

At 1st January R—H—H 22,384 17,996 (294) —
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1h)==pNG| = 2,046 = —
Tax charged directly to equity 18 B s BRI 7,297 3,984 — S
Tax credited to the consolidated income st AfZA 1B 2 8

statement (Note 15) (PfFEE15) (888) (1,596) (442) (294)
Exchange realignment RIS 90 (46) — —
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—H 28,883 22,384 (736) (294)
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39 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP AND

COMPANY (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st
December 2012, the Group had total tax losses of approximately
HK$31,194,000 (2011: HK$29,445,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$7,161,000 (2011: HK$6,187,000)
of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining approximately HK$24,033,000 (2011:
HK$23,258,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams,
of which approximately HK$8,187,000 (2011: HK$8,545,000) will
expire within 1 to 5 years, approximately HK$3,317,000 (2011:
HK$6,402,000) will expire within 6 to 10 years and approximately
HK$12,529,000 (2011: HK$8,311,000) with unlimited expiry date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The movements in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year are as follows:

39.

‘Lﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ — AEBRAER

AAMEEEDREETEN ST S A &
BRARERBEN TAZBRERRE
REBEEMBHEE RZT—Z_F+=
BA=+—RH AEEBEHEBEEENR
31,194,000% 7T (= T — — 4 : 29,445,000
I Al BER AR R EF c EERIEE E
B ABEERLN7,161,0008T(ZT——
16,187,000/ 70) HERR o B AR BETE A K
B F SRR - B & BLER N 2 £924,033,000
BT (= ZT ——14F : 23,258,000/ 7t) FER
REFLIEE & - H 48,187,000 T (=
T — — 4 : 8,545,000/ L) B R 1E5FER
B H] - 493,317,000 T(—Z T —— 4 :
6,402,000 7T) & N6 = 104F A B #f K &
8 IR 81 49 12,529,000 T (= & — — 4 :
8,311,000/ 7T ) °

EEAAAKANARREERAHEANYTESR
BEHAIEERITEN  ARFEERAE
HA-HEERMBKAERARH BT
BREEARRERRABELREE R
FROREMSREENMAR(REHER—
BIREER ZEHANMT

Group Company
PN | N
Accelerated
tax Revaluation of
depreciation properties Tax loss Total Tax loss
MEBETE MESHE BB @t BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT TR TR TR
At 1st January 2011 RZE——F—F—H 5,433 12,669 (106) 17,996 —
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB AR 2,046 — — 2,046 —
Credited to consolidated income REREEBREENGTA
statement (682) — (914) (1,596) (294)
Charged to equity B R 1R — 3,984 = 3,984 =
Exchange realignment EXBRAR (46) - - (46) =
At 31st December 2011 and RZB——F+Zf
Ist January 2012 =f+—-Hk
—E-——F—-f-H 6,751 16,653 (1,020) 22,384 (294)
Credited to consolidated income RERAEBRERNETA
statement (710) — (178) (888) (442)
Charged to equity BRRAH MG — 7.297 - 7,297 =
Exchange realignment B 5 % 20 — — 20 —
At 31st December 2012 RZB-ZF+=f
=t+—H 6,131 23,950 (1,198) 28,883 (736)
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39 DEFERRED INCOME TAX — GROUP AND 39. BEFES —XFXEERERQ

COMPANY (continued) (&)

The analysis of deferred tax assets is as follows: RIERIEEEZ DA T -
Group Company
TEE AT

2012 2011 2012 2011
e e T T el —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FET THET FAET
Tax loss BIAE 1,198 1,020 612 294
Decelerated tax depreciation TRTRIBITE 243 (19) 124 —
Deferred tax assets — to be recovered — RIEFIEEE — ER
after more than 12 months iR 1218 Azl mE 1,441 1,001 736 294
The analysis of deferred income tax is as follows: BRELEFMBRZAMAT :
Group Company
AL RAF
2012 2011 2012 2011
= L =0 —Z——fF [ = s T ——5F
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET

Deferred tax liabilities — to be recovered ERIEFRITEE & — ¥R
after more than 12 months 1218 A & Uk 30,324 23,385 —

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets), net REHBEE
(AE) F7 28,883 22,384 (736)

(294)
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
8th August 2002. Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to eligible employees, including directors of

the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed

10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.
The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of
offer, upon payment of HK$1 as consideration per grant. There

is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the directors of

the Company is empowered to impose at its discretion any such
minimum period at the time of grant of any particular option. The
period during which an option may be exercised will be determined
by the directors of the Company at its absolute discretion, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(b) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant of the options; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.
The Scheme expired on 7th August 2012.

40.

BREE

ZIN/NE| EC:??:& NANBERH—IEE
A& 4 &+ 81 (32 cRIEZEE AR
E§$TWA§WE  (BEAR T&ﬁw
BRAIZER)REEREURBLAA
Woﬂﬁ&ﬁ%TFﬁZ%k%ﬂm%Z
BrEE  TEBEARANTMERZ
E%ﬁ%@Zm%OWEHEFF%EH
AT ZHEREATRBZROBE  TF
@ZIK’AETE’:\E@%F‘E?ZE%TTHM’J}Z1% °
EREERENSNERT LA BB 28KA
BH BERSERERAIMEBETEAR
B -ARITE-—BWRTERERERSEAA
TEBREMVAERAEBREZ AM&E
HR AR ESERENBEETWE
ERBREN BB EINEASESR A
TEBREZHREAARAANESTEZER
EET O MEMNERE-—FETEAREAR
HETI0FBETE - TEEBIEARA
EZET METELIRUAT=ZEFZER
mEC@QBEONBRERL B TR
ZWTAE (DR R BEERER LA
AABEXSBEBRIMZFHRTE: &
(OBRMAEME- - ZFEER=_T—ZFNA
+tHEM °
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses details of the share options held by

ZHE+A=+-HIEFE

employees (including directors) under the Scheme and movements

in such holdings during the year ended 31st December 2012:

40. B IR BT &)

s

TREBEHER (REEF) RERTE
BAEZBRERESRARE-T =7
tZASH—BIEEEZ RS

At

At 31st December

Exercise  1st January Granted Exercised Lapsed 2012
price 2012 during during during RZ-ZE-=F Exercise
Grant date per share R=Z—=F the year the year the year +=AH period
®HBH BRITEE —A-B REARE RERTE REREX =+—H 1T
19th March 2012 HK$1.09 o 6,900,000 = (420,000) 6,480,000 19th March 2013 to
—ET——F 1.09% 7T 18th March 2022
=ZA+hH ZZ-=F=At+hHE
—Z_F=RA+)\RH
2nd May 2012 HK$1.12 — 6,755,000 — — 6,755,000 2nd May 2013 to
—T-=f 112871 1st May 2022
TAZAH —T-=FhHZRAZE
i ) =

— 13,655,000 — (420,000) 13,235,000

Exercisable at end of the year

A RERITE

Not applicable
B

Weighted average exercise price

Not applicable

MEFETEE TER
Weighted average remaining contractual life
BT INREFI94 495 9.3

No option has been granted under the Scheme during the

year ended 31st December 2011. There was no share option

outstanding at 31st December 2011.

The options granted on 19th March 2012 will be vested equally on

each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date.

The options granted on 2nd May 2012 will be vested equally on

each of the first, second and third anniversaries of the grant date,

or vested immediately in full in the event of a special dividend of

the Company being declared.

HE-T——F+-A=+—BLEE -
I R R B EARRGE R = F
——F+-AZ+—A LEETERT
8 2 FE IRIE -

RZZE-——F=ZA+hAERENBRES
REHBEHENE - F_RE=ZBFEW

BENRE

RZE-—Z_FRABRUNERESR
REEAMNE - E-_RE=ZBFERE
ENRE IWMARREIRFAINEE B
R EHERE -
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 40. fB IR BT &)
In respect of the share options granted during the year, the BREARENBREMS > BtERER
estimated fair values of the options on the dates of grant were REBHOAABEDNRAZBAMBIE
calculated using the binomial lattice model. The estimated fair AFtE - BHAABENFEHAR0305F T
values were ranging from HK$0.305 to HK$0.315 per share. The 03158 c MAZEANEBENT

inputs into the model were as follows:

Granted on Granted on
2nd May 2012 19th March 2012
R-B—Z=F R-B—Z=F
BAZHARE Z=AThARWE

Share price at the grant date R B EIRAR(E 1.10 1.09
Exercise price TEE 1.12 1.09
Expected volatility B BRI 18 40% 40%
Option life BE A A 4 B 10 years 10 years

+F +4F
Risk-free rate A R B ) 0.85% 1.09%
Expected dividend TEEAAR B 5.0% 5.0%
The expected volatility was determined by using the historical TE R0 Ty LA I B BRI 8 AR AN 1 B R
volatility of the Company for the closing share price for the period R EZBTREERE -

of 8 years before the date of grant.

During the year, the Group recognised total expense of RER > REBBERURDAER I N2 @
approximately HK$1,916,000 (2011: nil) in relation to equity- 12 491,916,000 T (ZF ——4F : M) ©
settled share-based payment transactions.

Total consideration received during the year from employees for RERN EERRKMEREET ZRGM
taking up the shares under the options amounted to HK$49 (2011: NEHOBRERIOBTL(ZT——F : &)

nil).
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41.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees.
The MPF Scheme is established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group’s contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Defined benefit plan

The Group also operates a defined benefit plan for a qualifying
director of the Company. Under the plan, the director is entitled to
retirement benefits based on 120% or 175.25% of final average
salary multiplied by completed months of service on attainment
of a retirement age of 60, or of age at least 50 with 25 years of
services. The assets of the fund are held separately from those of
the Company, in funds under the control of trustees. The scheme
is non-contributory on the part of the director and the Company
is obliged to meet the full cost of all benefits due to the director
under the plan.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at 31st December 2012 and
31st December 2011 were carried by Towers Watson Hong Kong
Limited, independent actuary. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation, the related current service cost and past service
cost were measured using the projected unit credit method. The

main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

41.

RIKERGE

REMRREE
AEBSMEAERRREZN —HRES
e - BEEAE IR _TREF+ A
REBRBERBEEEPIRTL - RV RIE
BREAFEZE—BOWHE  TLRER
BB 2 RNARINERGEBRER
PIRR - BB S F & 2 B E B S5 AEH
ZEERA BAEHEBEEIHER - A
SEMABETAHKE KR HE
HREMA -

AERFE
RRBMBEERZESE YN —EHRAERE
Merdl - REBEZAE EZHERZEHE
SEH S 2120%80175.25% 3k LA 2 B3R 4K
FRATRIZLATRMERE=1+H
FRETKBRBAGZERAREN ZES
ZEEHERABRHZESES BARQ
RIBEENHGTNR ESHARZAEIEL
HH - MARB BN RIEZTEES T
EFZ2MARMNZZHARE -

BUREMEERNBERAR AR B
BZBEARR-_TE——F+=ZRA=+—
AR - TE——F+_A=Z+—HZRER
MEEZRBEETET —H2EE - RAE
BAEE BERBRBENARRBERSE
RAZBREDNFERBESEMEEELNE -
FIfERAZEERERROT ¢

Discount rate =
Expected return on plan assets TEERET &I & E R
Expected rate of salary increases T8 B & 1L IR

2011

—T——fF

N/ATNE B 1.5%
5.0% 6.0%
N/AE A 3.5%
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The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets
was approximately HK$47,000 (2011: HK$8,201,000) and no
funded obligations (2011: HK$9,003,000). The last member of the
defined benefit scheme has left the plan during the year and hence
related retirement benefits were paid out. Assets of approximately
HK$47,000 remain in the defined benefit scheme.

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement during
the year in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

41.

BRI 8o

REMSERT s8R EZM{ELNR47,000
Br(ZZT——F :820100%7x) &
Y EESRM(ZF ——4 :9,003,000%
TO) o WERFBIZ &R — B K B B R F R BER
BEEtEl - I BARBERRARAIE TR XA o
ME &Nz BEEX 47,0008 T

RAFERRAERMNABERNGEABE
FRZEBWMT :

2012 2011

—E——F —E——f

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FET

Current service costs I RAFBCAR — 263
Interest cost F B — 132
Expected return on plan assets TEEAGH I E E R R (497) (553)
Net actuarial gain recognised in the year RELRERFIEE W= (62) (141)
(559) (299)

The credit for the year of approximately HK$559,000 (2011:
HK$299,000) has been included in administrative expenses.

The actuarial gain on plan assets was approximately HK$687,000
(2011: loss of HK$1,017,000).

F R AZFIEHL AE559,0008 Tt(=ZF
—— 4 299,000 L) EBERITHREHR
q: °

FFEIEEZRBE W EH A687,000/8 (=
T ——4F : 181,017,000 7T) °
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41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued) 41. BIREF &)

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's rEEFEATRANAEZECEEM
obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: IIANEEBBRZSEWT -
2012 2011
—E—=fF —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Present value of funded obligations EeBuEZRE = 9,003
Fair value of plan assets FrEEEZ AR EE (47) (8,201)
(Surplus)/Deficit (B8R) /KT (47) 802
Net actuarial loss not recognised mARERZFEEEE = (290)

Net (asset)/liability arising from defined benefit RERFNEERELZ (BE) /
obligation BEFHE (47) 512

.,

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations AFERNATRMNECZREZEHAT -
in the current year were as follows:

2012 2011

—F—=fF —E——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

At 1st January n—HA—AR 9,003 8,833
Current service costs IR R AG B AR = 263
Interest cost FLERK AR = 132
Actuarial gain EE W= (162) (225)
Benefits paid AR (8,841) =

At 31st December R+-—A=+—H — 9,003
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41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year

are as follows:

AEREAEEZ

41. RIRBEFE &

AABEEHET :

2012 2011
—E—=fF —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FET
At 1st January n—A—H 8,201 9,135
Expected return on plan assets BRI EE R 497 553
Actuarial gain/(loss) BEWE (FER) 190 (1,570)
Contributions from the employer EE/K — 83
Benefits paid EAREF (8,841) =
At 31st December R+=-—A=+—8H 47 8,201
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan FEEEXZEERGEBEEEZESD
assets are as follows: tbanR
2011
—T——%F
%
Equity instruments AT A 77 66
Debt instruments BT AR 21 31
Cash BHe 2 3

100 100
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42. CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) 42 REEXEBZHESBA
OPERATIONS (X )
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Profit before income tax KR TS B AR 7 47,701 45,110
Adjustments for: HRE
— Share of results of associates (Note 22) — E(REE N RIEE (Mier22) (486) (913)
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 21) — &R (FI3H21) 2,559 2,071
— Depreciation and amortisation of property, —— Y% - BE &R E K& # 1
plant and equipment (Note 19) (Mf5E19) 18,251 17,084
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and — HEME  BELEEZEE
equipment (see note (a) below) (R 3HizE@)) 189 1,060
— Fair value gain on forward foreign — BENES RN Z AnBEKE
exchange contract (Note 9) (PfF5E9) (254) (21)
— Fair value gain on revaluation of — EAREMEZ AR EEEN
investment properties (Note 20) (PfF5E20) (7,700) (4,000)
— Fair value (gain)/loss on deferred — ERREEREZ AR EE
consideration payable (Note 9) (Yezs) BB (FIsE9) (3,124) 1,226
— Interest income (Note 8) — FEBWA (HFzES) (155) (265)
— Interest expense — FBE&ZH 282 =
— Equity-settled share-based — DR BEMIFZAX
payment expenses 1,916 —
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
— Inventories — FE (2,104) (23,691)
— Trade receivables — EWE SRIE (28,789) (37,343)
— Finance lease receivables — BhEM S WIS (17,552) (17,613)
— Other receivables, deposits and — HEWRIE - e RIERR
prepayments 4,824 4,411
— Amounts due from customers for — ARNITIRENE P HIE
contract work (34,241) (28,956)
— Restricted bank deposits — ZRHIRITER (3,127) 1,064
— Trade payables — ENBSHRE 31,346 7,280
— Other payables and accruals — HMERIERESER 21,492 (9,358)
— Receipts in advance — TalE 15,790 13,723
Cash generated from/(used in) operations EEBZRSWA (ZHE) 46,818 (29,131)
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42. CASH GENERATED FROMY/(USED IN)

43.

OPERATIONS (Continued)

Note:

(a) In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from the disposal
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

42.

BEERIBEWA S
(ZH) )

Bt &

Rt

(@ NEAREREBRA HEWE BER
R TS AR ¢

2012 2011
—E——fF —ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Net book amount of property, plant and M - BB KRB RE
equipment (Note 19) FE (MEE19) 398 1,497
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEKREZ
equipment (Note 11) Ea (1) (189) (1,060)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREEZ
equipment Frig k1A 209 437

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31st December 2012, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of certain of its office premises and computer equipment
which fall due as follows:

43.

ERMEYEE

R-ZTE——F+_A=+—H KE£ER
BT HHEEMROANTI AERET
MAEREREMIB L ARZERLS
BAENT

2012 2011

—E——F —E——f

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FET

Within one year —FR 7,369 4,176
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FEEAFA 1,669 1,757
9,038 5,933

Leases for office premises are negotiated for an average term
of two to three years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the
leases.

Leases for computer equipment are negotiated for an average term
of three years and rentals are fixed over the terms of the leases.

MAEREZENOFH_E=FEFT X
HeBEEREHZ £ -

BEMREBECENFH=FHER R HE
BERBHZLE -
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44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, EREE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT F&T
Capital expenditure in respect of property, REREMIEMERNESTAE R
plant and equipment contracted for but 2 - BMERREHEZERNFS
not provided in the consolidated financial
statements 365 420
45. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 45. RREXHEEH =B
ARRANGEMENTS
At 31st December 2012, the Group had contracted with a RZE—=ZF+=-A=+—8 X&HEE
customer in respect of land and buildings under operating leases as M REFEEANRELTONAT
follows:

2012 2011

—E-—=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Not later than one year —FR 2,624 873
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years —FREAFA 4,302 —

6,926 873
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47.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2012, bank deposits held as security

for banking facilities and performance bonds amounted to
approximately HK$3,987,000 (2011: HK$860,000) (Note 31). As
at 31st December 2012, performance bonds of approximately
HK$55,039,000 (2011: HK$32,216,000) have been issued by the
Group to customers as security of contracts.

Corporate guarantee to vendors as security for goods supplied
to the Group amounted to approximately HK$44,500,000 as

at 31st December 2012 (2011: HK$44,600,000). The amount
utilised against goods supplied as at 31st December 2012 which
was secured by the corporate guarantee was approximately
HK$887,000 (2011: HK$1,200,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December 2012, the Group has pledged leasehold land
and buildings with carrying amount of HK$189,900,000 (2011:
HK$149,900,000) and investment properties with carrying amount
of HK$36,400,000 (2011: HK$28,700,000) to secure the banking
facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31st December 2012, the Group’s restricted bank deposits of
approximately HK$3,987,000 (2011: HK$860,000) were pledged to
secure the banking facilities and performance bonds of the Group
(Note 31).

46.

47.

HAEE

FTARITERBEEFRITRE RELOR
BrEER_E——F+-_A=+—B%
/43,987,000 7t (=& — — F : 860,000/8
7o) (KizE31) e RZTE——F+-A=+—
B AEBEHTFTRFERANERZEYN
1R B4 555,039,0008 T (=T — — 4 :
32,216,000/ 7T ) °

R-E——F+-_A=+—8 AEHEL
ZIEBRASEHREERZAREROA
44,500,000 7L (= Z — — 4F : 44,600,000
BL) RZTE—Z—F+=-_A=+—80"
ERAEERUAREREER2EBHESR
M2 EEHAH887,0008 T(—T——4 :
1,200,000 7T) °

EEERA

WZZE——F+-_A=+—H  A&EE
1 98 B 0 £ %8189,900,00078 7T 2 & + iy
MIEF(ZZF ——14 149,900,000 L) &
B T < 836,400,000 T2 I EME (=T
——4 128,700,000 7o) N EB K T AL
E2IRITRLE o

R_ZT——F+-_A=+—H8 A&£EZ
IR HIRIT A5 82493,987,0008 T (—ZF——
4 : 860,000/ T) B AIEAEE 2 RITR
BREHRFZER(HMFE) o
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31st December 2012, Hong Kong Teamsun owns 67.05%

of the Company’s shares. The remaining 32.95% of the shares
are widely held. The ultimate parent company of the Company is
Beijing Teamsun Technology Co., Limited, a company incorporated
in the PRC and its shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.

(a) Transactions with related parties

48. BEALR S

R-T——F+-_A=+—H BBEBX
BB AR B D 267.05% ° £ 32.95%
BROBEMALREE - AQRFHEEA

ARIEREBRIMERNBERAT -

MRPEEMARZZAT  EROKLE

BHERZH LM -

(a) HERAEBEALTZXE :

Nature of transaction RHME
Ultimate holding company: BHEERAR -
Sales by the Group AEBHE
Purchase by the Group AEEEE

Other income charged by the Group REEH MU A
Expenses charged to the Group REEZN 2
Fellow subsidiaries: BERAMBEAR :
Sales by the Group AEBEE
Purchase by the Group AEEEE
Immediate holding company: HEERLF
Sales by the Group rEEHEE
Purchase by the Group rEEER
Expenses charged by the Group AEBEBUR 2 X
Expenses charged to the Group AEBMI N ZHAX
The associates: & AT

Sales by the Group rEEHEE
Purchases by the Group rEEER

Staff costs charged to the Group AEBINZETRY

Rentals and administrative expenses

charged by the Group

Rental income charged by the Group
Management services income charged

by the Group

REBBKR A RITHAX

REEU 2 HERA

H 7 5 (B BN 2 B TR AR TS HRA

2012 2011
—E——F —E——1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
185 323
7,293 51

5 871

328 452
1,218 S
690 2,751

265 —

441 —

— 250

26 86

— 298
4,347 4,239
107 534

160 159

64 64

82 76
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

49.

50.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Sale and purchase of goods and services are transacted at
normal commercial terms that are consistently applied to all

customers and vendors.

During the year ended 31st December 2012, no contribution
was made in respect of a defined benefit plan for a director
of the Company (2011: HK$83,000) (Note 41).

The Group’s balances with related parties are set out in Note
29 and 35.

Key management compensations are disclosed in Note 13
and 14.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified from cost

of services rendered, other income, selling and administrative

expenses to other gain/(loss), net to conform to current year's

presentation.

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries at 31st December

2012 and 31st December 2011 are as follows:

48. BBE A T X 5 ()
(a) HEEALTZRE (&)
EREBEEERFAEFRER —
BERA EEEEERETRS -

(b) iz —F+-_A=+—HBIF
B ARARWERBEHR —NEEMRTE
BRI EHKI(—F——4F : 83,000
BT (M sEa1) -

() AEEEEBEALTZENEHRERNK
FE29 %35 °

(d) FZEZBASHEAMEI3RI4RE

= .

49. Lt BB F

REAAFEZEZ AR ETHEREF
EHERREZAAR  HEthA  #HER
THERERSBEREMFRE (FE) -

50. T EMB AR ZFHTE
R-_E——F+-_A=+—8Kk=-_%——
F+ZA=Z+—H ARBIZEENBEL
AFEBET :

Percentage of

Country/place of Nominal value of nominal value of

incorporation/ issued and fully paid issued share capital

establishment and share capital/  held by the Company

operation registered capital KARELS
Name of subsidiary #//BY/ BRTR BRA Principal activities
WEARER BE7ARRBE BRRE/EMELR BEARL TEER
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Ordinary shares '100% Investment holding, sale of computer products
BBZS (5) GRAR X 2ETEBR and solutions and provision of hardware
HK$55,350,000 services (including installation and maintenance
A Non-voting services) and software services (including
deferred shares software development, consulting and
55,350,000/ 7T professional services)
N ERFERTER REAR  HESRERR

BRNRRRAR RS
(BREZERRERE)
REttiki (BREMHRES  BRREERE)
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50. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries at 31st December
2012 and 31st December 2011 are as follows: (Continued)

50. TEMBE QAR 2F B

mjt

R-_E——HF+_A=+—8BK_-_FT——
F+-A=+—H XRRZEEWBL
RGBT : (88)

Percentage of
Country/place of Nominal value of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and fully paid issued share capital
establishment and share capital/  held by the Company
operation registered capital KRR
Name of subsidiary #M/RY/ BRTR BIRA Principal activities
HWRARER BE7ARRBE BRRE/ERER EHAGL TEXH
ELM Computer Technologies Limited Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 '100% Investment holding, sale of computer products
AERNRBRAR 5 Ordinary shares and solutions and provision of hardware
12,000,000 LB services (including installation and maintenance
services) and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)
RERR  HEERERR
BANRRRERARY (RRRERRFERE)
REMERE (RERHRE  ERREXRR)
(CSA Automated (Macau) Limited Macau MOP10,000 '100% Investment holding, sale of computer products
BBZS (%F) GRAR il Ordinary shares and solutions and provision of hardware
BP#10,0007 LB services (including installation and maintenance
services) and software services (including
software development, consulting and
professional services)
REZKR  HEERERR
BARRRRHBHRS (DEZERRERS)
REMERE (RERHRE  ERREXRY)
ASL Automated (Thailand) Limited Thailand THB50,000,000 100% Investment holding, sale of computer products
%E Ordinary shares and solutions and provision of hardware
%4£50,000,00070 £ services (induding installation and maintenance

services) and software services (including

software development, consulting and

professional services)

REER  HEEREMR
BARRRRHBHRY (DEZERRERS)
REHRS (AEEHEE  ERRZERE)
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50. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries at 31st December
2012 and 31st December 2011 are as follows: (Continued)

Country/place of
incorporation/

establishment and

Nominal value of
issued and fully paid

RE IR M A
Et=A=t+—ALEE

50. TEMBAR2FE

RZE——F+_A=+—HBERZ=ZZT——
F+-ZA=+—H AXRRZEEWBL
RIFBWOT : (&)

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued share capital

share capital/  held by the Company
operation registered capital RATEL

Name of subsidiary /R BETR BARA Principal activities
HWEARER BE7ARRBE BERE/HAMELR BEARL TEER
Guangzhou Automated Systems People’s Republic ~ HK$18,000,000 (Note 1) 100% Sale of computer products and solutions and
Limited of China 18,000,000 provision of hardware services (including
EMREEEE SRR HEARLTE (K1) installation and maintenance services) and
BRRA software services (including software
development, consulting and professional
services)
HEERER RBRATRRRRTMRE
(BEZERRERE) REMHRT

(RREBHRE  BRRIZERE)
Taiwan Automated Systems Limited Republic of China NTD42,000,000 100% Sale of computer products and solutions and
AEREXEEHNE HRERE F&%42,000,0007 provision of hardware services (including
ARAE installation and maintenance services) and
software services (including software
development, consulting and professional
services)
HEEREMRBAD R RRHRM RS
(BERERRERE) REMHRY

(REBHRE  BRREZRE)
i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd Singapore SGD2,245,048 100% Investment holding, provision of developing,
A 2,245 04857 KT distributing, implementing and supporting
technology risk management products
RERR - RERE - 58 BHER
XERNEREEERER
i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd Malaysia MYR250,000 100% Provision of distributing, implementing and
ERED §%250,0007C supporting technology risk management
products
REAH - BRRUERN
BREBERER
i-Sprint Technologies Sdn Bhd Malaysia MYR2 100% Provision of distributing, and implementing
SRAE FH technology risk management products

RESEREBRTER
EEERER
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50. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

50. TEMBE QAR 2F B @

g

(Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries at 31st December
2012 and 31st December 2011 are as follows: (Continued)

RZE——F+_A=+—HBERZ=ZZT——
F+-ZA=+—H AXRRZEEWBL
RIFBWOT : (&)

Percentage of

Country/place of Nominal value of nominal value of

incorporation/ issued and fully paid issued share capital

establishment and share capital/  held by the Company

operation registered capital FATEL
Name of subsidiary #/BY/ BRTR BIRA Principal activities
HWEARER BE7ARRBE BRRE/HEMELR BHEAHY TEER
i-Sprint Innovations Inc. United States of America UsD100 100% Provision of distributing, and implementing
EE Z2100 technology risk management products
RtD HRE R AR
EREREH
Express Success Limited British Virgin Islands* USD2 Ordinary shares '100% Property holding
ERRAHE ES b5 il NERE
Express Returns Limited British Virgin Islands* USD2 Ordinary shares '100% Property holding
ABRARE Feun Lk NERE
Express Profits Development Limited British Virgin Islands* USD2 Ordinary shares 100% Property holding
RBRARE Fean ik NERE
ASL Security Solutions Limited Cayman Islands ~ HK$0.1 Ordinary shares '100% Investment holding
FEES 0.1ETERR RARR

A The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Company, A WIS EERER (W IFRARTFEE)L

carry practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor

to attend or vote at any general meeting of the Company nor to
participate in any distribution on winding up.

# These companies operate in Hong Kong.

! Subsidiaries held directly by the Company.

Note:

1. Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited was registered in the

People’s Republic of China as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

The registered capital paid up to 31st December 2012 was
HK$18,000,000 (2011: same).

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year (2011: same).

S Y 7 4 N A B BB SR MR R 2 B AR
RREZBEIHFERRERAGHNEG LK
ERLEBEREZEMHIR o

*
"

el

ol

T ARREEREZHEAR -
GEX

1. BIREEEEEREBRARNRPEA
REMEFMAIEBELE HE=ZT
——H#+ A=+ AZEHEMELA
18,000,000 L (=T ——4 : #H[A) °

RAEEEEE - BRNEDRETER
EHES(CT-——F R -
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Particulars of the Group’s investment properties at 31st December 2012 RZE——F+_A=+—HBHERZE—F+=
and 31st December 2011 are as follows: R=+—B ZXEEZKREWMEFBOT :
Location Gross floor area (sq.ft) Use Tenure

ith 2h BEEE (FHFR) A% FH

Units 1 to 7 and 15 to 21 on 12th Floor, 11,744 sq.ft Commercial Medium Lease
Topsail Plaza, 11,744F 7R [BES FRHEATEAY

11 On Sum Street,
Shatin, New Territories
R

W

ZOE 1158

E|ERES 1218
1279 R 1522158
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HONG KONG 58

Automated Systems (HK) Ltd. BEBRR(BEB)ERAA
15/F, Topsail Plaza BEYH

No.11 On Sum Street Z OB 115E

Shatin, Hong Kong B E 51518

Tel: (852) 2601 6998 % & 1 (852) 2601 6998

Fax: (852) 2601 6936 8 H :(852) 2601 6936

ELM Computer Technologies Ltd. BN EME AR AT

16/F, Topsail Plaza BEEYH

No.11 On Sum Street 2R 115

Shatin, Hong Kong B E %1618

Tel: (852) 2541 9900 % & 1 (852) 2541 9900

Fax: (852) 2541 1338 8 E :(852) 2541 1338
MAINLAND CHINA A E A it

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited BMREEZEEERBZEERDA
Room 1801, Block B, Centre Plaza J& N T KRR [ ARRN 78 B8 161 5%
No.161 Linhexi Road o 2R B R B S5 BRE 1801 &

Tian He District, Guangzhou, China (##% : 510620)

(Postal Code: 510620) %55 ¢ (86) 20 2881 6633

Tel: (86) 20 2881 6633 25 :(86) 20 2881 6631

Fax: (86) 20 2881 6631

Guangzhou Automated Systems Limited — Shanghai BINREXEEERBEERARF — L&
Room 2709, 27/F, China Insurance Building, 166 East Lujiazui Road LT RIRERE R 16658
Pudong District, Shanghai, China B R K E2709%E

(Postal code: 200120) (B4 : 200120)

Tel: (86) 21 6100 5583 %5 0 (86) 21 6100 5583

Fax: (86) 21 6100 5581 fEE :(86) 21 6100 5581

i-Sprint (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. ZiE (LR BBRBAEREETAA

Rm A1509 Shougang International Tower EmRmEEEAEM il:ﬁ’f607ﬁ

No.60 Xizhimen North Street IR EMBEERAE1509%

Haidian District, Beijing 100082, China %55 (86) 10 5145 5056

Tel: (86) 10 5145 5056

Customer Service Centers B & AR 7 A s

Beijing =

F10-11, Science Fortune Centre I RTERIE S5 IR8Y
8 Xueqing Road, Haidian District B E S OLAE10-11E
Beijing, China (E 4% : 100192)

(Postal Code: 100192) %5 0 (86) 10 8273 3988
Tel: (86) 10 8273 3988 fEE :(86) 10 8273 3999

Fax: (86) 10 8273 3999
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Hangzhou

Unit G, Tower 6, Zhongtian Mansion

173 Yugu Road, Hangzhou, China

(Postal Code: 310007)

Tel: (86) 571 8767 2710, (86) 571 8767 2711,
(86) 571 8767 2712

Fax: (86) 571 8767 2713

Shenyang

Room 1903, Tower A, President Building
69 Heping North Street, Heping District
Shenyang, China

(Postal Code: 110003)

Tel: (86) 24 2281 2800, (86) 24 2281 2229
Fax: (86) 24 2281 2811

Zhuhai Outsourcing Delivery Excellence Center
1/F, Block B-6, Zhuhai Southern Software Park
No.1 Software Road, Zhuhai, China

(Postal Code: 519080)

Tel: (86) 756 339 5569

Fax: (86) 756 339 5577

TAIWAN

Taiwan Automated Systems Ltd.

3/F, No.18, Sec. 6, Ming-Chuen East Road
Nei-Hu Dist. 114, Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.
Tel: (886) 2 8792 8598

Fax: (886) 2 8792 8569

MACAU

CSA Automated (Macau) Ltd.

Alameda Dr. Carlos D' Assumpcao No.180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390

iN Systems (Macao) Limited

Alameda Dr. Carlos D' Assumpcao No.180
Edf. Tong Nam Ah Comercial Campo

14 Andar O-R, Macau

Tel: (853) 2878 6392

Fax: (853) 2878 6390
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THAILAND

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th FI.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.
283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0902, 9th FI.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
Tel: (662) 185 3206

Fax: (662) 185 3207

SINGAPORE

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
Blk 750A #01-01
TechnoPark @ Chai Chee
Chai Chee Road
Singapore 469 001

Tel: (65) 6244 3900

Fax: (65) 6244 8900

MALAYSIA

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax: (60) 3 7931 5688

i-Sprint Technologies Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara

46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel: (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax: (60) 3 7931 5688

UNITED STATES

i-Sprint innovations Inc
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
Tel: 1 201 882 2822
Fax:1 732 422 0178

R H

ASL Automated (Thailand) Ltd.

283/42 Home Place Office Building

Unit 0901, 9th Fl.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
%5 1 (662) 185 3206
B & : (662) 185 3207

ASL Automated Services (Thailand) Ltd.
283/42 Home Place Office Building,

Unit 0902, 9th Fl.

Soi Sukhumvit 55 (Thonglor 13), Sukhumvit Road

Klongtan Nua, Vadhana
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
% &E  (662) 185 3206
B & : (662) 185 3207

b 3

i-Sprint Innovations Pte Ltd
Blk 750A #01-01
TechnoPark @ Chai Chee
Chai Chee Road

Singapore 469 001

FiE 1 (65) 6244 3900
f#E : (65) 6244 8900

o i ]

i-Sprint Innovations Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara
46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel = (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax : (60) 3 7931 5688

i-Sprint Technologies Sdn Bhd
V-SQ @ PJ City Centre
5-13A-01, Jalan Utara

46200 Bandar Petaling Jaya
Selangor, Malaysia

Tel : (60) 3 7932 5688

Fax : (60) 3 7931 5688

XH

i-Sprint innovations Inc
197 Route 18 South
Suite 3000

East Brunswick, NJ 08816
TG 0 1201 882 2822
fBE 17324220178






A Member of the Teamsun Group

Automated Systems Holdings Limited
é@%n)b%ﬁﬁ&i\\ﬁj

15/F., Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, H.K.
Tel: (852) 2601 6998  Fax: (852) 2601 6936
Home Page: http://www.asl.com.hk
BEVDBRINENREIRE S 1518

&55: (852) 26016998  {EH.: (852) 2601 6936
MBHE: http://www.asl.com.hk



	Cover 
	40 Years of Service Excellence
	Customer Service Excellence withCorporate Responsibility
	Quality Policy of ASL
	ASL at a Glance
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Financial Calendar
	Financial Summary
	Chairman’s Statement
	Chief Executive Officer’s Statement
	Activity Highlights
	Major Contracts Secured in the Year
	Profile of Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Particulars of Investment Properties
	Automated Systems Holdings Limited – Major Subsidiaries and Associates
	Back Cover




